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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: Automatic reply: Edneyville Elementary School Contracts - Drafts
Date: Wednesday, March 21, 2018 2:32:39 PM


I will be out of the office until Monday March 26 , I will respond as soon as possible.   If you need immediate
attention please call the office.
 
thx
Chad
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: Automatic reply: Henderson County
Date: Thursday, May 24, 2018 11:34:46 AM


I will be out of the office until Tuesday May 29, I will respond
as soon as possible.   If you need immediate attention
please call the office.  
thx
Chad
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell; David Berry
Cc: Samantha Reynolds; Aaron Brumo
Subject: Edneyville Letter
Date: Thursday, June 14, 2018 2:13:44 PM
Attachments: d138ae30-c372-4565-a0ec-ae8c68b45a11.png


John Mitchel 6-14-18.pdf


John,
Please see attached letter indicating that DOI has signed off on the project to move forward.  If you
have any further questions please let me know.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com
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301 College Street, Suite 300 



Asheville, NC 28801 



clarknexsen.com 



June 14, 2018 



Henderson County 



1 Historic Courthouse Square 



Suite 5 



Hendersonville, NC 28792 



 



Re: Edneyville Elementary 



Dear Mr. Mitchell, 



At the request of the Local Government Commission, this letter is to provide a status of 



the permitting process for the above referenced project.  As of today’s date, the follow 



permits have been received  



a. Water allocation has been granted and approved.   



b. Erosion control permit has been granted and approved 



c. Storm water permit has been granted and approved. 



d. Grading permit has been granted and approved.   



e. Building core and shell has been approved by DOI.   



f. To our knowledge no other permitting is required or expected to be required.     



Should you need further assistance regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to contact me. 



Sincerely, 



CLARK NEXSEN, INC 



 



Chadwick S. Roberson, AIA LEED BD+C 



Principal 













From: Chad Roberson
To: Mark Brooks
Cc: John Mitchell; David Berry; Aaron Brumo
Subject: Edneyville Temporary Septic Application
Date: Wednesday, June 27, 2018 3:24:12 PM
Attachments: e67099e0-8d37-4ba5-bff6-03db71a49462.png


Mark,
Based on my conversation with the owner yesterday, please proceed with submitting the temporary
sewer application to the State for review and comment.
 
Thank you,
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com



#CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: This e-mail and any files transmitted with it contain privileged and confidential information and are intended solely for the
use of the individual
or entity to which they are addressed. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to
the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of this e-mail or any of its attachments is
strictly prohibited. If you
have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sending individual or entity by e-mail and permanently delete the original e-mail and
attachments from your computer system.#
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Cc: jared.white@stephens.com; Samantha Reynolds
Subject: Edneyville
Date: Thursday, May 31, 2018 11:50:17 AM
Attachments: ab80b28f-4045-42d3-bb3d-85b5471e70a8.png


John Mitchel 5-31-18.pdf


John,
Attached is the letter we discussed this morning.  We have been communicating via email with the
plan reviewer and scheduled to talk with him this afternoon.  We have requested the foundation and
shell permit from
him.  I will let you know as soon as possible any further changes.
 
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



May 31, 2018 



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



the permitting process for the above referenced project.  Below is the status of the 



permitting for the project. 



 



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



e. Final building drawings were submitted to Department of Insurance, we have received 



comments from them on May 30, 2018.  Comments received were minor in nature.  



Comments note to re-issue documents noted for construction to the Office of the State 



Fire Marshal (OFSM).  We are in the process of incorporating the comments and 



reissuing the construction set to the OFSM.  We do not anticipate any substantive 



issues obtaining the final permitting.   



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
Subject: FW:
Date: Tuesday, October 23, 2018 1:43:45 PM
Attachments: 5199.D 2018-06-30.pdf


5199-G 2018-06-30.pdf
5199.A 2018-06-30.pdf


John,
Here are the totals and the June invoices.
 
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
Sent: Thursday, October 11, 2018 9:40 AM
To: 'David Berry' <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject:
 
David, its that time of the month again. 
J  I had accounting change the recipient to you but these
are still outstanding from June.  Would you look into these?
 
Thx
c
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com
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Principal Chadwick Roberson
Project Manager Chadwick Roberson



Mr. John Mitchell
Henderson County
100 North King Street
Hendersonville, NC  28792



June 30, 2018
Invoice No: 68189



Project 5199.D A/E Improvement Projects, Henderson County, NC - Edneyville Elementary School
Professional Services for the Period through June 30, 2018



Description
Total



Fee
Percent



Complete
Total Fee



Earned
Prior Fee



Earned
Current Fee



Earned



Advanced Planning 20,000.00 100.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00



Programming 62,850.00 100.00 62,850.00 62,850.00 0.00



Site Eval 62,850.00 100.00 62,850.00 62,850.00 0.00



Schematic Design 188,500.00 100.00 188,500.00 188,500.00 0.00



Design Development 251,400.00 100.00 251,400.00 251,400.00 0.00



Construction Docs 314,250.00 100.00 314,250.00 314,250.00 0.00



Bidding 62,850.00 100.00 62,850.00 31,425.00 31,425.00



CA - Closeout 314,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Total Fee 1,277,000.00 962,700.00 931,275.00 31,425.00



Subtotal 31,425.00



                $31,425.00Invoice Total:



 Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance
67635 4/30/2018 72,277.50
68014 5/31/2018 31,425.00
Total 103,702.50













Principal Chadwick Roberson
Project Manager Chadwick Roberson



Mr. John Mitchell
Henderson County
100 North King Street
Hendersonville, NC  28792



June 30, 2018
Invoice No: 68190



Project 5199-G Emergency Services Headquarters
Professional Services for the Period through June 30, 2018



Description
Total



Fee
Percent



Complete
Total Fee



Earned
Prior Fee



Earned
Current Fee



Earned



Schematic Design 123,110.00 100.00 123,110.00 123,110.00 0.00



Design Development 123,110.00 100.00 123,110.00 123,110.00 0.00



Construction Documents 184,665.00 100.00 184,665.00 184,665.00 0.00



Construction Admin 153,887.50 94.00 144,654.25 140,037.63 4,616.62



Closeout 30,777.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amendment 001 228,167.00 100.00 228,167.00 228,167.00 0.00



Total Fee 843,717.00 803,706.25 799,089.63 4,616.62



Subtotal 4,616.62



                $4,616.62Invoice Total:



 Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance
67637 4/30/2018 15,388.75
68015 5/31/2018 15,388.75
Total 30,777.50













68012 5/31/2018 65,375.99



Remit Payment to:  Clark Nexsen, Inc., Attn:  Accounts Receivable, 4525 Main Street, Suite 1400, Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462



4525 Main Street, Suite 1400, Virginia Beach,  Virginia  23462   757.455.5800   Fax 757.455.5638  www.clarknexsen.com



For questions regarding this invoice, please contact billing@clarknexsen.com



Clark Nexsen - Margaret M. Bagdon



Invoice No: 68275



Mr. John Mitchell



Henderson County



100 North King Street



Hendersonville, NC  28792



Total 73,548.00



67627 4/30/2018 8,172.01



Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance



Invoice Total: $16,344.00



Subtotal 16,344.00



0.00



Total Fee 2,771,500.00 1,093,516.00 1,077,172.00 16,344.00



Amend 01 - Closeout 136,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



0.00



Amend 01 - CA 817,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Bidding 136,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



0.00



Amend 01 - Construction Docs 817,200.00 28.00 228,816.00 212,472.00 16,344.00



Amend 01 - Design Development 408,600.00 100.00 408,600.00 408,600.00



0.00



Amend 01 - Schematic Design 408,600.00 100.00 408,600.00 408,600.00 0.00



Advanced Planning 47,500.00 100.00 47,500.00 47,500.00



Professional Services for the Period through June 30, 2018



Description



Total



Fee



Percent



Complete



Total Fee



Earned



Prior Fee



Earned



Current Fee



Earned



Project Manager Chadwick Roberson



Principal Chadwick Roberson



Project 5199.A A/E Improvement Projects, Henderson County, NC - Hendersonville High School



June 30, 2018
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell; David Berry
Subject: FW:
Date: Wednesday, March 07, 2018 11:20:24 AM


This is a direct cut and paste from the contract
 
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
Sent: Thursday, February 08, 2018 4:53 PM
To: Sara Melanson <SMelanson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject:
 
General Conditions shall be charged to the project at a monthly rate as indicated in the Exhibit A and the scope of
these General Conditions are specifically defined below.  The final construction schedule agreed to at the time
Exhibit A is established shall state the total dollar amount and months for the construction phase of the project for
which General Conditions will be paid. In the event that the project exceeds the amount of time allotted for
completion of the project due
to no fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction manager will submit a
Change Order to the Owner to cover the additional General Condition costs actually incurred.  Weather delays shall
not be considered in extension of the General Conditions that
do not exceed the 5 year average for the job site
location.  Contractor shall provide weather delay documentation with each pay application.  Weather delays
submitted after the pay application shall not be considered in the extension of the contract duration. 
Claims for
weather related delays shall not be considered unless the work is directly tied to the critical path of project.  The
General Conditions change shall pay for the following expenses directly associated with the project: 
 
Project Manager
Superintendent
Assistant Project Manager
Project Administrator
Project Account
Company Vehicles
Travel
Fuel
Cell Phone and usage
Safety Equipment
Temporary Office Trailer
Temporary Office supplies, equipment, furniture
Telephone/Fax Machine Connections
Drinking water/Ice
Temporary Toilets and holding tanks
Postage/Courier/Deliveries
Drawing & Specification Reproductions
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Jobsite Cleaning and Dumpsters
Monthly Photographs
Temporary Fence and Gates
 
 
 
 
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
Subject: FW: Contract Language for Pre-Bid GMP
Date: Monday, January 22, 2018 10:02:50 AM
Attachments: image001.png


2fda9941-0d0a-45d9-8dc5-3e109e2db0fc.png


See attached.  I will call you around lunch. 
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Marty Moser [mailto:Mmoser@barnhillcontracting.com]

Sent: Friday, January 19, 2018 11:18 AM
To: J. Chris Smith (csmith@beverly-grant.com) <csmith@beverly-grant.com>; Chad Roberson
<CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: Chad Webb <cwebb@barnhillcontracting.com>
Subject: Contract Language for Pre-Bid GMP
 
Chris and Chad,
 
The following contract provision is from Rod Malone’s CM at Risk contract with a pre-bid
GMP.  This is a fair and reasonable approach that we can discuss on our call this
afternoon.


 
THE PARTIES AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT THE BIDS
RECEIVED BY THE CM FOR THE WORK, INCLUDING
ALL OF THE ALTERNATES ACCEPTED BY THE
OWNER, PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 3.4 OF THIS
AGREEMENT
EXCEED THE LINE ITEM IN THE GMP
FOR THE COST OF THE WORK, THEN THE CM
SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO TERMINATE THIS
AGREEMENT.  THE CM SHALL PROVIDE THE
OWNER WITH NOTICE OF INTENT TO TERMINATE
PURSUANT TO THIS PROVISION WITHIN FIFTEEN
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BARNHILL
CONTRACTING
COMPANY














(15) DAYS OF THE CM’S RECEIPT
OF BIDS FOR THE
PROJECT.  PRIOR TO A TERMINATION PURSUANT
TO THIS PROVISION BECOMING EFFECTIVE, THE
OWNER AND CM WILL REVIEW THE LIST OF
ALTERNATES, OTHER MODIFICATIONS OR VALUE
ENGINEERING REQUESTS IN ORDER TO
DETERMINE WHETHER AN AGREEMENT CAN BE
REACHED
BETWEEN THE OWNER AND CM
REGARDING A MODIFIED SCOPE OF WORK OR AN
ADJUSTMENT TO THE GMP.  IN THE EVENT AN
AGREEMENT REGARDING THE MODIFIED SCOPE
OF THE WORK AND/OR A REVISION TO THE GMP
CANNOT BE REACHED WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) DAYS
OF THE OWNER’S  RECEIPT OF
NOTICE OF INTENT
TO TERMINATE PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION,
THEN THE TERMINATION SHALL BECOME
IMMEDIATELY EFFECTIVE.
 
 
Marty
 
Martin B. Moser
Senior Vice President
Barnhill Contracting Company
PO Box 31765
Raleigh, North Carolina 27622
919/781-7210 (office)
919/781-5348 (facsimile)
919/427-1756 (mobile)
mmoser@barnhillcontracting.com
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell; David Berry
Subject: FW: Edneyville Job
Date: Wednesday, December 06, 2017 1:19:50 PM
Attachments: image002.png


Ok to move forward?
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Mark Brooks [mailto:mbrooks@brooksea.com] 
Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 3:58 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: FW: Edneyville Job
 
Chad –
VERY reasonable quote and timeline for the groundwater sampling out at Edneyville.  I’d like to
budget an additional ½ day of my time as well to get Chris going out there.  So about $4800 budget?
Any way to get
this approved so we can get it done next week? Thanks.
 
 


From: Chris Singleton [mailto:chris@singletonenvironmental.com]

Sent: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 3:54 PM
To: 'Mark Brooks' <mbrooks@brooksea.com>
Subject: RE: Edneyville Job
 
Mark,
The cost to do all that will be $2,965.  I should be able to work it in next week especially toward the
later part of the week. FYI, I’m using a new email:  chris @singletonenvironmental.com.
 
Thanks for the opportunity,
 
 
      Chris Singleton, P.G.
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SINGLETON ENVIRONMENTAL, INC,








      (828) 667-5001
 
 
 
 
 


From: Mark Brooks [mailto:mbrooks@brooksea.com]

Sent: Monday, December 4, 2017 1:24 PM
To: Chris Singleton, P.G.
Subject: Edneyville Job
 
Chris –
Hope this email finds you doing well.  Tried to call but it would not let me leave a voicemail.  I need a
proposal for setting 6 temporary piezometers at Edneyville Elementary to  collect groundwater
samples.  Samples need to be run for
Ammonia Nitrogen and Nitrate nitrogen and CBOD.  I would
guesstimate groundwater at less than 25’.  I’d like to get this done as soon as possible so let me
know your timing.  Thanks!
 
Mark C. Brooks, P.E.
Brooks Engineering Associates, P.A.
17 Arlington Street
Asheville, NC  28801
(828)232-4700
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From: Chad Roberson
To: David Berry; John Mitchell
Subject: FW: Edneyville Job
Date: Tuesday, December 05, 2017 4:25:38 PM
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
To: John Mitchell; David Berry; wbuie@wgla.com; "Jared Deridder" (jderidder@wgla.com)
Cc: Aaron Brumo
Subject: FW: Edneyville
Date: Monday, December 04, 2017 12:43:05 PM
Attachments: Attachments.html


FYI  guys.    I have asked him to solicit proposals from well drillers. 
 
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
Sent: Monday, December 04, 2017 11:17 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Edneyville
 
Chad –
I was about to submit the design flow reduction portion of our scope to Trish Angoli, state engineer
we met on site, and called her to give here a heads up, when she sent me the documents below
(links to download).  It is a study done back
in 1989 that identified groundwater contamination for
nitrates at Edneyville Elementary above state groundwater standards.  Highest result was 24 mg/l
and state standard is 10 mg/l.  I discussed this with her and what we discussed as a way to proceed
forward
with the original plan (design flow reduction and equalization on existing system) was to
verify that the site is still in compliance, meaning groundwater levels at the property line are below
10 mg/l nitrates.  It would also be prudent to document existing
groundwater levels on site so that
we have a baseline demonstrating that any contamination found was not a result of our forthcoming
action. 
 
So, what is needed to be done is to contract with an environmental drilling contractor to put in
about 4-6 temporary monitoring wells and collect groundwater samples for nitrogen. My
guesstimate on the cost for this about $4,000.  My guesstimate
on timing is about 30 days to
complete.  So this should not set us back too far in terms of schedule.  Let me know if this is
something you think we can move forward with.  Otherwise, I am not really sure how to proceed.  I
can solicit a proposal for the drilling
and sampling if needed.   Thanks and let me know how to
proceed.
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Mark Brooks uses ShareFile to share documents securely.
Learn More.


 
 
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
Cc: Joel Helms; Chris Otahal
Subject: FW: Emergency Services HQ unsuitable soil narrative - Amec response
Date: Thursday, December 14, 2017 5:14:35 PM
Attachments: image002.png


David,
I want to make sure you guys are comfortable with this.  There is risk associated with doing this. 
There could be settlement and potentially cracking of the slab or paving areas. 
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Quigley, Timothy P [mailto:timothy.quigley@woodplc.com]

Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2017 4:58 PM
To: Joel Helms <JHelms@ClarkNexsen.com>; jill.heimburg@woodplc.com
Cc: David Berry <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson
<CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; 'Land, Matthew' <matthew.land@woodplc.com>
Subject: RE: Emergency Services HQ unsuitable soil narrative - Amec response
 
Joel,
 
We would want to first evaluate the unsuitable subgrade before placement of geogrid and stone but
typically we would recommend a layer of bi-axial geogrid (equivalent to Tensar BX 1200) be placed
over the entire area of unsuitable subgrade.
Next 4 to 6 inches of loose ABC stone should be placed
on top of the geogrid followed by suitable structural fill.
 
This option would take on some more potential risk for the parking and building area as you are still
leaving the unsuitable soils in place.
 
Thanks,
 
Tim  
 
Timothy P. Quigley, P.E.
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Senior Engineer
1308 Patton Avenue, Asheville, NC 28806
Office: 828-252-8130
www.woodplc.com
 
Please note that Amec Foster Wheeler has joined Wood, plc. We will continue to operate as Amec Foster Wheeler
short term but will be under the Wood, plc brand.
 


 
All engineering and land surveying services, in North Carolina, are offered/performed by Amec Foster Wheeler
Environment & Infrastructure, Inc. (License #F-1253), a wholly
owned subsidiary of John Wood Group, plc.
 


From: Joel Helms [mailto:JHelms@ClarkNexsen.com]

Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2017 4:40 PM
To: Quigley, Timothy P <timothy.quigley@woodplc.com>;
jill.heimburg@woodplc.com
Cc: David Berry <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: RE: Emergency Services HQ unsuitable soil narrative - Amec response
 
Tim,
Can you give us a conservative idea on how much geo-grid and stone would be needed? Trying to
get pricing info on which approach to take.
Thanks again.
 
Joel Helms AIA, GGP, LEED AP BD+C
Senior Architect | Associate Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6276 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
jhelms@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Quigley, Timothy P [mailto:timothy.quigley@woodplc.com]

Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2017 4:29 PM
To: Joel Helms <JHelms@ClarkNexsen.com>;
jill.heimburg@woodplc.com
Cc: David Berry <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: RE: Emergency Services HQ unsuitable soil narrative - Amec response
 
Hi Joel/David,
 
Based on our discussion earlier today, within the Storage Building area we would recommend that
the soil they have placed from the wet cut soils within the sediment basin area be either dried out
and recompacted, which will be difficult
this time of year, or removed and replaced with a drier,
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sandier material. Given that is under a building and a parking area that will receive heavier traffic it
will be important to have a stable subgrade.
 
We think this would be the best approach but can evaluate if it is decided to try and “bridge” over it
with soil or geogrid but I think that with the problem area easily accessible, and what will be going
over it, removing and replacing
would be the best option at this point for the long term performance
of the area.  
 
Please let us know if you have any questions.
 
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

Sent: Thursday, December 14, 2017 4:15 PM
To: Quigley, Timothy P <Timothy.Quigley@amecfw.com>;
jill.heimburg@woodplc.com
Cc: David Berry <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Emergency Services HQ unsuitable soil narrative
 
Tim and Jill,
David has a meeting on-site in the morning and needs your recommendation on the unsuitable soils
at the storage building prior to that meeting.
Please copy all with your recommendations prior to EOB today.
Thanks for your help in pushing this out.
 
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


 


This message is the property of John Wood Group PLC and/or its subsidiaries and/or affiliates and is
intended only for the named recipient(s). Its contents (including any attachments) may be confidential,
legally privileged or otherwise protected from disclosure
by law. Unauthorised use, copying, distribution or
disclosure of any of it may be unlawful and is strictly prohibited. We assume no responsibility to persons
other than the intended named recipient(s) and do not accept liability for any errors or omissions
which
are a result of email transmission. If you have received this message in error, please notify us
immediately by reply email to the sender and confirm that the original message and any attachments and
copies have been destroyed and deleted from your system.


If you do not wish to receive future unsolicited commercial electronic messages from us, please forward
this email to:
unsubscribe@woodplc.com and include “Unsubscribe” in the subject line. If applicable, you
will continue to receive invoices, project communications and similar factual, non-commercial electronic
communications.


Please click http://www.woodplc.com/email-disclaimer for notices and company information in relation to
emails originating in the UK, Italy or France.
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Steve Wyatt
Cc: John Mitchell
Subject: FW: HHS Field
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 4:27:37 PM
Attachments: 375ef0ed-198c-4eb0-88ab-ccfb972c6a23.png


a85d3a0a-1e9d-4612-b14e-8c62762d0879.png
J Mitchell 1-26-16.pdf


Steve,
See attached proposal for the field.  Let me know if you have any questions.
 
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
Sent: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 4:26 PM
To: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: HHS Field
 
John,
Please see attached proposal for the additional work associated with the field, track, press box and
bleachers.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com
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One West Pack Square, Suite 1501 



Asheville, NC 28801 



clarknexsen.com 



January 10, 2018         CN #5199.A  



 



Henderson County 



1 Historic Courthouse Square 



Suite 5 



Hendersonville, NC 28792 



 



Attn:  Mr. John Mitchell 



 



Re: Hendersonville High School Athletic Field  



 



Dear Mr. Mitchell, 



 



Attached to this letter is our proposed amendment to perform design services associated with the Athletic 



Field located at Hendersonville High School.   The project shall include the following items: 



 



a. Replacement of the existing natural grass with artificial turf 



b. Replacement of existing stadium bleachers on the visitor and home side with a total seat 



count of 2000 



c. Construct a new press box with approximately 1000 sf of space and a camera platform.  



d. Replacement of storm water under the field. 



 



Our scope of work will be in compliance with current agreement.  We will also provide the following 



items: 



a.  A maximum of 2 Programming meetings to finalize any design constraints on the facility, 



review potential layouts and location of the field and bleachers.  During the programming 



efforts we will meet with user groups as designated by Henderson County and Henderson 



County Schools 



b. Schematic, Design Development, and Construction Documents are per Article 3 in our current 



agreement.   



c. Civil engineering associated with the field, press box, and bleachers is included as part of this 



proposal.  Utility extension beyond the confines of the building site are excluded from our 



proposal.  This includes but is not limited to water or sewer along the south and east portions 



of the site that has been discussed with the City of Hendersonville.  As you are aware, there is a 



storm line running under the field that should be addressed during the construction on the 



field.  We have included design services associated with the storm line, in this area only.  



d. Landscape design is limited to zoning code compliance requirements. 



e. Delivery method for the project shall by the Construction Manager at Risk for the High School 



project and shall be delivered during the construction activities associated with the larger 



project.  Construction manager shall be responsible for project estimating and pre-construction 



activities.   If the project is hard bid or performed outside of the larger projects, there will be, 



additional costs associated with managing the bidding process and contract administration.   











 



 



One West Pack Square, Suite 1501 



Asheville, NC 28801 



clarknexsen.com  



 



 



We are excluding the following items: 



 



a. Geotechnical investigations 



b. Site surveying 



c. Hazardous material investigations.  



d. Multiple bid packages, early site packages are not included in this fee proposal.   



e. Conform drawings and specifications are not included in this proposal. The Construction 



Manager at Risk shall be responsible for incorporation of addenda and distribution of materials 



to subcontractors.   



f. Existing concessions area and toilets to the south of the field shall remain. 



g. This project shall be reviewed by Department of Insurance, Department of Public Instruction 



and local authorities having jurisdiction.  



h.  “Out of house” printing or publications shall be billed at our cost-plus ten percent (10%).  All 



travel expenses are included as part of our proposal.   



 



Proposed Fee: 



 



The preliminary budget of the project is based on our discussions of the scope.  Immediately upon release 



to move forward with this work, we will verify and update the budget.  For this portion of the work, we 



would recommend allocating a minimum budget of $5,000,000 for the construction efforts as designated 



below.   



 



Construction budget + Escalation  $                                                    5,000,000  



Contingency at 5%  $                                                       250,000  



Total construction + Contingency  $                                                      5,250,000  



A+E  design fees  $                                                       262,500  



Special inspections  $                                                         20,000  



Total project cost  $                                                       5,532,500 



 



For the above noted items and for work described in our current contract, we would propose a contract 



amendment in the amount of $262,500.  Should the project scope or cost increase, we will need to revisit 



the design efforts and adjust our costs accordingly.   



 



 



 



 



 



 











 



 



One West Pack Square, Suite 1501 



Asheville, NC 28801 



clarknexsen.com  



 



 



Thank you again for the continued opportunity to work with you and Henderson County.  After you have 



had a chance to review this document, please do not hesitate to contact me to discuss this further.   



 



Sincerely, 



Clark Nexsen, Inc. 



 



Chadwick S. Roberson, AIA 



 



Principal 
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: FW: HHS Football Stadium Progress
Date: Thursday, January 04, 2018 5:37:44 PM
Attachments: 8834200e-58fd-4861-9340-d06cd26c8fb0.png


 
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: J Michael Edney [mailto:JME@jmelaw.net] 
Sent: Thursday, January 04, 2018 5:28 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: 'swyatt@hendersoncountync.org' <swyatt@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: RE: HHS Football Stadium Progress
 
My bad, I thought you knew that this would have to be done. Please get with Steve et al and make
sure we do what we have to do.
 
Thanks
 
 
 
 
Law Office of J. Michael Edney
132 3rd Avenue East, Suite B
Hendersonville, North Carolina 28792-4375
(828) 692-4130
Fax (828) 697-6011
 


From: Chad Roberson [mailto:CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com]

Sent: Thursday, January 4, 2018 5:20 PM
To: J Michael Edney <JME@jmelaw.net>
Cc: 'swyatt@hendersoncountync.org' <swyatt@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: RE: HHS Football Stadium Progress
 
Michael,
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Hope you guys had a great Christmas and New Years!  As of now, the stadium isn’t part of the scope
of the High School drawings.  If you guys want us to revisit and include that as part of the project, we
can look
at construction costs for the work and see what is needed to cover the costs for the work.
  Let me know.  Stay warm!!
 
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

Sent: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 12:56 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: 'swyatt@hendersoncountync.org' <swyatt@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: HHS Football Stadium Progress
 
Chad,
 
Just looking for an update on where your guys are in drawing / designing the new press box and area
for football stadium?
 
 
ME
 
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
Date: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 2:06:04 PM
Attachments: b7ae6481-4d7a-4959-a625-08208102e4bb.png
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FYI
 
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
Cc: Aaron Brumo; "Jared Deridder" (jderidder@wgla.com)
Subject: FW: Letter to NCDOT
Date: Wednesday, June 13, 2018 10:49:49 AM
Attachments: 8090fe5f-267b-4f1e-b6b5-ff2270c46bae.png


Letter to Rusty Darnell, Turn Lanes.pdf


John and David,
 
We have reviewed this letter and feel this is appropriate, given the information we have available
now.  Based on our understanding of the current population of Edneyville Elementary, it could be
decades before
the school was full.  As we have discussed, the school is designed around a 600
student capacity with an 800 core.  Basically after 600 students, the school would need to have
additional classrooms added to accommodate the growth to a capacity of 800.  I do
not feel this
stipulation will impact the school or the County in the immediate future.  With your permission, we
will forward this to Rusty for his final approval.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Jeffrey H. Moore <jhmoore@matternandcraig.com> 
Sent: Wednesday, June 13, 2018 8:39 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; Jared Deridder <jderidder@wgla.com>
Subject: Letter to NCDOT
 
Good morning, Chad and Jared,
Here is the letter I wrote to Rusty Darnell at NCDOT.  If it looks OK, please feel free to forward it to
the County and/or Rusty.  I can send a hard copy or email to Rusty.  I can even take a copy to him (his
office is 1 mile from my house).
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.
Have a great day!
Jeff
 
Jeffrey H. Moore, PE
Mattern & Craig |
ENGINEERS • SURVEYORS


12 Broad Street | Asheville, NC 28801
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(828) 254-2201 (Office)   (828) 254-4562 (Fax)
Johnson City | Kingsport | Roanoke | Statesville
www.matternandcraig.com
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: FW: OSFM Review comments - 5199.D
Date: Friday, June 01, 2018 2:29:13 PM
Attachments: 47ca0d2c-92c2-4fea-b6d1-dbfb32ae6646.png


3c0369b6-d8fd-473d-81e4-80f369b498cf.png
0380_001.pdf


 
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Annette Scott 
Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 11:05 AM
To: Donna Francis <DFrancis@ClarkNexsen.com>; Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: OSFM Review comments - 5199.D
 
 
 
Annette Scott CDT, CDFA, GGP
Project Manager Assistant


C L A R K N E X S E N


333 Fayetteville Street Suite 1000

Raleigh, NC 27601

919.576.2090 Direct
919.828.1876 Office 
ascott@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: deltekpim@clarknexsen.com <deltekpim@clarknexsen.com>

Sent: Tuesday, May 29, 2018 10:53 AM
To: Annette Scott <AScott@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Attached Image
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: FW: ScoreVision on ESPN2
Date: Friday, January 05, 2018 5:07:36 PM
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
Sent: Friday, January 05, 2018 4:53 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: FW: ScoreVision on ESPN2
 
Please include as a consideration as you review HHS
 
 
Law Office of J. Michael Edney
132 3rd Avenue East, Suite B
Hendersonville, North Carolina 28792-4375
(828) 692-4130
Fax (828) 697-6011
 
From: Eric Gash [mailto:elgash@hcpsnc.org]

Sent: Friday, January 5, 2018 2:19 PM
To: J Michael Edney <JME@jmelaw.net>
Subject: Fwd: ScoreVision on ESPN2
 
FYI- This is some scoreboard news. The one's we would get would not be as big as this one, but it
gives a good idea of what the finished product looks like.
 
Thanks,
 


Eric Gash
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\ISEEREVISION



























Asst. Principal / AD
Hendersonville High School
ROMANS 8:28
 
 
 
---------- Forwarded message ----------
From: Brian Flaherty <brian@scorevision.com>
Date: Fri, Jan 5, 2018 at 11:20 AM
Subject: ScoreVision on ESPN2
To: "elgash@hcpsnc.org" <elgash@hcpsnc.org>


Eric,
 
Hope you are doing well. If you have ESPN2, Northern Kentucky is playing at Oakland University
tonight where we just installed our largest indoor system (40’x10’) and four of our
smaller systems
(10’x7’). Hopefully ESPN will show the ScoreVision systems during the game, so if you have nothing
going on and want to watch some hoops tonight you may get to see ScoreVision on full display.
(Attached are a few samples)
 
 Please let me know if you have any questions and thank you,
 
Brian Flaherty
REGIONAL TERRITORY MANAGER


brian@scorevision.com
402.515.6085


 
 
 
 
 


All email correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law, which may
result in monitoring and disclosure to third parties, including law enforcement.
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Cc: Sara Melanson
Subject: FW: Section 179D Certification for Henderson County Health Sciences Center
Date: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 6:53:39 PM
Attachments: S179D Allocation form for Henderson County Health Sciences Center.pdf


Henderson County 2016 Section 179D Energy Certification - Final Report.pdf


John,
Please see attached information, due to Henderson County being a public entity, Clark Nexsen can
utilize these 179D credits for our taxes.  This helps keep our fees lower and saves the County money
in the long
run.  If you would review this and give me a call if you have any questions in order to sign
this document.  (all of our public clients allow this)
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com
 
This correspondence, including, but not limited to, attachments and enclosures, contains a general
explanation of complex tax laws and sophisticated tax planning
techniques. It is not, and should not be
construed as, accounting, legal, or written tax advice provided by Cherry Bekaert LLP to the reader, nor
as a substitute for a formal opinion.  Changes in tax laws, specific circumstances or needs, and other
factors
could affect the information contained herein.  Please consult with your tax advisor before
implementing any planning ideas or taking any actions based on discussion in this general explanation.
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EPAct Compliance Certification 



August 8, 2018 



Greg Hall 



Clark Nexsen 



4525 Main Street, Suite 1400 



Virginia Beach, VA 23462 



Dear Mr. Hall: 



On behalf of Clark Nexsen, we have made an investigation of the energy efficient systems within 



the Henderson County – Health Sciences Center located at 805 6th Avenue West in Hendersonville, North 



Carolina that qualifies for the energy tax deduction under the Energy Policy Act of 2005. The findings 



are summarized, as follows: 



Name Square Footage Benefit Rate 179D Deduction 



Health Sciences Center 98,760 $1.80 $177,768.00 



The building envelope, heating, cooling, ventilation, hot water systems, and interior lighting systems will reduce 



the total annual energy and power costs with respect to combined usage by 50 percent or more as compared 



to a reference building that meets the minimum requirements of Standard 90.1-2007 of ASHRAE/IESNA for 



property placed into service before January 1, 2018. A description of the methodology, analysis, and 



subsequent conclusions are contained within this report. The conclusions and recommendations presented in 



this report are based on review of the records made available to our firm, interviews of available personnel, 



our engineer’s calculations, photographs and observations made during the site visit and our experience with 



similar properties, 



The conclusions reached are based solely upon existing federal income tax law as applied to the information 



that you provided to us. Since we have not performed an independent verification of such information, you 



should immediately bring to our attention any facts contained in this report that you believe to be incorrect. 



Very truly yours, 



Cherry Bekaert LLP 
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Qualifying Certification Satisfying Notice 2006-52: 



The Section 179D certification for the Energy Efficient Commercial Building Property is enclosed. The 



certification satisfies statements for Notice 2006-52 § 4.01-4.09 of Internal Revenue Bulletin 2006-26. 



1) Building Certifier Information



Certifier Name: Alaa Ali, PhD, PE 



WA License Number: 113637 



Address: 8401 Lake Worth Road, Suite 103 



City, State, Zip: Lake Worth, FL 33467 



Phone No.: (800) 662-1793 



2) Building Information



Building or Owner Name: Henderson County 



Street Address: 805 6th Ave W 



City, State, Zip:     Hendersonville, NC 28739 



Energy Efficient System installed and placed in service during:  2016 
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Qualified Deductions 



Statement for Qualifying Energy Efficient Commercial Building Property: 



The interior lighting systems, heating, cooling, ventilation, hot water systems, and building envelope that have 



been, or are planned to be, incorporated into the building will reduce the total annual energy and power costs 



with respect to combined usage of the building’s heating, cooling, ventilation, hot water, and interior lighting 



systems by 50 percent or more as compared to a Reference Building that meets the minimum requirements 



of Standard 90.1-2001. 



Energy Reduction Certification 



The new energy efficient lighting, HVAC, and envelope systems were completed in Military buildings. The total 



annual energy and power costs of these buildings have been reduced by more than the respective amounts 



(See Table 4.1) due to the installation of Energy Efficient lighting, HVAC, and envelope systems. This 



reduction has been determined under the Performance Rating Method of Notice 2006-52. The total area of 



the buildings that received new energy efficient systems is 86,998. 



Total Tax Deduction per square foot $1.80 
Total square footage of building 98,760 



Section 179D Deduction $177,768.00 



Note: The amount of the deduction is equal to the lesser of: (1) the capitalized cost incurred with respect to the 



energy efficient property and (2) per-square foot allowance. 



Field Inspection Statement 



A qualified individual has field inspected the properties after the lighting, HVAC, and envelope systems had 



been placed into service  and certifies that the specified energy efficient systems have been installed and 



meet the energy-saving targets contained in the design plans and specifications. This inspection was 



performed in accordance with applicable sections of the National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) as 



Energy Saving Modeling and Inspection Guidelines for Commercial Building Federal Tax Deductions that were 



in effect at the time of certification. 



Energy Efficiency Statement 



The building owner has received an explanation of the energy efficiency features of the building and its 



projected annual energy costs. 
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Certified Software 



Qualified computer software was used to calculate energy and power consumption and costs to certify that 



the required energy cost reductions were obtained. The DOE-approved software used to calculate energy and 



power consumption and costs is Hourly Analysis Program (HAP) v5.10. 



Components List 



Attached to this document is a list identifying the components of the lighting, HVAC, and envelope systems 



installed on or in the buildings, the energy efficiency features of the building, and its projected annual energy 



costs. 



Declaration of Qualifications 



The undersigned certifies that the energy saving components herein have been placed into service, the 



proposed systems meet the energy saving targets within, and has been inspected by a certified licensed 



contractor or professional engineer in the jurisdiction. 



Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this certification, including accompanying 



documents, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, the facts presented in support of this certification are 



true, correct, and complete. 



6 of 46











Engineering Analysis Report 



Scope of Study 



The purpose of this study is to determine whether the subject buildings contain energy efficient commercial 



property which qualifies for a tax deduction under Section 179D of the Internal Revenue Code and to provide 



documentation of said qualification as required under Section 179D, Notice 2006-52 and Notice 2008-40. 



The scope of our study included, but was not limited to the following: 



• Analysis of construction documents to determine whether energy efficient measures have



been incorporated into the design of the building's lighting, HVAC, and envelope systems.



• Certification by a locally licensed professional engineer or contractor that the energy



efficient equipment and components identified in the buildings designs were installed.



• Calculations of deductions available based on the energy reduction costs of the subject



buildings and the reference buildings.



• Use of an energy model to calculate the energy consumption cost of the buildings and an



energy model to calculate the energy consumption cost of the American Society of Heating,



Refrigeration and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) Standard 90.1-2001 reference



building. The energy model used for the energy consumption analysis is authorized by the



Department of Energy pursuant to Section 179D(d)(3) and Notice 2008-40 4.01.values.
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Statement of Law 



Background 



Section 1331 of the Energy Policy Act of 2005 enacted Section 179D of the Internal Revenue Code, which 



provides a deduction with respect to energy efficient commercial buildings placed in service between January 



1, 2006 and December 31, 2007. Section 204 of the Tax Relief and Health Care Act of 2006 extended the 



Section 179D deduction through December 31, 2008. Section 303 of the Emergency Economic Stabilization 



Act of 2008 extended the Section 179D deduction through December 31, 2013 and H.R. 5771 The Tax 



Increase Prevention Act of 2014 extended the Section 179D deduction through December 31, 2014. The 



Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 extends Section 179D through December 31, 2016. The Bipartisan 



Budget Act of 2018 extended Section 179D through December 31, 2017. 



Applicable Law 



Section 179D provides a deduction for an amount equal to the cost of energy efficient commercial building 



property placed in service during the taxable year. Unless otherwise indicated, section references are to the 



Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and the regulations there under. In order to qualify for this 



deduction, the energy efficient commercial building property must receive proper "certification" by "qualified 



individuals" using "qualified computer software" as meeting various energy efficiency standards. These terms 



are further defined in Section 179D and Notice 2006-52. This report has been prepared in accordance with 



these standards. 



Section 179D(b) provides that the maximum deduction with respect to any building for any taxable year shall 



not exceed the excess (if any) of $1.80 multiplied by the "building square footage" over the aggregate amount 



of deductions claimed in prior years for energy efficient commercial building property for the same property. 



Section 179D(c)(1) defines the term "energy efficient commercial building property" to be property with respect 



to which depreciation is allowable, which is: 



• Installed on or in any building located in the United States and within the scope of Standard 90.1-



2001 



• Installed as part of the interior lighting systems, the heating, cooling, ventilation, and hot water



systems or the building envelope, and



• Certified in accordance with the tax law as part of a plan designed to reduce the total



annual energy and power costs of the building by 50 percent or more in comparison to a



reference building meeting the minimum requirements of ASHRAE Standard 90.1-2001.
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Section 179D(d)(l) provides for a partial allowance for any system (interior lighting systems, heating, cooling, 



ventilation, and hot water systems or the building envelope) that meets the established target energy 



reduction standard for such system. The deduction shall not exceed the excess (if any) of $0.60 multiplied 



by the "building square footage" over the aggregate amount of deductions claimed in prior years. 



Section 179D(d)(4) provides that for energy efficient commercial building property installed on or in property 



owned by a Federal, State, or local government or a political subdivision thereof, the deduction can be 



allocated to the person primarily responsible for designing the property in lieu of the owner of such property. 



Section 179D(e) provides that if a deduction is allowed under this section with respect to any energy efficient 



commercial building property, the basis of such property shall be reduced by the amount of the deduction 



allowed. 



Notice 2006-52 section 2.03(1)(a) provides guidance for partially qualifying property of lighting systems, 



otherwise known as the "Permanent Rule". To qualify, the system must reduce the total annual energy 



and power costs with respect to the combined usage of the building's heating, cooling, ventilation, hot 



water, and interior lighting systems by 16 2/3 percent or more as compared to Standard 90.1-2001. 



Notice 2008-40 updated the standard to 20 percent for property placed in service after December 31, 2008. 



Notice 2012-26 updated the standard to 25 percent for property placed in service after March 12, 2012. 



Notice 2006-52 section 2.03(1)(b) provides alternative guidance for partially qualifying property of lighting 



systems, otherwise known as the "Interim Rule". Taxpayers may use this alternative procedure until the 



Internal Revenue Service issues final regulations related to lighting systems. To qualify, the system must: 



 Achieve a reduction in lighting power of at least 25 percent (50 percent in the case of a 



warehouse) of the minimum requirements in Table 9.3.1.1 or Table 9.3.1.2 (not including 



additional interior lighting power allowances) of Standard 90.1-2001 



 Include provision for bi-level switching in all occupancies (with some exceptions), and 



 Meet the minimum requirements for calculated lighting levels as set forth in the IESNA Lighting 



Handbook, Performance and Application, Ninth Edition, 2000. 



Notice 2006-52 section 2.04 provides guidance for partially qualifying property of heating, cooling, 



ventilation and hot water systems. To qualify, the system must reduce the total annual energy and power 



costs with respect to the combined usage of the building's heating, cooling, ventilation, hot water, and interior 



lighting systems by 16 2/3 percent or more as compared to Standard 90.1-2001. Notice 2008-40 updated 



the standard to 20 percent for property placed in service after December 31, 2008. Notice 2012-26 updated 



the standard to 15 percent for property placed in service after March 12, 2012.  



Notice 2006-52 section 2.05 provides guidance for partially qualifying property of the building envelope. To 



qualify, the building envelope must reduce the total annual energy and power costs with respect to the 
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combined usage of the building's heating, cooling, ventilation, hot water, and interior lighting systems by 



16 2/3 percent or more as compared to Standard 90.1- 2001. Notice 2008-40 updated the standard to 10 



percent for property placed in service after December 31, 2008. 



Notice 2006-52 section 5.01 defines "building square footage" as the sum of the floor areas of the conditioned 



spaces within the building, including basements, mezzanine, and intermediate- floored tiers and penthouses 



with headroom height of 7.5 feet or greater. Building square footage is measured from the exterior faces 



of exterior walls or from the centerline of walls separating buildings, but excludes covered walkways, 



open roofed over areas, porches and similar spaces, pipe trenches, exterior terraces or steps, chimneys, 



roof overhangs and similar features. 



Notice 2008-40 section 3.04 provides that an allocation of the Section 179D deduction to the designer of a 



government-owned building must be in writing and contain various statements related to the energy 



efficient commercial building property along with signatures of the authorized representatives of both the 



owner of the government-owned building and the designer or the designer's authorized representative. Section 



3.07 provides that the owner of the public building must reduce the basis of the energy efficient commercial 



building property by the amount of the Section 179D deduction allocated. 



Notice 2008-40 section 7.01 allows a taxpayer to elect to qualify the building envelope as energy efficient 



commercial building property by substituting 10 percent efficiency instead of the 16 2/3 percent directed in 



Notice 2006-52 section 2.05 for property placed in service before December 31, 2008. If this election is made, 



the lighting and heating, cooling, ventilation and hot water systems must each exceed Standard 90.1-2001 by 



20 percent instead of 16 2/3 percent as directed in Notice 2006-52 sections 2.03 and 2.04. For property placed 



in service after December 31, 2008, taxpayers must meet the updated energy standards of 10/20/20 percent. 



H.R. 5771 The Tax Increase Prevention Act of 2014 was enacted into Law (P.L. 113-295) on December 19, 



2014 extending the §179D Tax Deduction for an additional Year. The Law Amended Code Sec. 179D(h) by 



striking "December 31, 2013" and inserting "December 31, 2014". Effective for property placed in service after 



12-31-2013. No additional changes were made to qualifying percentages or referenced standards. H.R. 2029 



The Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 Became Public Law No: 114-113 on December 18, 2015. The law 



extends Section 179D through the end of 2016 without lapse. The law did modify the energy standard 



requirements for property placed into service in 2016 to ASHRAE 90.1-2007. 
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Calculation of Section 179D Deduction 



Summary of Deduction Calculation 



Based on the energy model calculations, the lighting, HVAC, and envelope systems will qualify as Energy 



Efficient Commercial Building Property. Therefore, the property will qualify for a deduction limited to the cost 



of the qualifying systems. This calculation is based upon a total combined square footage of 98,760. 



Name Square Footage Benefit Rate 179D Deduction 



Health Sciences Center 98,760 $1.80 $177,768.00 



Based on the square footage calculation, limited to the cost of the qualifying systems, the total deduction for 



the buildings will be:  



$177,768.00 
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Energy Reduction Calculations



Calculations were performed in compliance with the requirements of the Performance Rating Method of 



section 3.02 of Notice 2006-52. The Performance Rating Method is used to compute the percentage reduction 



in the total annual energy and power costs with respect to combined usage of a building’s heating, cooling, 



ventilation, hot water, and interior lighting systems as compared to a Reference Building that meets the 



minimum requirements of Standard 90.1-2001. 
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LEED 2009 EA Credit 1 Optimize Energy Performance Summary Report 
Health Sciences Center 
Walker Reid Strategies 



07/31/2018 
02:54PM 



 
Hourly Analysis Program 5.10 Page 2 of 5 



1. REPORT AND PROJECT INFORMATION



General 
Simulation Program Name and Version Hourly Analysis Program 5.10 
Simulation Weather File Name Asheville, North Carolina (TM2) 



Building Designations 
Proposed Building  [P] Proposed 
Baseline - 0° [B000] Baseline 
Baseline - 90° [B090] Baseline 
Baseline - 180° [B180] Baseline 
Baseline - 270° [B270] Baseline 



Space Summary 
Proposed Design Baseline 



Conditioned Floor Area (ft²) 98,760 98,760 
Unconditioned Floor Area (ft²) 0 0 
Total Floor Area (ft²) 98,760 98,760 



2. MINIMUM ENERGY PERFORMANCE CALCULATOR



SHADING AND FENESTRATION 



Building Massing and Zoning 



Above-Grade Wall & Vertical Glazing Areas 



Orientation 



Baseline Design (0° rotation) Proposed Design 
Gross Above- 



Grade Wall Area Vertical Glazing Area Gross Above- 
Grade Wall Area Vertical Glazing Area 



(ft²) (ft²) (% WWR) (ft²) (ft²) (% WWR) 
North 4,052 1,620 40.0 4,052 1,620 40.0 
North-Northeast 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
Northeast 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
East-Northeast 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
East 12,600 5,040 40.0 12,600 5,040 40.0 
East-Southeast 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
Southeast 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
South-Southeast 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
South 4,052 1,620 40.0 4,052 1,620 40.0 
South-Southwest 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
Southwest 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
West-Southwest 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
West 12,600 5,040 40.0 12,600 5,040 40.0 
West-Northwest 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
Northwest 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 
North-Northwest 0 0 0.0 0 0 0.0 



Total 33,304 13,320 40.0 33,304 13,320 40.0 



Roof & Skylight Areas 
Baseline Design (0° rotation) Proposed Design 



Gross Roof Area Skylight Area Gross Roof Area Skylight Area 
(ft²) (ft²) (%) (ft²) (ft²) (%) 



49,380 0 0.0 49,380 0 0.0 



Note: In these tables, roof and skylight surfaces with slope of 60° or more (from horizontal) are treated as walls and vertical glazing, as according to 
ASHRAE 90.1 Section 3. 
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PERFORMANCE OUTPUTS 



Energy Sources 



Energy Type 
Energy 



Consumption 
Units Demand Units Utility Rate Name Utility Rate Structure 



Electric kWh kW North Carolina 
Natural Gas Therm MBH North Carolina 



Performance Rating Method Compliance 



Baseline Energy Summary by End Use 



(1) This form determines compliance using cost calculations from Section 1.9. Process Energy Costs should be modeled to accurately reflect the 
proposed building. Process Energy must be the same in the baseline and proposed cases, unless an exceptional calculation is used. Process energy 
costs must be at least 25% of the total baseline energy costs. Any exceptions must be supported by a narrative and/or other supporting documentation. 
(2) In this project Process Energy is 30.1% of total baseline energy cost. 



Baseline Building Annual Energy Cost by Energy Type 



Energy Type 
Baseline 



(0° rotation) 
($) 



Baseline 
(90° rotation) 



($) 



Baseline 
(180° rotation) 



($) 



Baseline 
(270° rotation) 



($) 
Baseline Design Total 



($) 



Electric kWh 83,750 82,296 83,750 82,296 83,023 
Natural Gas Therm 15,623 14,881 15,625 14,881 15,253 
Baseline Annual Energy Cost 99,373 97,177 99,375 97,177 98,275 



End Use Unregulated 
? 



Baseline Design 
Energy Type 



Units of Annual 
Energy & Peak 



Demand 



Baseline 
(0° 



rotation) 



Baseline 
(90° 



rotation) 



Baseline 
(180° 



rotation) 



Baseline 
(270° 



rotation) 



Baseline 
Design 
Total 



(Average 
of 4 



Rotations) 
Interior Lighting Electric Consumption [kWh] 374,130.6 374,130.6 374,130.6 374,130.6 374,130.6 



Demand [kW] 100.7 100.7 100.7 100.7 100.7 
Space Heating Natural Gas Consumption [Therm] 16,757.8 15,961.7 16,759.7 15,962.1 16,360.3 



Demand [MBH] 3,051.8 2,958.6 3,051.8 2,958.6 3,005.2 
Space Cooling Electric Consumption [kWh] 220,063.1 205,687.6 220,063.0 205,687.7 212,875.4 



Demand [kW] 266.2 257.4 266.2 257.4 261.8 
Pumps Electric Consumption [kWh] 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 



Demand [kW] 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Heat Rejection Electric Consumption [kWh] 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 



Demand [kW] 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Fans - Interior Electric Consumption [kWh] 40,412.5 37,759.6 40,412.5 37,759.6 39,086.0 



Demand [kW] 17.8 17.0 17.8 17.0 17.4 
Receptacle Equipment X Electric Consumption [kWh] 346,070.8 346,070.8 346,070.8 346,070.8 346,070.8 



Demand [kW] 93.2 93.2 93.2 93.2 93.2 



Total energy consumption by energy 
type Electric kWh 980,676.9 963,648.5 980,676.9 963,648.5 972,162.7 



Natural Gas Therm 16,757.8 15,961.7 16,759.7 15,962.1 16,360.3 



 



14 of 46











LEED 2009 EA Credit 1 Optimize Energy Performance Summary Report 
Health Sciences Center 
Walker Reid Strategies 



07/31/2018 
02:54PM 



 
Hourly Analysis Program 5.10 Page 4 of 5 



Proposed Energy Summary by End Use 



End Use Unregulated 
? 



Energy 
Type 



Units of Annual 
Energy and Peak 



Demand 
Baseline Proposed 



Energy / 
Demand 
Savings 
per End 



Use 



End Use 
Percent 



Contribution 
to Total 
Energy 
Savings 



End Use 
Percent 



Contribution 
to Total Cost 



Savings 



Percent of 
Total 



Proposed 
Site Energy 



Consumption 



Interior Lighting Electric Consumption [kWh] 374,131 265,009 29.2 % 17.7 % 26.7 % 31.8 % 
Demand [kW] 100.7 71.4 29.2 % 



Space Heating Natural 
Gas 



Consumption 
[Therm] 16,360 5,034 69.2 % 1.8 % 30.2 % 0.6 % 



Demand [MBH] 3,005.2 1,077.6 64.1 % 
Space Cooling Electric Consumption [kWh] 212,875 54,102 74.6 % 25.7 % 38.8 % 6.5 % 



Demand [kW] 261.8 90.2 65.5 % 
Pumps Electric Consumption [kWh] 0 2,126 n/a -0.3 % -0.5 % 0.3 % 



Demand [kW] 0.0 1.4 n/a 
Heat Rejection Electric Consumption [kWh] 0 0 n/a 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 



Demand [kW] 0.0 0.0 n/a 
Fans - Interior Electric Consumption [kWh] 39,086 19,273 50.7 % 3.2 % 4.8 % 2.3 % 



Demand [kW] 17.4 7.8 55.4 % 
Receptacle 
Equipment X Electric Consumption [kWh] 346,071 346,071 0.0 % 0.0 % 0.0 % 41.5 % 



Demand [kW] 93.2 93.2 0.0 % 



Performance Rating Energy Consumption and Cost by Fuel Type - Performance Rating Method Compliance 



Energy Type 
Site 



Energy 
Units 



Baseline Proposed Percent Savings 
Site Energy Use 
(Units shown per 



energy type) 
Cost($) 



Site Energy Use 
(Units shown per 



energy type) 
Cost ($) Site Energy 



Use Cost 



Electric kWh 972,162.7 83,023 686,582.0 58,634 29.4% 29.4% 
Natural Gas Therm 16,360.3 15,253 5,034.4 4,694 69.2% 69.2% 
Energy Model Subtotal kWh 1,451,656.6 98,275 834,132.4 63,328 42.5% 35.6% 



Unmet Loads 



Unmet Loads 
Baseline Building 



(0° rotation) 
Proposed 
Building Difference 



Number of hours heating loads not met 56 23 +33 
Number of hours cooling loads not met 0 10 -10 
Totals 56 33 +23 
Compliance Yes 
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3. EA CREDIT POINTS REFERENCE TABLE 



ASHRAE Std 90.1-2007 Appendix G Percentage Improvement 



Minimum Energy Cost Savings Percentage for Each Point Threshold 



Project Cost Savings: 35.6% 



 
New Buildings Existing Building 



Renovations 
Points 



(BD+C NC, Schools, 
Retail) 



Points 
(BD+C Core/Shell) 



Points 
(BD+C Healthcare) 



12% 8% 1 3 1 
14% 10% 2 4 2 
16% 12% 3 5 3 
18% 14% 4 6 5 
20% 16% 5 7 7 
22% 18% 6 8 9 
24% 20% 7 9 11 
26% 22% 8 10 13 
28% 24% 9 11 14 
30% 26% 10 12 15 
32% 28% 11 13 16 
34% 30% 12 14 17 
36% 32% 13 15 18 
38% 34% 14 16 19 
40% 36% 15 17 20 
42% 38% 16 18 21 
44% 40% 17 19 22 
46% 42% 18 20 23 
48% 44% 19 21 24 
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  26 USC § 179D 
Energy and Power Cost Savings Calculation 



 
Energy Efficient Commercial Building Property Information: 



Name: Health Sciences Center 
 



 
 
 



The Energy and Power Cost Savings are being Calculated per §3.1 of the NREL Technical Report (NREL/TP-550-40467) Energy Savings 
Modeling and Inspection Guidelines for Commercial Building Federal Tax Deductions. 



§ 3.1 States: 



The energy and 
energy simulati 
included in the 



 
 
peak demand for the interior ligh 



ons, is used to determine the ene 
energy simulations, but the energ 



 
 
ting, HVAC, and SHW systems, as calculated from the hourly annual rgy 
and power  cost  savings. Receptacle, process, and other  loads  are  y and 
power costs associated with these loads are not included in the 



savings calculation. Determining the power cost savings requires knowing the power consumption for the whole building and 
for the interior lighting, HVAC, and SHW systems at the time of the building peak demand for each month. Power costs are 
defined as the monthly peak demand charges and associated taxes and fees. 



Energy and Cost Savings Equations: 
ei,j 



(1) ci,j = E Ci,j 
i,j pi,j 



(2) di,j = P Di,j i,j 



(3) U = ∑ i ∑ j (ci,j + di,j) (4)   
S = (Ur - U𝑝𝑝𝑝𝑝)/Ur × 100 



 
Calculated Energy and Cost Savings Results: 



The results of equation 1 and 2 have been calculated through a DOE approved software energy simulation. 
The software used to simulate the monthly energy costs and combined monthly demand costs based on peak demand is 
HAP v5.10 



(3) U = ∑ i ∑ 
 
j (ci,j + di,j) 



 



Ur = 
 



68,721.14 
 



Up = 33,773.59 
 



(4) S = (Ur - 



S = 



U𝑝𝑝𝑝𝑝)/Ur × 100 



50.85 



 



 
The Calculated Energy and Power Cost Savings of the Proposed Building are compared to an ASHRAE 90.1 Reference 
Building per §179D. 



 
Total Energy and Power Cost Savings: 



 
  50.85%  
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Site Inspection Photographs 



Site inspections were performed as prescribed by Notice 2006-52 and the NREL Inspection Guidelines to 



verify the installation of energy efficient property per design documents. The following are arbitrary photos 



depicting various components used within the energy efficient improvements. On 07/24/2018 site visits to the 



Military Buildings were performed to verify the installation of energy efficient technology. 



 



Figure 1: Partial Elevation of the Building 



 



Figure 2: Energy Efficient Fixtures 



18 of 46











 



 



Figure 3: Ceiling Mounted Motion Sensor 



 



Figure 4: Typical Fixtures throughout Building 



 



 



19 of 46











 



Figure 5: High Energy Efficient Boiler 



 



Figure 6: S-Flex VFR’s 



 



 



20 of 46











 



Figure 7: Air Handler Unit 



 



Figure 8: High Reflectance Roof System 
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 Energy Savings Analysis 



An Energy Savings Comparison Analysis has been provided to explain to the building owners the energy 



efficiency features of the building and its projected annual energy costs in accordance with Notice 2006-52 



Section 4.06. 
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Table 1. Annual Costs 
 
Component 



[B000] Baseline 
($) 



[B090] Baseline 
($) 



[B180] Baseline 
($) 



[B270] Baseline 
($) 



[P] Proposed 
($) 



Air System Fans 3,451 3,225 3,451 3,225 1,646 
Cooling 18,793 17,566 18,793 17,566 4,620 
Heating 15,623 14,881 15,625 14,881 4,694 
Pumps 0 0 0 0 182 
Heat Rejection Fans 0 0 0 0 0 



HVAC Sub-Total 37,868 35,672 37,870 35,672 11,141 
Lights 31,951 31,951 31,951 31,951 22,632 
Electric Equipment 29,554 29,554 29,554 29,554 29,554 
Misc. Electric 0 0 0 0 0 
Misc. Fuel Use 0 0 0 0 0 



Non-HVAC Sub-Total 61,505 61,505 61,505 61,505 52,186 
Grand Total 99,373 97,177 99,375 97,177 63,328 



 



Table 2. Annual Cost per Unit Floor Area 
 
Component 



[B000] Baseline 
($/ft²) 



[B090] Baseline 
($/ft²) 



[B180] Baseline 
($/ft²) 



[B270] Baseline 
($/ft²) 



[P] Proposed 
($/ft²) 



Air System Fans 0.035 0.033 0.035 0.033 0.017 
Cooling 0.190 0.178 0.190 0.178 0.047 
Heating 0.158 0.151 0.158 0.151 0.048 
Pumps 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.002 
Heat Rejection Fans 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 



HVAC Sub-Total 0.383 0.361 0.383 0.361 0.113 
Lights 0.324 0.324 0.324 0.324 0.229 
Electric Equipment 0.299 0.299 0.299 0.299 0.299 
Misc. Electric 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 
Misc. Fuel Use 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 



Non-HVAC Sub-Total 0.623 0.623 0.623 0.623 0.529 
Grand Total 1.006 0.984 1.006 0.984 0.641 



Gross Floor Area (ft²) 98760.0 98760.0 98760.0 98760.0 98760.0 
Conditioned Floor Area (ft²) 98760.0 98760.0 98760.0 98760.0 98760.0 



Note: Values in this table are calculated using the Gross Floor Area. 
 



Table 3. Component Cost as a Percentage of Total Cost 
 
Component 



[B000] Baseline 
(%) 



[B090] Baseline 
(%) 



[B180] Baseline 
(%) 



[B270] Baseline 
(%) 



[P] Proposed 
(%) 



Air System Fans 3.5 3.3 3.5 3.3 2.6 
Cooling 18.9 18.1 18.9 18.1 7.3 
Heating 15.7 15.3 15.7 15.3 7.4 
Pumps 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 
Heat Rejection Fans 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 



HVAC Sub-Total 38.1 36.7 38.1 36.7 17.6 
Lights 32.2 32.9 32.2 32.9 35.7 
Electric Equipment 29.7 30.4 29.7 30.4 46.7 
Misc. Electric 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 
Misc. Fuel Use 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 



Non-HVAC Sub-Total 61.9 63.3 61.9 63.3 82.4 
Grand Total 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 
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Qualified Software Certificate 



The Performance Rating Method calculations certifying that the qualifying property has met the annual energy 



and power costs reductions must be performed by a Department of Energy approved software. The following 



certificate is for Hourly Analysis Program (HAP) v5.10.a DOE Qualified Software in accordance with Notice 



2006-52 Section 6. 
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Tax Deduction Qualified Software for buildings placed in service on or 
after January 1, 2016. 
Carrier HAP 5.10 
On this page you'll find information about the Carrier HAP 5.10 Qualified Software for Calculating Commercial 
Building Tax Deductions | Department of Energy http://energy.gov/eere/buildings/qualified- 
software-calculating-commercial-building-tax-deductions, which calculates energy and power 
cost savings that meet federal tax incentive requirements for commercial buildings. 



 
Date Documentation Received by DOE: November 29, 2017 



 
Statements and information in the right hand column of this table are from the software developer. 



Internal Revenue Code §179D (c)(1) and (d) Regulations Notice 2006-52, Section 6 requirements as amplified 
by Notice 2008-40, Section 4 requirements. 



 



(1) The name, address, and (if 
applicable) web site of the software 
developer; 



Carrier Software Systems 
Bynum Training Center 
P.O. Box 4808 
Syracuse, NY, 13221 USA 



 
http://www.carrier.com/commercial/en/us/software/ 



(2) The name, email address, and 
telephone number of the person to 
contact for further information 
regarding the software; 



Carrier Software Systems 
software.systems@carrier.utc.com 
800-253-1794 



(3) The name, version, or other 
identifier of the software as it will 
appear on the list; 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 



(4) All test results, input files, output 
files, weather data, modeler reports, 
and the executable version of the 
software with which the tests were 
conducted; and 



 
 
Provided to DOE. 



(5) A declaration by the manager in 
charge of software development, 
made under penalties of perjury, 
that all statements and information 
in the right hand column of this table 
are true and correct. 



 
 
On behalf of the Carrier HAP 5.10 development team I certify the 
following: 



 
BUILDING TECHNOLOGIES OFFICE 
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2 
 



 



 



 
 
 



(a) The software has been tested 
according to ANSI/ASHRAE 
Standard 140-2014 Standard 
Method of Test for the Evaluation 
of Building Energy Analysis 
Computer Programs (except for 
sections 5.2.4, 7, and 8); 



 
The software has been tested according to the American National 
Standards Institute/American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air- 
Conditioning Engineers (ANSI/ASHRAE) Standard 140-2014 Standard 
Method of Test for Evaluation of Building Energy Analysis Computer 
Programs. 



(b) The software can model 
explicitly(1)— 



Carrier HAP 5.10 is fully compliant with ASHRAE 90.1-2007 and meets 
all of the below requirements. 



(i) 8,760 hours per year; Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(ii) Calculation methodologies 
for the building components 
being modeled; 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(iii) Hourly variations in 
occupancy, lighting power, 
miscellaneous equipment 
power, thermostat setpoints, 
and HVAC system operation, 
defined separately for each 
day of the week and holidays; 



 
 
 
Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(iv) Thermal mass effects; Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(v) Ten or more thermal 
zones; 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(vi) Part-load performance 
curves for mechanical 
equipment; 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(vii) Capacity and efficiency 
correction curves for 
mechanical heating and 
cooling equipment; and 



 



Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(viii) Air-side and water-side 
economizers with integrated 
control. 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(c) The software can explicitly model each of the following HVAC systems listed in Appendix G of Standard 
90.1-2007(1): 



 
 
 



1 90.1-2007 is defined by the PATH Act of 2015 as "Standard 90.1–2007 of ASHRAE and IESNA (as in effect on 
the day before the date of the adoption of Standard 90.1–2010 of such Societies)." This definition includes 
90.1-2007 and the addenda supplement package (Addenda a, b, c, g, h, i, j, k, l, m, n, p, q, s, t, u, w, y, ad, 
and aw) and addendum r, plus all published errata. 
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(i) Packaged Terminal Air 
Conditioner (PTAC), constant 
volume (CV) fan, DX coil 
cooling, hot-water fossil fuel 
boiler. 



 
 
Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(ii) Packaged Terminal Heat 
Pump (PTHP), CV fan, DX coil 
cooling, electric heat pump 
heating. 



 



Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(iii) Packaged Rooftop Air 
Conditioner (PSZ-AC), CV fan, 
DX coil cooling, fossil fuel 
furnace heating. 



 



Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(iv) Packaged Rooftop Heat 
Pump (PSZ-HP), CV fan, DX 
coil cooling, electric heat pump 
heating. 



 



Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(v) Packaged Rooftop Variable- 
Air-Volume (PVAV) with 
reheat, Variable-Air-Volume 
(VAV) fans, DX coil cooling, 
hot-water fossil fuel boiler. 



 
 
Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(vi) Packaged VAV with parallel 
fan-powered boxes (PVAV with 
PFP boxes) with reheat, VAV 
fans, DX coil cooling, electric 
resistance heating. 



 
 
Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(vii) Packaged Rooftop VAV 
with reheat, VAV fans, chilled 
water cooling, hot-water fossil 
fuel boiler. 



 



Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(viii) VAV with PFP boxes with 
reheat, VAV fans, chilled water 
cooling, electric resistance 
heating. 



 



Carrier HAP 5.10 models this system. 



(d) The software can— 



(i) Either directly determine 
energy and power costs or 
produce hourly reports of 
energy use by energy source 
suitable for determining 
energy and power costs 
separately; and 



 
 
 
Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 
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(ii) Design load calculations to 
determine required HVAC 
equipment capacities and air 
and water flow rates. 



 



Carrier HAP 5.10 complies. 



(e) The software can explicitly model: 



 
(i) Natural ventilation. Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model natural ventilation and shall not be used 



for projects with this technology. 



(ii) Mixed mode (natural and 
mechanical) ventilation. 



Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model mixed mode (natural and mechanical) 
ventilation and shall not be used for projects with this technology. 



(iii) Earth tempering of 
outdoor air. 



Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model earth tempering of outdoor air and shall 
not be used for projects with this technology. 



 
(iv) Displacement ventilation. Carrier HAP 5.10 can model displacement ventilation by equivalent 



means. 



 
(v) Evaporative cooling. Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model evaporative cooling and shall not be 



used for projects with this technology. 



(vi) Water use by occupants 
for cooking, cleaning or other 
domestic uses. 



Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model water use by occupants for cooking, 
cleaning or other domestic uses and shall not be used for projects with 
this technology. 



(vii) Water use by heating, 
cooling, or other equipment, or 
for on-site landscaping. 



Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model water use by heating, cooling or other 
equipment or for on-site landscaping and shall not be used for projects 
with this technology. 



 
(viii) Automatic interior or 
exterior lighting controls (such 
as occupancy, photocells, or 
time-clocks). 



Carrier HAP 5.10 can explicitly model automatic interior or exterior 
lighting controls such as occupancy sensors or time clocks. 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model photocell automatic interior or exterior 
lighting controls and shall not be used for projects with this technology. 



(ix) Daylighting (sidelighting, 
skylights, or tubular daylight 
devices). 



Carrier HAP 5.10 can model daylighting (sidelighting, skylights, or 
tubular daylight devices) through the use of equivalent lighting 
schedules. 



(x) Improved fan system 
efficiency through static 
pressure reset. 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 can model static pressure reset through the application 
of user-defined fan part-load curves. 



(xi) Radiant heating or cooling 
(low or high temperature). 



Carrier HAP 5.10 can model radiant heating or cooling (low or high 
temperature) by equivalent means. 
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(xii) Multiple or variable-speed 
control for fans, cooling 
equipment, or cooling towers. 



Carrier HAP 5.10 explicitly models variable speed control for fans, 
cooling equipment and cooling towers. 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 explicitly models multiple speed fans for cooling 
towers. 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 explicitly models multiple speed control for indoor fans 
or cooling equipment. 



(xiii) On-site energy systems 
(such as combined heat and 
power systems, fuel cells, 
solar photovoltaic, solar 
thermal, or wind). 



 
Carrier HAP 5.10 cannot model on-site energy systems (such as 
combined heat and power systems, fuel cells, solar photovoltaic, solar 
thermal or wind) and shall not be used for projects with this technology. 



Date Posted: November 29, 2017 
 



2 Software that cannot explicitly model one or more of the HVAC systems or features in sections 5.c and 5.e of 
the table can still be listed as qualified software. It cannot, however, be used for 179D analyses of projects that 
need to model such systems or features. When this is the case, the statement used for the particular 
requirements shall be as follows: AAA EnergySoftware cannot model system or feature X and shall not be used 
for projects with this technology. 



 
 



James Pegues 
Manager, eDesign Software Development 
Carrier Corporation 
Room 400A, Bldg TR-4 
P.O. Box 4808 
Syracuse, NY, 13221 
james.f.pegues@carrier.utc.com 
Voice: 315-432-6526 
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Manufacturer Specifications of Energy Efficient Property 



Manufacturer Specifications have been provided in order to list and identify the components of the energy 



efficient property in accordance with Notice 2006-52 Section 4.08. 
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SYLVANIA OCTRON 28 Watt XP SUPERSAVER ECOLOGIC3 lamps operate 



• 28 Watt, 4-foot, SUPERSAVER energy 
saving, T8 lamp 



• 12.5% energy savings compared to 
standard 32W T8 lamp 



• A member of the SYLVANIA 
ECOLOGIC3 family of lamps 



• 2,725 initial lumens (850 is 2,600) 
• 94% lumen maintenance at 40% of 



rated life 
• 3000K, 3500K, 4100K & 5000K 
• 85 CRI (850 is 80 CRI) 
• Dimmable (see application note 4) 



• Retrofit lamp for existing T8 instant 
start systems 
– 24,000 hours average rated life @ 



3 hrs per start 
– 36,000 hours average rated life @ 



12 hrs per start 
• Approved on OSRAM SYLVANIA QUICK- 



TRONIC® PSX and PSN ballasts 
– 36,000 hours average rated life @ 



3 hrs per start 
– 42,000 hours average rated life @ 



12 hrs per start 



on standard T8 instant start systems and provide 12.5% energy sav- 
ings over standard 32 Watt OCTRON lamps. At 10¢/kWh and 4,000 
hours of operation per year, the 12.5% savings translates to a savings 
of $6.40 per fixture per year for a 4-lamp fixture with a normal ballast 
factor, instant start ballast. The 94% lumen maintenance of the 
OCTRON FO28/800XP/SS/ECO3 lamp assures that light levels are 
maintained while energy is saved. These lamps pass the Federal TCLP 
test, classifying them as non-hazardous waste in most states. Group 
re-lamp to realize the benefits of these OCTRON lamps in your facility. 



 
SYLVANIA OCTRON T8 ECOLOGIC3 fluorescent lamps pass 
the Federal Toxicity Characteristic Leaching Procedure (TCLP1) 
criteria for classification as non-hazardous waste in most states.2 



ECOLOGIC3 represents a more comprehensive approach to 
sustainability encompassing high efficiency, long life and 
RoHS/TCLP compliance. 
1. TCLP test results are based on NEMA LL Series standards 



and are available on request. 
2. Lamp disposal regulations may vary; check your local & state regulations. 



 
 
 



 



 
 



 



 



 



 
Applications 



• Hospitals 
• Industrial 
• Office 
• Retail 
• Schools 
• Many applications 



with T8 instant start 
ballasts currently 
using 32W T8 lamps 



 
Fixtures 



Contact your local fixture 
agent for available fixtures. 



FL062R9 2/10 



Application Information 



OCTRON® 28W XP® SUPERSAVER® ECOLOGIC®3 
EXtended Performance Fluorescent Lamps 



Key Features & Benefits 



www.sylvania.com 



Product Offering 



Lamp Type Wattage CCT CRI 
FO28/830XP/SS/ECO3 28 3000K 85 
FO28/835XP/SS/ECO3 28 3500K 85 
FO28/841XP/SS/ECO3 28 4100K 85 
FO28/850XP/SS/ECO3 28 5000K 80 
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Application Notes 



1. Recommended to be 
used on T8 F32 
Instant or 
Programmed Start 
ballasts with 
minimum open circuit 
voltage of 550V 
RMS at the lamp. 
a. Electronically 



ballasted fixture 
configurations 
which operate 
lamps remotely, 
such as 
Master/Satellite 
applications, can 
cause reduction of 
lamp open circuit 
voltage, in the 
remote fixture, 
below the minimum 
required for reliable 
lamp starting. For 
more information, 
please call 1-800-
LIGHTBULB and 
ask for Ballast 
Technical 
Assistance or call 
your fixture 
manufacturer. 



b. Not recommended 
to be used: (1) in 
remotely ballasted 
fixtures with lamp 
open circuit 
voltages below 
550V, (2) with Rapid 
Start ballasts unless 
the lamp open circuit 
voltage is greater 
than 570V, (3) in air 
handling fixtures, (4) 
on low power factor 
bal- lasts or (5) 
inverter operated 
emergency lighting 
systems unless any 
of the above 
equipment is 
specifically listed for 
28 watt lamps. Any 
of the above 
situations could 
result in lamp 
starting and 
stabilization 



problems or system compatibility issues. 
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Lamp(s) shall be OCTRON® 28W XP® SUPER- 
SAVER® ECOLOGIC®3 4-foot lamp(s) having 
medium bi-pin bases. Lamp(s) shall be de- 
signed to pass the Federal TCLP test in force at 
the time of manufacture. Lamp(s) shall have an 
average rated life of 24,000 hours at 3 hours 
per start when operated on T8 instant start 
ballasts, 2,725 initial lumens (2,600 for 
5000K), 94% lumen maintenance at 40% of 
rated life, a correlated color temperature of 
(3000K, 3500K, 4100K or 5000K) and a CRI 
of (80, 85). The OCTRON SUPERSAVER ECO- 
LOGIC3 lamp(s) shall be operated on QUICK- 
TRONIC® electronic, high frequency ballasts 
with complete system warranty from the 
manufacturer covering lamps and ballast. 



 
 



Warranty Information 
QUICK 60+® warranty for OSRAM SYLVANIA 
lamp and ballast combination 
Limited 36 month lamp warranty and a five 
year ballast warranty is possible if both lamps 
and ballast are provided by OSRAM SYLVANIA. 
See the QUICK 60+ warranty for details and 
restrictions. 



 
 
 
 



 



 
 
 
 



          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          



          



 
 
 



Application Notes 



2. If an operating lamp is exposed to drafts and/or the ambient temperature falls below 60°F, striation (a rhythmic puls- 
ing pattern of light running down the tube) and/or reduction in lamp brightness may occur. While visually disconcert- 
ing, neither behavior is damaging to the lamp and removing the cause (draft or temperature) will return the lamp to 
normal operation. 



3. Fixture must conform to ANSI C78.81 – 2005 requirements for luminaire design. 
4. Contact OSRAM SYLVANIA for approved dimming ballasts. 



SYLVANIA, ECOLOGIC, OCTRON, QUICK 60+, SUPERSAVER and XP are registered trademarks of OSRAM SYLVANIA Inc. 
SEE THE WORLD IN A NEW LIGHT is a registered trademark of OSRAM SYLVANIA Inc.  
QUICKTRONIC is a registered trademark of OSRAM GmbH. 



United States 
OSRAM SYLVANIA 
100 Endicott Street 
Danvers, MA 01923 



Trade 
Phone: 1-800-255-5042 
Fax: 1-800-255-5043 



National Accounts 
Phone: 1-800-562-4671 
Fax: 1-800-562-4674 



OEM/Special Markets 
Phone: 1-800-762-7191 
Fax: 1-800-762-7192 



Display/Optic 
Phone: 1-888-677-2627 
Fax: 1-800-762-7192 



Canada 
OSRAM SYLVANIA LTD. 
2001 Drew Road 
Mississauga, ON L5S 1S4 



Trade 
Phone: 1-800-263-2852 
Fax: 1-800-667-6772 



OEM/Special Markets/Display/Optic 
Phone: 1-800-265-2852 
Fax: 1-800-667-6772 



 
www.sylvania.com 



Sample Specification 
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Application Information (continued) 
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Ordering Guide 



Ordering Information 
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Item 
Number 



Ordering 
Abbreviation 



 
Watts 



 
Bulb 



 
Base 



Initial 
Lumens 



 
lm/W 



Mean 
Lumens1 



Avg. Rated 
Life (hrs.)2 



 
CCT 



 
CRI 



22177 FO28/830XP/SS/ECO3 28 T8 Medium bi-pin 2,725 97 2,562 36,000 3000K 85 
22178 FO28/835XP/SS/ECO3 28 T8 Medium bi-pin 2,725 97 2,562 36,000 3500K 85 
22179 FO28/841XP/SS/ECO3 28 T8 Medium bi-pin 2,725 97 2,562 36,000 4100K 85 
22184 FO28/850XP/SS/ECO3 28 T8 Medium bi-pin 2,600 93 2,444 36,000 5000K 80 
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Commercial 



LIGHTING CONTROLS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Titan™ 



Dimmers 
Sensors Timers 



 



Automated Energy Savings for Business 
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WDT100 



  Sensors  



    Occupancy sensors and other lighting controls can reduce lighting energy usage up to 52%. 
Pass & Seymour offers a complete selection of occupancy and vacancy sensors that help you 
meet the requirements of ASHRAE, IECC, and California Title 24 codes. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CSU600 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CSD1000 



Ceiling-Mount Passive Infrared Sensors 
Ideal for open offices, conference and computer rooms, 
kitchenettes and any open space without partitions. 
Detects infrared (heat) energy changes and responds 
within milliseconds. 
Up to 500 square feet of coverage (CS500); up to 1,200 
square feet of coverage (CS1200). 
CS1200 available in line voltage model. 



Ceiling-Mount Passive Ultrasonic Sensors 
Use in restrooms, storage areas, conference rooms 
and partitioned spaces. 
Can detect smaller movements than passive infrared 
technology. 
Up to 600 square feet of coverage (CSU600); up to 
1,100 square feet of coverage (CSU1100), up to 2,200 
square feet of coverage (CSU2200). 



 
Ceiling-Mount Passive Dual-Technology Sensor 



Best for rooms with little motion for extended periods 
of time including classrooms, libraries, and reading 
rooms. 
Combines both passive infrared and ultrasonic 
technologies for more accurate sensing. 
Up to 1,0000 square feet of coverage. 
CSD1000 available in line voltage model. 



Dual Technology Wall Box Sensor 
Combines passive infrared and ultrasonic 
technologies for high sensitivity and dense coverage 
up to 1,050 square feet. 
Limits false ON and OFF triggers. 
WDT200 provides bi-level control of two loads 
independently from the same box. 



 



 
WA1001 



 
 
 
 



PT WSP250 
 



OS300S 
 



OSR300S 



Passive Infrared Hallway & Wide-Angle Sensors 
For hallways, corridors, or long, rectangular rooms 
(HS1001); for wide areas such as conference rooms, 
cafeterias, foyers, and entrance vestibules (WA1001). 
Surface mount on either wall or ceiling – HS1001 
and WA1001 can be used in combination. 
90 linear feet of coverage, long-range sensor, 
adjustable time delay (HS1001); 1,200 square feet 
of coverage, wide-angle sensor, adjustable time 
delay (WA1001). 



PlugTail™ Commercial Wall Box Sensor 
Use in small offices, utility rooms and janitor closets. 
No minimum load; adjustable time delay and 
sensitivity. 
900 square feet of coverage; use with all common 
lighting sources. 
Non PlugTail version (WSP250) also available. 



Wall Sensor 
Use in reception rooms, interview rooms or any 
irregular use rooms. 
Manual and auto-on; occupancy/vacancy operation 
configurable; self-adaptive technology adjusts time 
delay to automatically save the most energy. 
1050 square feet of major-motion coverage. 300 
square feet of minor-motion coverage. 



Bi-Level Wall Sensor 
Use in offices without partitions, and conference, file 
and storage rooms. 
Bi-level switching handles both circuits of a bi-level 
lighting system; self adaptive. 
1050 square feet of major-motion coverage. 300 
square feet of minor-motion coverage. 



 



 
Pass & Seymour Timers ensure that any lights in storage areas, utility 
rooms, restrooms, spas, and pool areas are on only as long as needed. 
Choose from a complete selection of digital and mechanical styles. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RT1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RT12 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RT24 



7-Button Digital Timer 
Digital operation with preset 
push-buttons for 1-, 5-, 10-, 
20-, 30- and 60-minute 
intervals. 
LED light indicates time 
selected. 



 
12-Hour Digital Timer 



Manual ON up to 12-hour 
interval to OFF. 
Audible alarm or flash 
warns occupants 
before automatic OFF. 



 
 



24-Hour Programmable 
Timer 



Manual or programmed ON/OFF 
switching. 
Eight programs can be assigned 
to any day or combination of days 
of the week. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



97352 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



97015 



Dual Toggle Timer 
Provides light and fan 
control in a single-gang box. 
ON/OFF light switch plus 
and adjustable fan time up 
to 60 minutes. 



 
 



Mechanical Timers 
Timed OFF and Hold-ON 
or (no hold) function. 
15-minute ON, 
30-minute ON, 
60-minute ON. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Timers 
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Whatever your lighting control needs, 
you can count on Pass & Seymour to be 
the one that works for you for selection, 
style, performance, durability, and value. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



For additional technical or application-specific 
information, call 800-223-4185 or visit our website at 
www.legrand.us/passandseymour. Put our expertise 
to work for you. 



 
 
 



 



 



 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 



BR1733   0512  ©2012, Legrand/Pass & Seymour  EWS/CGXTP  



USA 
P.O. Box 4822 
Syracuse, NY 13221-4822 
800-776-4035 
www.legrand.us/passandseymour 



Canada 
570 Applewood Crescent 
Vaughan, ON, L4K 4B4 
905-738-9195 



Pass & Seymour products contribute to and help 
support the objectives of the U.S. Green Building 
Council, an organization representing more than 
10,000 organizations from all segments of the 
building industry that developed the LEED rating 
system and which continues to guide its evolution. 
Pass & Seymour representatives are trained (and in 
some instances LEED-certified) to provide consultation 
on sustainable design. 



 
Pass & Seymour products meet ASHRAE, IECC, and 
California Title 24 code requirements. 



 
Pass & Seymour embraces a multi-level approach to sustainable 
design through: 



LEAN MANUFACTURING & WASTE REDUCTION 
• Total waste reduction in all aspects of manufacturing 
• One-piece flow maintains quality assurance on a per 



piece basis – eliminates unnecessary raw material 
consumption. 



• Inventory aligned to demand/usage – reduces holding 
costs and space. 



• Use of recycled and post consumer materials in 
manufacturing and packaging. 



• ISO14001 Certification. 



SITE & INSTALLATION BENEFITS 
• Local sourcing – reduces delivery costs and 



environmental impact from emissions. 
• Bulk packaging – to reduce on-site packaging waste. 



 
PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT BENEFITS 



• Implementing sustainable product development 
guidelines. 



• LEED-certified engineers and product managers. 
• Employing Life Cycle Analysis/Environmental 



Impact design tool. 
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S-Flex™ 212 
Adjustable Speed Enclosed Drive 



 
 
 



Instruction Bulletin 
30072-451-83 
Rev. 02 12/2012 
Retain for future use. 



 
 



 
™ 
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S-Flex™ Adjustable Speed Enclosed Drive 30072-451-83 
 



 



Rev. 02, 12/2012 Section 1—Introduction and Technical Characteristics 
 



Catalog Number Description The catalog number, located on the nameplate attached to the S-Flex drive, 
is coded to describe the configuration of the drive. See Figure 1 on page 12 
for an example of the S-Flex nameplate. 



Use Table 2 to translate the catalog number into a description of the drive. 
The following example translates the catalog number shown on the 
nameplate in Figure 1 on page 12. 



 
Table 1: Catalog Number Example: SFD212CG4YX07 



Field 
 



01 02 03 04 05 



 
SFD212 



C G 4 Y 



1 hp Type 1 
General Purpose 460 Vac Full Voltage 



Bypass 



 
Table 2: Catalog Number Description 



 



Field Digit Characteristic Description 



01 01 – 05 Controller Style SFD212 = S-Flex 212 Enclosed Drive 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
02 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
06 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Horsepower 



C = 1 hp 
D = 2 hp 
E = 3 hp 
F = 5 hp 
G = 7.5 hp 
H = 10 hp 
J = 15 hp 
K = 20 hp 
L = 25 hp 
M = 30 hp 
N = 40 hp 
P = 50 hp (460 V only) 
Q = 60 hp (460 V only) 
R = 75 hp (460 V only) 
S = 100 hp (460 V only) 



03 07 Enclosure Type G = Type 1 General Purpose 



 
04 



 
08 



 
Voltage 



2 = 208 Vac 
3 = 230 Vac 
4 = 460 Vac 



05 09 Power Circuit W = Without Bypass 
Y = Full Voltage Bypass 



 
 



06 



 
 



010 – 012 



 
 
Communication 
Set-Up Options 



A06 = BACnet Card 
B06 = LonWorks® Card 
C06 = Metasys® N2 Card 
D06 = Apogee™ P1 Card 
N06 = Modbus 



 
 



07 



 
 



013 – 015 



 
 
Miscellaneous 
Options 



A07 = Drive Input Disconnect1 



B07 = Line Contactor1 



S07 = Seismic Certification 
D07 = Full Text Keypad 
X07 = AC Line Reactor 



1 Options A07 Drive Input Disconnect and B07 Line Contactor are available only when a full 
voltage bypass (Y05) option is selected. Options A07 and B07 are mutually exclusive. 
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S-Flex™ Adjustable Speed Enclosed Drive 30072-451-83 



 



 



 



Section 1—Introduction and Technical Characteristics Rev. 02, 12/2012 



Nameplate Identification The nameplate for the S-Flex enclosed drive is located on the inside of the 
door. See Figure 1. The nameplate identifies the drive type and modification 
options. When identifying or describing the S-Flex enclosed drive, use the 
data from the nameplate. 



Figure 1: S-Flex 212 Nameplate Example 



SQUARE D ATV212 S-FLEX 
 
 
 
 



Part Number 
(S-Flex) 



 
Permissible 



Input Voltage 
 
 



Overcurrent 



 
 
 
 
 
 



INPUT 



ENCLOSED DRIVE CONTROLLER 
 



 



 
CY 



 



  
 



  



 
LISTED 
IND. CONT. EQ. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Product Bar Code Here 



 
 



ATV212 
Power Converter 
Model Number 



 
Input Current and 
Coordinated Short 
Circuit Rating 



 
 



Horsepower/ 
Kilowatt Rating 



Protective 
Device (OCPD) 



Identification 



CIRCUIT BREAKER TRANSFORMER FUSES CLASS CC, 600 V, TIME-DELAY 
 



     
POWER FUSES ENCLOSURE    OVERLOAD RELAY WIRE TYPE / TEMPERATURE 



 
 



Line 
Terminations 
(wire size and 
torque) 



CLASS 10 



POWER WIRING LINE LOAD 



REFERENCE MANUALS 



Enclosure 
Enviromental 
Rating 



Load Terminations 
(wire size and 
terminal torques) 



FO NUMBER / Q2C CODE 
50015325003 



MANUFACTURED IN MEXICO  009  



 
 
 
 



68331 



 
 
 
 



80462 - 012 - 01 Rev - 



 
Factory Order 
Number (Q2C) and 
Item Number 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AMPS 2.1 



HP / KW 1 / 0.75 



HLL36015LV 22 kA PRIMARY 1 - 1/2 AMPS SECONDARY 2 AMPS 



SER A 



MOD NO6 



TYPE 1 



S1A53838: ATV212 Startup Guide 30072-451-83: S-Flex Manual 



TORQUE lb-in 



15 



AWG 



#14 - #8 



TORQUE lb-in 



30 



AWG 



#14 - 4 



CU 75° C 



1.4 AMPS AT 100 KA SC RATING 



TYPE SFD212CG4Y 



POWER CONVERTER ATV212HO75N4 



VOLTS 460 ± 10 % PH 3 Hz 50/60 



OUTPUT AT 12 KHz SWITCHING FREQUEN 
VOLTS 0-460 ± 10 % PH 3 Hz 0-60 
OVERLOAD CAPACITY  AMPS FOR 60 S 



 



Class CC 7 A 200 kA 
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H I G H E F F I C I E N C Y C O M M E R C I A L B O I L E R S  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
WITH MODBUS PROTOCOL, 
CASCADING SEQUENCER AND 
FRONT-END LOADING CAPABILITY 



 
7 INPUTS FROM 1.5 TO 5.0 MILLION BTU/HR 



FIRING RATE MODULATION UP TO 25:1 



DIRECT-VENT FLEXIBILITY TO 100 FEET 



FLEXIBLE FLOW RATES UP TO 350 GPM 
Up To 99% 
Thermal Efficiency 
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Fire Tube Innovation up to 5.0 Million BTU 
Lochinvar® has taken the fire-tube concept  in  an  innovative  new  direction  with  the  CREST® 



modulating-condensing boiler. With sizes that range from 1.5 to 5.0 million Btu/hr, you have 



the opportunity to utilize Lochinvar leading-edge technology in your largest applications. With  



thermal   efficiencies   up   to   99%   in   low   water   temperature   applications,   CREST is 



positioned to provide exceptional energy-saving performance. 



The advanced CREST introduces a combustion system with a unique burner design with up to 25:1 



turndown. The burner fires into an array of 316L stainless steel fire-tubes that transfer the heat to 



the surrounding water with exceptionally high efficiency. 



CREST communicates seamlessly and in real time with building management systems by utilizing 



an on-board MODBUS protocol. The SMART TOUCH™ control has a built-in cascading component 



that communicates with up to eight units, providing total command without an external control 



or complex and expensive control logic programming by the BMS integrator. 



Yes, innovative fire-tube boiler technology integrated with our SMART TOUCH™ operating control 



makes the CREST a genuine game-changer among commercial boilers. 



 
 
 



Adv  nc ga ive R lation Technology 
CREST safely and reliably operates with supply gas pressure as low as 4 inches water column. Because Negative 
Regulation (Neg/Reg) technology draws fuel gas into a pre-mix combustion system instead of relying on utility 
pressure through the gas valve, operation is steady in low gas pressure systems or when peak demands occur 
on supply lines. Plus, Neg/Reg automatic fan speed control fine-tunes the correct fuel/air ratio entering the 
burner, providing even, consistent combustion for a cleaner burning flame achieving high combustion efficiency. 



F lly ul tin to 25:1 Turndown 
25:1 turndown means the burner can fire at a rate as low as 4% of its maximum input. For example, a 2 million 
Btu/hr CREST unit can modulate from 80,000 up to 2,000,000 Btu/hr depending on demand. High turndown 
greatly reduces “short cycling” when demand is low. All boiler systems are designed to provide enough heat 
to maintain a facility’s heat loss on the coldest days. When the system is zoned, the CREST’s high turndown 
works to match the actual system demand and, in return, reduces the customer’s fuel bill and provides 
better comfort by load matching the heat loss of the system. Greater seasonal efficiencies will be realized 
due to the extremely large turndown offered by CREST. 



As L A 25 G to Full 350 GPM Flow Rates 
CREST allows system designers tremendous flexibility to vary the flow rate through the boiler. It can 
service systems that operate with widely fluctuating flow rates depending on demand. CREST can be 
installed with primary/secondary piping or in a full-flow arrangement. Typical design techniques 
include full-flow systems or variable flow systems using variable frequency drives on the heating 
water pumps. In either case, CREST excels in these applications and allows the flow through the 
boiler to vary based on system demand. 



* 25 GPM min. flow on FB1500-3000 models, 45 GPM on FB3500-4000 modelsd 50 GPM on FB5000. 41 of 46











 



 



T REST C m ust ystem 
CREST’s top-mounted, single micro metal fiber burner is actually 



“two combustion systems in one,” each with its own blower/gas valve assembly 
to power the combustion process from air/gas intake to driving heat energy down 
and through the fire-tubes to exhaust venting through the bottom of the unit. 



In a 2 io BTU/H CREST Boiler 
The upper portion of the burner fires first and, with 5:1 turndown, 
modulates from 80,000 to 400,000 Btu/hr. 



When demand exceeds 400,000 Btu/hr., the lower portion of 
the burner fires and modulates from 320,000 to 1,600,000 Btu/hr. 



With the entire burner firing at capacity, the total input is 400,000 + 
1,600,000 = 2,000,000 Btu/hr. 



The CREST’s patent-pending dual-system design is truly an industry first! 



Th C EST Heat hanger 
Heat energy and combustion products flow 
downward into fire-tubes from the burner. 



Energy from inside fire-tubes heats water flowing 
through the heating vessel. 



As water is heated, it flows up through the 
heating vessel and out into the system. 



Cold water returning from the system enters 
the heating vessel to maximize efficiency. 



Condensate is drained into a stainless steel 
collector, to be piped to a suitable floor drain. 



The flue outlet is located atthe bottom of the unit. 



ui -in C ading Sequencer 
Sequences up to an 8-boiler system using simple 2-wire daisy-chain connection, 



eliminating cost and uncertainty of separate “third party” sequencer. On demand, one 
boiler functions as the leader and modulates to capacity. Increasing load then 
“cascades” to additional “lag” boilers in sequence as needed. Lead-lag rotation shifts 
“first on” boiler role every 24 hours, distributing equal lead-lag runtimes to each unit. 



CREST ’s ability to sequence up to eight units that each have as much as 25:1 
turndown means that the combined system has the potential of operating with 
modulation of up to 200:1 turndown. A bank of eight 2.0M Btu CRESTs would be 
able to provide as little as 80,000 Btu/hr and as much as 16,000,000 Btu/hr of 
heating output. In addition, the CREST Cascade can be set for "Efficiency Optimization" 
with each boiler firing at the same low BTU/hr input rates to receive the benefits of 
the highest thermal efficiency. 
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Un ua  on ro  Monitoring 
Fu cti s Tha Ar s to Use 
The CREST features Lochinvar’s popular, all-in-one SMART TOUCH™ 
operating control. Amplified with an 8-inch touchscreen, the multi-color 
interface offers the best info-graphics and visual control content in the boiler 
industry today. It is smartly dressed with distinctive features and control 
parameters. It provides the operator with outstanding functionality, ease of 
operation and customized data retrieval. The CREST’s SMART TOUCH control 
can be integrated directly into a Building Automation System via ModBus 
protocol and other communication protocols via a gateway device. 



 



 
MODBUS COMMUNICATION 



 



BUILDING MANAGEMENT SYSTEM CONTROL 



PC CONNECTION 



OUTDOOR RESET 
 



NIGHT TEMPERATURE SETBACK 
 



HOT WATER GENERATOR COMPATIBILITY 



SYSTEM AND BOILER PUMP CONTROLS 



FREEZE PROTECTION 



PRODUCT SERVICE DUE INDICATOR 



PASSWORD SECURITY 



 



 
Direct-Venting up to 100 Feet 
CREST offers 6 venting options and tremendous flexibility for placement of units within the building, because it permits direct-vent air intake 
and exhaust runs up to 100 equivalent feet using AL29-4C stainless steel (Category IV) vent pipe. Intake and exhaust runs can terminate 
horizontally through a sidewall or vertically through the roof. Additionally, CREST boilers installed in multiples of 2 or more can be common- 
vented, eliminating much of the time and material cost of venting multiple boilers individually. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Room Air Vertical Room Air Sidewall Direct-Vent 
Sidewall 



*Contact Lochinvar for information on common venting of CREST boilers. 



Common-Vent*  Direct-Vent 
Vertical 



 



Vertical w/Sidewall Air 



198°F 



54°F 140°F 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



O’ Young 
Lochiinvar 



80°F 
 
80°F 
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T I du s F rst TM Fire-Tube 
i er  s A so the stry’s Best 



 
Through an extensive research and d sign program Lochinvar has 



taken fire-tube boiler technology to a 



features the Wave™ 316L stainless 



ew level. The CREST® boiler 



teel fire-tube. Each CREST 



Fire Tube has a larger input capacity t an other industry fire-tubes, 



which means fewer tubes and welds. This exclusive, new design 



provides superior heat transfer in ev ry fire-tube 



 
The Wave™ fire-tube em   oys a unique wave pattern 



that creates turbulence as the flue gas products flow 



down the tube, scrubbing the energy from the flue 



products. The Wave™ des    n also enhances the life of 



the heat exchanger by all  wing the fire-tubes to flex, 



operating stress-free with 



suffered by traditional fire 



one of the adverse effects 



ube boilers. 



Each fire-tube is welded into the heat exchanger vessel and 



surrounded by water. The heat transfer process is enhanced by 



the water’s counterflow. As the water flows up inside the vessel, 



the super-heated flue products flow down the fire-tube. With one 



pass, the heat is effectively captu ed from the flue products 



reaching condensing temperatures. 



the combustion chamber is also 



heat transfer. 



At the to of the vessel, 



ater-backed for additional 



 
Finally, the CREST heat exchanger can operate with flow ates 



from as low as 25 GPM* to 350 GPM, comfortably suited to a 



wide variety of boiler system desig 



 
* 25 GPM min. flow on FB1500-3000 mo 
models and 50 GPM on FB5000. 



. 
 



ls, 45 GPM on FB3500-4000 
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Crest®
®



Boiler Dimensions and Specifications 
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Crest Heating Boiler Dimensions and Specifications 
 



 FBN1500 60 1,500    92.0% 1,380 1,200 25:1 30-3/4 71-1/2 65-3/4 14-3/8 22-3/8 8-1/2 25-1/4 7-1/4 72-5/8 77-5/8 1-1/2 7 7 2,496 1,900 
 FBN2000 80 2,000    92.0% 1,840 1,600 25:1 30-3/4 71-1/8 65-1/8 14-7/8 22-3/8 8-1/4 25-3/8 5-3/4 71-7/8 76-7/8 1-1/2 8 8 3,054 2,150 
 FBN2500 125 2,500    92.0% 2,300 2,000 20:1 34-1/4 76-3/8 70-1/4 17-3/4 26-1/8 9-3/4 27-3/8 6-1/4 78 83 2 8 9 3,652 2,560 
 FBN3000 150 3,000    92.0% 2,760 2,400 20:1 40-1/2 83-5/8 76-3/8 17-3/8 31-3/8 9-7/8 34-3/4 8-1/2 82-1/8 87-1/8 2 10 10 4,126 2,920 



 FBN3500 200 3,500   92.0% 3,220 2,800 18:1* 40-1/2 83-1/4 75-5/8 17-1/4 31-3/8 9-7/8 34-3/4 7-1/4 81-1/8 86-1/8 2 10 10 4,744 3,225 
 FBN4000 335 4,000    93.0% 3,720 3,235 12:1 53-1/2 109 100-3/4 31-1/4 40-3/4 14-1/2 45-3/4 12-1/2 109-1/4 108-1/4 2-1/2 12 12 6,900 4,750 



 FBN5000 500 5,000   93.0% 4,650 4,043 10:1      53-1/2  109 100-3/4 28 40-3/4   11 45-1/2   9 109-1/4 108-1/4 2-1/2 14 14 8,000 5,550 
Notes: Indoor installation only. All information subject to change. Change "N" to "L" for LP gas models and to "D" for dual fuel models. 



For Low NOx on FB2500 - FB5000 models, consult factory. *Turndown rate reduced on LP gas models. 



Smart Touch™ Features 
> SMART TOUCH™ Touchscreen Operating Control 
> Full-Color 8” Touchscreen LCD Display 
> Built-in Cascading Sequencer for up to 8 Boilers 
> Cascade Multiple Sized Boilers 
> Lead/Lag Cascade 
> Efficiency Optimized Cascade 
> Front-End Loading Capability with CopperFin II and 



Powerfin Boilers 
> Building Management System Integration with 



0-10 VDC Input 
> Modbus Communications 
> Outdoor Reset Control with Outdoor Air Sensor 
> Password Security 
> Domestic Hot Water Prioritization 



> DHW tank piped with priority in the boiler loop 
> DHW tank piped as a zone in the system with the 



pumps controlled by the Smart System 
> DHW Modulation Limiting 
> Separately Adjustable SH/DHW Switching Times 



> Low Water Flow Safety Control & Indication 
> Inlet & Outlet Temperature Readout 
> Freeze Protection 
>  Service Reminder 
> Time Clock 
> Data Logging 



> Hours Running, Space Heating 
> Hours Running, Domestic Hot Water 
> Hours Running, Modulation Rate 
>  Ignition Attempts 
>  Last 10 Lockouts 



> Programmable System Efficiency Optimizers 
> Night Setback 
> Anti-Cycling 
> Outdoor Air Reset Curve 
> Ramp Delay 
> Boost Temperature & Time 



> Three Pump Control 
> System Pump 
> Boiler Pump 



> High-Voltage Terminal Strip 
> 120 VAC / 60 Hertz / 1 Phase Power Supply (FB1500-3500) 
> 208 VAC / 60 Hertz / 3 Phase Power Supply (FB4000-5000) 
> System Pump, Boiler Pump and DHW Pump Power 



> Low-Voltage Terminal Strip 
> 24 VAC Auxiliary Device Relay 
> Auxiliary Proving Switch Contacts 
> Alarm on Any Failure Contacts 
> Runtime Contacts 
> DHW Thermostat Contacts 
> Unit Enable/Disable Contacts 
> System Sensor Contacts 
> DHW Tank Sensor Contacts 
> Outdoor Air Sensor Contacts 
> Cascade Contacts 
> 0-10 VDC BMS External Control Contact 



 



Optional Equipment  
> Alarm Bell 
> BMS Gateway - BACnet or LonWorks 
> Condensate Neutralization Kit 
> SMART TOUCH PC Software 
> Common Vent Kits 
> Dual Fuel Gas Train 
> Electrical Options (Shipped Loose): 



208V/3Ø/60Hz (Models FB1500-3500 only) 



480V/3Ø/60Hz 
600V/3Ø/60Hz 



> Motorized Isolation Valve 



Codes & Registrations  
> ANSI Z21.13/CSA Certified 
> ASME certified, “H” Stamp / National Board 
> California Code Compliant 
> CSD1 / Factory Mutual / GE Gap Compliant 
> South Coast Air Quality Management District Qualified 
> Canadian Registration Number (CRN) 
> AHRI Certified 



Standard Features  
> Up to 93% Thermal Efficiency (AHRI) 
> Up to 99% Thermal Efficiency in Low 



Temperature Applications 
> Modulating Burner with up to 25:1 Turndown 
> Direct-Spark Ignition 
> Low-NOx Operation 
> Sealed Combustion 
> Low Gas Pressure Operation 
> Vertical or Horizontal Venting 
> Category IV Venting up to 100 Feet 
> ASME “H” Stamped Heat Exchanger 
> 316L Stainless Steel Fire Tubes 
> 160 psi Working Pressure 
> On/Off Switch 
> Adjustable High Limit with Manual Reset 
> Low Water Cutoff with Manual Reset & Test 
> High & Low Gas Pressure Switches w/Manual Reset 
> Low Air Pressure Switches 
> Condensate Trap w/ Blocked Drain Switch 
> Drain Valve 
> System Sensor 
> Outdoor Air Sensor 
> Inlet & Outlet Temperature Sensors 
> High Voltage Terminal Strip 
> Low Voltage Terminal Strip 
> Downstream Gas Test Cocks 
> 50 psi ASME Relief Valve 
> Temperature & Pressure Gauge 
> Zero Clearances to Combustible Materials 
> 10-Year Limited Warranty (See Warranty for Details) 
> 1-Year Warranty on Parts (See Warranty for Details) 



> Domestic Hot Water Pump Registered Under U.S. Patent #8286594 



Number MBH MBH Thermal Output Rating Turndown 
Min.   Max. % MBH MBH A B C D E F G H J 



Gas  Air   Vent Operating Shipping 
K Conn. Inlet Size Wt. (lbs.) Wt. (lbs.) 



NET AHRI Model Input Input AHRI 
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FBN-04 (Replaces FBN-03 4/13) 



 
Lochinvar, LLC 



300 Maddox Simpson Parkway 
Lebanon, Tennessee 37090 



P: 615-889-8900 / F: 615-547-1000 



www.Lochinvar.  
p 
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From: Chad Roberson
To: David Berry; John Mitchell
Subject: Final GMP budget for Edneyville
Date: Friday, April 06, 2018 11:46:02 AM
Attachments: 07d34e9c-426a-4e1d-ba03-a8b3d7036620.png


01-23-2018_100% DD Estimate.pdf


 
 
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
use of the individual or entity to which they are addressed. If you are not the intended recipient or the person responsible for delivering the e-mail to
the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of this e-mail or any of its attachments is strictly prohibited. If you
have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sending individual or entity by e-mail and permanently delete the original e-mail and
attachments from your computer system.#
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Project Budget - Edneyville Elementary



Phase 1 - Clear and Prepare the Site 4.5 acres @ 185,000.00$        832,500.00$              



Escalation-Assumed construction complete by XX/XX 12 month @ .33% per month 3.960% 32,967.00$                



Phase 2 - Construct New Buildings 87,000 sf @ 172.00$                14,964,000.00$         



Phase 3 - Relocate 3 months



Phase 4 - Demolish Existing Buildings 64,000 sf @ 8.00$                    512,000.00$              



Phase 5 - Sitework 6.0 acres @ 185,000.00$        1,110,000.00$           



Escalation-Assumed construction complete by XX/XX 20 month @ 1% per month 6.600% 1,094,676.00$           



Owner Contingency + Commissioning Agent 617,000.00$              



Soft Costs extra from below line 738,038.43$              



Sub total 19,901,181.43$         



Overhead and Profit 6.0% 1,194,070.89$           



Sub total 21,095,252.32$         



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 316,428.78$              



Grand Total Construction costs 21,411,681.10$        



Owner Contingency 2.8% 588,821.23$              



Commissioning agent 1.0% $0.00



AE Fees 1,257,000.00$           



Pre-con fee 121,777.00$              



Survey 24,000.00$                



Permitting 155,540.00$              



Geotech 9,600.00$                  



Testing / Special Inspections 88,500.00$                



Total of Soft Costs(AE fees, CM pre-con fee, survey, permitting, geotech, 



special inspector, material testing agent, Air Monitoring etc.) 12.0% 1,656,417.00$           



Furniture, fixture, equipment 87,000              sf @ 10.00$                  850,750.00$              



Technology/ Equipment 492,000.00$              



Total Project costs 24,999,669.33$         













From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell; David Berry
Subject: Fwd: Edneyville Elementary School Contracts - Drafts
Date: Wednesday, March 21, 2018 1:03:35 PM
Attachments: image001.png


CW Edneyville ES A201-2017 - Working Draft - 001.docx
CW Edneyville ES A133-2009 - Working Draft - 001.docx


John,
Please see attached.  We just need to plug the GMP in.  


Thx
Chad 


From: Chad Webb <cwebb@barnhillcontracting.com>
Sent: Tuesday, March 13, 2018 10:19:34 AM
To: Chad Roberson
Cc: Chris Smith
Subject: Edneyville Elementary School Contracts - Drafts
 
Chad,
 
Attached are the AIA 133 & 201 Contracts for review.  Note, there are items that still need to be
determined such as Substantial Completion date and GMP. 
 
Let us know when you’re ready to discuss. 
Chad
 
Chad Webb
Vice President Building Division - Charlotte Region
Barnhill Contracting Company
5701 Westpark Drive, Suite 205
Charlotte, NC 28217
(704) 579-6363 (office)
(704) 917-9755 (mobile)
cwebb@barnhillcontracting.com
P
Please be green and read from the screen
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ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: The author of this document has added information needed for its completion. The author may also have revised the text of the original AIA standard form. An Additions and Deletions Report that notes added information as well as revisions to the standard form text is available from the author and should be reviewed.


This document has important legal consequences. Consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its completion or modification.


For guidance in modifying this document to include supplementary conditions, see AIA Document A503™, Guide for Supplementary Conditions.


 AIA® Document A201TM – 2017DRAFT





General Conditions of the Contract for Construction
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12.2.5, 15.1.2, 15.4.1.1


Limitations of Liability


3.2.2, 3.5, 3.12.10, 3.12.10.1, 3.17, 3.18.1, 4.2.6, 4.2.7, 6.2.2, 9.4.2, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 9.6.8, 10.2.5, 10.3.3, 11.3, 12.2.5, 13.3.1


Limitations of Time


2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2.7, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4.1, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15, 15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5


Materials, Hazardous


10.2.4, 10.3


Materials, Labor, Equipment and


1.1.3, 1.1.6, 3.4.1, 3.5, 3.8.2, 3.8.3, 3.12, 3.13, 3.15.1, 5.2.1, 6.2.1, 7.3.4, 9.3.2, 9.3.3, 9.5.1.3, 9.10.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4, 14.2.1.1, 14.2.1.2


Means, Methods, Techniques, Sequences and Procedures of Construction


3.3.1, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 9.4.2


Mechanic’s Lien


2.1.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.6.8, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 15.2.8


Mediation


8.3.1, 15.1.3.2, 15.2.1, 15.2.5, 15.2.6, 15.3, 15.4.1, 15.4.1.1


Minor Changes in the Work


1.1.1, 3.4.2, 3.12.8, 4.2.8, 7.1, 7.4


MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
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Modifications, Definition of


1.1.1


Modifications to the Contract


1.1.1, 1.1.2, 2.5, 3.11, 4.1.2, 4.2.1, 5.2.3, 7, 8.3.1, 9.7, 10.3.2


Mutual Responsibility


6.2


Nonconforming Work, Acceptance of


9.6.6, 9.9.3, 12.3


Nonconforming Work, Rejection and Correction of


2.4, 2.5, 3.5, 4.2.6, 6.2.4, 9.5.1, 9.8.2, 9.9.3, 9.10.4, 12.2


Notice


1.6, 1.6.1, 1.6.2, 2.1.2, 2.2.2., 2.2.3, 2.2.4, 2.5, 3.2.4, 3.3.1, 3.7.4, 3.7.5, 3.9.2, 3.12.9, 3.12.10, 5.2.1, 7.4, 8.2.2 9.6.8, 9.7, 9.10.1, 10.2.8, 10.3.2, 11.5, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.1, 14.2.2, 14.4.2, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 15.1.6, 15.4.1


Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Insurance


11.1.4, 11.2.3


Notice of Claims


1.6.2, 2.1.2, 3.7.4, 9.6.8, 10.2.8, 15.1.3, 15.1.5, 15.1.6, 15.2.8, 15.3.2, 15.4.1


Notice of Testing and Inspections


13.4.1, 13.4.2


Observations, Contractor’s


3.2, 3.7.4


Occupancy


2.3.1, 9.6.6, 9.8


Orders, Written


1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9.2, 7, 8.2.2, 11.5, 12.1, 12.2.2.1, 13.4.2, 14.3.1


OWNER


2


Owner, Definition of


2.1.1


Owner, Evidence of Financial Arrangements


2.2, 13.2.2, 14.1.1.4


Owner, Information and Services Required of the


2.1.2, 2.2, 2.3, 3.2.2, 3.12.10, 6.1.3, 6.1.4, 6.2.5, 9.3.2, 9.6.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.2, 9.10.3, 10.3.3, 11.2, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 14.1.1.4, 14.1.4, 15.1.4


Owner’s Authority


1.5, 2.1.1, 2.3.32.4, 2.5, 3.4.2, 3.8.1, 3.12.10, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.9, 5.2.1, 5.2.4, 5.4.1, 6.1, 6.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 8.2.2, 8.3.1, 9.3.2, 9.5.1, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 10.3.2, 11.4, 11.5, 12.2.2, 12.3, 13.2.2, 14.3, 14.4, 15.2.7


Owner’s Insurance


11.2


Owner’s Relationship with Subcontractors


1.1.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 9.6.4, 9.10.2, 14.2.2


Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work


2.5, 14.2.2


Owner’s Right to Clean Up


6.3


Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts


6.1


Owner’s Right to Stop the Work


2.4


Owner’s Right to Suspend the Work


14.3


Owner’s Right to Terminate the Contract


14.2, 14.4


Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications and Other Instruments of Service


1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.1.7, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.2.2, 3.11, 3.17, 4.2.12, 5.3


Partial Occupancy or Use


9.6.6, 9.9


Patching, Cutting and


3.14, 6.2.5


Patents


3.17


Payment, Applications for


4.2.5, 7.3.9, 9.2, 9.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.3, 9.7, 9.8.5, 9.10.1, 14.2.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3


Payment, Certificates for


4.2.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.4, 9.5, 9.6.1, 9.6.6, 9.7, 9.10.1, 9.10.3, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.4


Payment, Failure of


9.5.1.3, 9.7, 9.10.2, 13.5, 14.1.1.3, 14.2.1.2


Payment, Final


4.2.1, 4.2.9, 9.10, 12.3, 14.2.4, 14.4.3


Payment Bond, Performance Bond and


7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2


Payments, Progress


9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4


PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
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Payments to Subcontractors


5.4.2, 9.5.1.3, 9.6.2, 9.6.3, 9.6.4, 9.6.7, 14.2.1.2


PCB


10.3.1


Performance Bond and Payment Bond


7.3.4.4, 9.6.7, 9.10.3, 11.1.2


Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws


2.3.1, 3.7, 3.13, 7.3.4.4, 10.2.2


PERSONS AND PROPERTY, PROTECTION OF


10


Polychlorinated Biphenyl


10.3.1


Product Data, Definition of


3.12.2


Product Data and Samples, Shop Drawings


3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7


Progress and Completion


4.2.2, 8.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 14.1.4, 15.1.4


Progress Payments


9.3, 9.6, 9.8.5, 9.10.3, 14.2.3, 15.1.4


Project, Definition of


1.1.4


Project Representatives


4.2.10


Property Insurance


10.2.5, 11.2


Proposal Requirements


1.1.1


PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY


10


Regulations and Laws


1.5, 2.3.2, 3.2.3, 3.6, 3.7, 3.12.10, 3.13, 9.6.4, 9.9.1, 10.2.2, 13.1, 13.3, 13.4.1, 13.4.2, 13.5, 14, 15.2.8, 15.4


Rejection of Work


4.2.6, 12.2.1


Releases and Waivers of Liens


9.3.1, 9.10.2


Representations


3.2.1, 3.5, 3.12.6, 8.2.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.10.1


Representatives


2.1.1, 3.1.1, 3.9, 4.1.1, 4.2.10, 13.2.1


Responsibility for Those Performing the Work


3.3.2, 3.18, 4.2.2, 4.2.3, 5.3, 6.1.3, 6.2, 6.3, 9.5.1, 10


Retainage


9.3.1, 9.6.2, 9.8.5, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3


Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor


3.2, 3.12.7, 6.1.3


Review of Contractor’s Submittals by Owner and Architect


3.10.1, 3.10.2, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2, 5.2, 6.1.3, 9.2, 9.8.2


Review of Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples by Contractor


3.12


Rights and Remedies


1.1.2, 2.4, 2.5, 3.5, 3.7.4, 3.15.2, 4.2.6, 5.3, 5.4, 6.1, 6.3, 7.3.1, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.2.5, 10.3, 12.2.1, 12.2.2, 12.2.4, 13.3, 14, 15.4


Royalties, Patents and Copyrights


3.17


Rules and Notices for Arbitration


15.4.1


Safety of Persons and Property


10.2, 10.4


Safety Precautions and Programs


3.3.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 5.3, 10.1, 10.2, 10.4


Samples, Definition of


3.12.3


Samples, Shop Drawings, Product Data and


3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7


Samples at the Site, Documents and


3.11


Schedule of Values


9.2, 9.3.1


Schedules, Construction


3.10, 3.12.1, 3.12.2, 6.1.3, 15.1.6.2


Separate Contracts and Contractors


1.1.4, 3.12.5, 3.14.2, 4.2.4, 4.2.7, 6, 8.3.1, 12.1.2


Separate Contractors, Definition of


6.1.1


Shop Drawings, Definition of


3.12.1


Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples


3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7


Site, Use of


3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1


Site Inspections


3.2.2, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 3.7.4, 4.2, 9.9.2, 9.4.2, 9.10.1, 13.4


Site Visits, Architect’s


3.7.4, 4.2.2, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.5.1, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 13.4


Special Inspections and Testing


4.2.6, 12.2.1, 13.4


Specifications, Definition of


1.1.6


Specifications


1.1.1, 1.1.6, 1.2.2, 1.5, 3.12.10, 3.17, 4.2.14


Statute of Limitations


15.1.2, 15.4.1.1


Stopping the Work


2.2.2, 2.4, 9.7, 10.3, 14.1


Stored Materials


6.2.1, 9.3.2, 10.2.1.2, 10.2.4


Subcontractor, Definition of


5.1.1


SUBCONTRACTORS


5


Subcontractors, Work by


1.2.2, 3.3.2, 3.12.1, 3.18, 4.2.3, 5.2.3, 5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6.7


Subcontractual Relations


5.3, 5.4, 9.3.1.2, 9.6, 9.10, 10.2.1, 14.1, 14.2.1


Submittals


3.10, 3.11, 3.12, 4.2.7, 5.2.1, 5.2.3, 7.3.4, 9.2, 9.3, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.3


Submittal Schedule


3.10.2, 3.12.5, 4.2.7


Subrogation, Waivers of


6.1.1, 11.3


Substances, Hazardous


10.3


Substantial Completion


4.2.9, 8.1.1, 8.1.3, 8.2.3, 9.4.2, 9.8, 9.9.1, 9.10.3, 12.2, 15.1.2


Substantial Completion, Definition of


9.8.1


Substitution of Subcontractors


5.2.3, 5.2.4


Substitution of Architect


2.3.3


Substitutions of Materials


3.4.2, 3.5, 7.3.8


Sub-subcontractor, Definition of


5.1.2


Subsurface Conditions


3.7.4


Successors and Assigns


13.2


Superintendent


3.9, 10.2.6


Supervision and Construction Procedures


1.2.2, 3.3, 3.4, 3.12.10, 4.2.2, 4.2.7, 6.1.3, 6.2.4, 7.1.3, 7.3.4, 8.2, 8.3.1, 9.4.2, 10, 12, 14, 15.1.4


Suppliers


1.5, 3.12.1, 4.2.4, 4.2.6, 5.2.1, 9.3, 9.4.2, 9.5.4, 9.6, 9.10.5, 14.2.1


Surety


5.4.1.2, 9.6.8, 9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3, 11.1.2, 14.2.2, 15.2.7


Surety, Consent of


9.8.5, 9.10.2, 9.10.3


Surveys


1.1.7, 2.3.4


Suspension by the Owner for Convenience


14.3


Suspension of the Work


3.7.5, 5.4.2, 14.3


Suspension or Termination of the Contract


5.4.1.1, 14


Taxes


3.6, 3.8.2.1, 7.3.4.4


Termination by the Contractor


14.1, 15.1.7


Termination by the Owner for Cause


5.4.1.1, 14.2, 15.1.7


Termination by the Owner for Convenience


14.4


Termination of the Architect


2.3.3


Termination of the Contractor Employment


14.2.2





TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT
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Tests and Inspections


3.1.3, 3.3.3, 3.7.1, 4.2.2, 4.2.6, 4.2.9, 9.4.2, 9.8.3, 9.9.2, 9.10.1, 10.3.2, 12.2.1, 13.4


TIME


8


Time, Delays and Extensions of


3.2.4, 3.7.4, 5.2.3, 7.2.1, 7.3.1, 7.4, 8.3, 9.5.1, 9.7, 10.3.2, 10.4, 14.3.2, 15.1.6, 15.2.5


Time Limits


2.1.2, 2.2, 2.5, 3.2.2, 3.10, 3.11, 3.12.5, 3.15.1, 4.2, 5.2, 5.3, 5.4, 6.2.4, 7.3, 7.4, 8.2, 9.2, 9.3.1, 9.3.3, 9.4.1, 9.5, 9.6, 9.7, 9.8, 9.9, 9.10, 12.2, 13.4, 14, 15.1.2, 15.1.3, 15.4


Time Limits on Claims


3.7.4, 10.2.8, 15.1.2, 15.1.3


Title to Work


9.3.2, 9.3.3


UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK
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Uncovering of Work


12.1


Unforeseen Conditions, Concealed or Unknown


3.7.4, 8.3.1, 10.3


Unit Prices


7.3.3.2, 9.1.2


Use of Documents


1.1.1, 1.5, 2.3.6, 3.12.6, 5.3


Use of Site


3.13, 6.1.1, 6.2.1


Values, Schedule of


9.2, 9.3.1


Waiver of Claims by the Architect


13.3.2


Waiver of Claims by the Contractor


9.10.5, 13.3.2, 15.1.7


Waiver of Claims by the Owner


9.9.3, 9.10.3, 9.10.4, 12.2.2.1, 13.3.2, 14.2.4, 15.1.7


Waiver of Consequential Damages


14.2.4, 15.1.7


Waiver of Liens


9.3, 9.10.2, 9.10.4


Waivers of Subrogation


6.1.1, 11.3


Warranty


3.5, 4.2.9, 9.3.3, 9.8.4, 9.9.1, 9.10.2, 9.10.4, 12.2.2, 15.1.2


Weather Delays


8.3, 15.1.6.2


Work, Definition of


1.1.3


Written Consent


1.5.2, 3.4.2, 3.7.4, 3.12.8, 3.14.2, 4.1.2, 9.3.2, 9.10.3, 13.2, 13.3.2, 15.4.4.2


Written Interpretations


4.2.11, 4.2.12


Written Orders


1.1.1, 2.4, 3.9, 7, 8.2.2, 12.1, 12.2, 13.4.2, 14.3.1



ARTICLE 1   GENERAL PROVISIONS


§ 1.1 Basic Definitions


§ 1.1.1 The Contract Documents


The Contract Documents are enumerated in the Agreement between the Owner and Contractor (hereinafter the Agreement) and consist of the Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of the Contract, other documents listed in the Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of the Contract. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract signed by both parties, (2) a Change Order, (3) a Construction Change Directive, or (4) a written order for a minor change in the Work issued by the Architect. Unless specifically enumerated in the Agreement, the Contract Documents do not include the advertisement or invitation to bid, Instructions to Bidders, sample forms, other information furnished by the Owner in anticipation of receiving bids or proposals, the Contractor’s bid or proposal, or portions of Addenda relating to bidding or proposal requirements.





§ 1.1.2 The Contract


The Contract Documents form the Contract for Construction. The Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create a contractual relationship of any kind (1) between the Contractor and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants, (2) between the Owner and a Subcontractor or a Sub-subcontractor, (3) between the Owner and the Architect or the Architect’s consultants, or (4) between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the Contractor. The Architect shall, however, be entitled to performance and enforcement of obligations under the Contract intended to facilitate performance of the Architect’s duties.





§ 1.1.3 The Work


The term “Work” means the construction and services required by the Contract Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials, equipment, and services provided or to be provided by the Contractor to fulfill the Contractor’s obligations. The Work may constitute the whole or a part of the Project.





§ 1.1.4 The Project


The Project is the total construction of which the Work performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part and which may include construction by the Owner and by Separate Contractors.





§ 1.1.5 The Drawings


The Drawings are the graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents showing the design, location and dimensions of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, schedules, and diagrams.





§ 1.1.6 The Specifications


The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of the written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards and workmanship for the Work, and performance of related services.





§ 1.1.7 Instruments of Service


Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or later developed, of the tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Architect and the Architect’s consultants under their respective professional services agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies, surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.





§ 1.1.8 Initial Decision Maker


The Initial Decision Maker is the person identified in the Agreement to render initial decisions on Claims in accordance with Section 15.2. The Initial Decision Maker shall not show partiality to the Owner or Contractor and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.





§1.1.9 DEFINITIONS


§1.1.9.1 As used in this document, the term “Contractor” shall in all instances be replaced with “Construction Manager”.





§1.1.9.2 As used in this document, the terms “knowledge”, “recognize” and “discover”, their respective derivatives, and similar terms in the Contract Documents, as used in reference to the Construction Manager, shall be interpreted to mean that which the Construction Manager knows (or should know), recognizes (or should recognize), and discovers (or should discover) in exercising the care, skill and diligence required by the Contract Documents.  Analogously, the expression “reasonably inferable” and similar terms in the Contract Documents shall be interpreted to mean reasonably inferable by a contract familiar with the Project and exercising the carte, skill, and diligence required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents.








§ 1.2 Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents


§ 1.2.1 The intent of the Contract Documents is to include all items necessary for the proper execution and completion of the Work by the Contractor. The Contract Documents are complementary, and what is required by one shall be as binding as if required by all; performance by the Contractor shall be required only to the extent consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable from them as being necessary to produce the indicated results.





§ 1.2.1.1 The invalidity of any provision of the Contract Documents shall not invalidate the Contract or its remaining provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Contract Documents violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and enforceable. In such case the Contract Documents shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes in executing the Contract.





§ 1.2.2 Organization of the Specifications into divisions, sections and articles, and arrangement of Drawings shall not control the Contractor in dividing the Work among Subcontractors or in establishing the extent of Work to be performed by any trade.





§ 1.2.3 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, words that have well-known technical or construction industry meanings are used in the Contract Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.





§ 1.2.4 In the event of discrepancies or disagreements between Contract Documents, the order of precedence shall be as follows:


1. Agreement between Owner and Construction Manager


2. Modifications defined in Section 1.1.1


3. Addenda


4. Supplementary Conditions


5. General Conditions


6. Specifications


7. Drawings


8. As between schedules and information given on the drawings, the schedules shall govern.


9. As between schedules, information given on the drawings, and scaled measurements, the measurements shall govern.


10. As between large scale drawings and small scale drawings, the larger scale shall govern.








§ 1.3 Capitalization


Terms capitalized in these General Conditions include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered articles, or (3) the titles of other documents published by the American Institute of Architects.





§ 1.4 Interpretation


In the interest of brevity the Contract Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any” and articles such as “the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.





§ 1.5 Ownership and Use of Drawings, Specifications, and Other Instruments of Service


§ 1.5.1 The Contract Documents are the property of the Owner which may be used by the Contractor, Subcontractors, materials and equipment suppliers for the Project only, and not for other projects of work.


The Architect and the Architect’s consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and retain all common law, statutory, and other reserved rights in their Instruments of Service, including copyrights. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers shall not own or claim a copyright in the Instruments of Service. Submittal or distribution to meet official regulatory requirements or for other purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication in derogation of the Architect’s or Architect’s consultants’ reserved rights.





§ 1.5.2 The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers are authorized to use and reproduce the Instruments of Service provided to them, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Sections 1.7 and 1.8, solely and exclusively for execution of the Work. All copies made under this authorization shall bear the copyright notice, if any, shown on the Instruments of Service. The Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers may not use the Instruments of Service on other projects or for additions to the Project outside the scope of the Work without the specific written consent of the Owner, Architect, and the Architect’s consultants.





§ 1.6 Notice


§ 1.6.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.6.2, where the Contract Documents require one party to notify or give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by courier, or by electronic transmission if a method for electronic transmission is set forth in the Agreement.





§ 1.6.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by certified or registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery.





§ 1.7 Digital Data Use and Transmission


The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any other information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, and exchange of digital data.





§ 1.8 Building Information Models Use and Reliance


Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set forth in AIA Document E203™–2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite AIA Document G202™–2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at the using or relying party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees.





ARTICLE 2   OWNER


§ 2.1 General


§ 2.1.1 The Owner is a body corporate and politic of the State of North Carolina, and may act only through a    majority of its Board of Commissioners (“the Board”).  The Board, by majority vote, is the only representative of the Owner having the power to enter into or amend the Contract, to approve changes in the scope of the Work, to approve and execute a Change Order or Construction Change Directive modifying the Contract Sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, or to agree to an extension to the dates of Substantial or Final Completion. The Board will act when requested in writing to do so as soon as reasonably possible to avoid undue delays. The Board will designate an authorized representative to act on its behalf for day-to-day operations under the Contract. The Owner's authorized representatives have the authority to act on behalf of the Board in all matters other than those reserved to the Board above, except he has the authority to approve changes to the Work where such changes do not exceed $25,000.00. Any such change shall be confirmed in writing between the Contractor and the Owner 's Representative, and notice of such approved changes shall be given to the Board at its next regular meeting. The Architect does not have such authority except as otherwise provided in the Contract Document s. Neither the Architect nor the Contractor may rely upon direction of any employee of the Owner who has not been designated in writing by the Superintendent or the Board; the Owner shall not be financially responsible for actions taken by the Architect or the Contractor in reliance upon direction from unauthorized persons. 


The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Owner with respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized representative.





§ 2.1.2 It shall be distinctly understood that no mechanic, Contractor, Subcontractor , material or equipment supplier, and/or supplier of labor services, shall ever in any manner have, claim, or acquire any lien upon the buildings, equipment, or furnishings or any of the improvements of whatsoever nature or kind so erected or to be erected by virtue of this Contract or upon any of the land on which said buildings or any of its improvements are to be erected, built or situated , such property belonging to a body corporate and politic of the State of North Carolina.





§ 2.1.3 The Owner shall require the Contractor, the Subcontractors, the Architect and the Architect's consultants to meet periodically at mutually-agreed-upon intervals, for the purpose of establishing procedures to facilitate cooperation, communication, and timely responses among the participants in the performance of the Work.





§ 2.1.4 The Owner may require that the Contractor use and/or respond to certain Owner furnished forms or inquiries regarding the status of the Work during the course of the Project. From time to time, there may be future revisions, changes, additions, or deletions to these forms. The fact that the Owner modifies and increases reasonable reporting requirements shall not serve as the basis for a claim for additional time or compensation by the Contractor.





§ 2.1.5 The Contractor stipulates and agrees that the Owner has no duty to discover any design defects, errors, or omissions whether in the Drawings, Plans, Specifications and other Construction Documents. The Owner will, however, notify the Contractor and the Architect of design defects, errors or omissions of which the Owner's Representative or the Board have actual knowledge. By entering into the Contract Documents or any Agreement with any Architect, the Owner does not warrant the adequacy and accuracy of any Drawings, Plans, Specifications or other Construction Documents.





The Owner shall furnish to the Contractor, within fifteen days after receipt of a written request, information necessary and relevant for the Contractor to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such information shall include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located, usually referred to as the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.





§ 2.2 Evidence of the Owner’s Financial Arrangements


§ 2.2.1 Prior to commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract. The Contractor shall have no obligation to commence the Work until the Owner provides such evidence. If commencement of the Work is delayed under this Section 2.2.1, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately.





§ 2.2.2 Following commencement of the Work and upon written request by the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract only if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Contractor as the Contract Documents require; (2) the Contractor identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due; or (3) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum. If the Owner fails to provide such evidence, as required, within fourteen days of the Contractor’s request, the Contractor may immediately stop the Work and, in that event, shall notify the Owner that the Work has stopped. However, if the request is made because a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum under (3) above, the Contractor may immediately stop only that portion of the Work affected by the change until reasonable evidence is provided. If the Work is stopped under this Section 2.2.2, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided in the Contract Documents.





§ 2.2.3 The Contractor shall establish all lines and levels required to properly execute the Work, and shall pay for all costs to establish them, and shall be responsible for their maintenance and accuracy. The Contractor shall coordinate the Work with the Architect regarding the recommendations set forth in any Owner furnished information, particularly where excavation of unsuitable soils and replacement of fill materials are described, if any, which may be required for the proper and complete installation of the Work.


After the Owner furnishes evidence of financial arrangements under this Section 2.2, the Owner shall not materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Contractor.





§ 2.2.4 Where the Owner has designated information furnished under this Section 2.2 as “confidential,” the Contractor shall keep the information confidential and shall not disclose it to any other person. However, the Contractor may disclose “confidential” information, after seven (7) days’ notice to the Owner, where disclosure is required by law, including a subpoena or other form of compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or by court or arbitrator(s) order. The Contractor may also disclose “confidential” information to its employees, consultants, sureties, Subcontractors and their employees, Sub-subcontractors, and others who need to know the content of such information solely and exclusively for the Project and who agree to maintain the confidentiality of such information.





§ 2.3 Information and Services Required of the Owner


§ 2.3.1 Except for permits and fees that are the responsibility of the Contractor under the Contract Documents, including those required under Section 3.7.1, the Owner shall secure and pay for necessary approvals, easements, assessments and charges required for construction, use or occupancy of permanent structures or for permanent changes in existing facilities.





§ 2.3.2 The Owner shall retain an architect lawfully licensed to practice architecture, or an entity lawfully practicing architecture, in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. That person or entity is identified as the Architect in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number.





§ 2.3.3 If the employment of the Architect terminates, the Owner shall employ a successor to whom the Contractor has no reasonable objection and whose status under the Contract Documents shall be that of the Architect.





§ 2.3.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the Work.





§ 2.3.5 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and relevant to the Contractor’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Contractor’s written request for such information or services.





§ 2.3.6 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor one copy of the Contract Documents for purposes of making reproductions pursuant to Section 1.5.2.





§ 2.4 Owner’s Right to Stop the Work


If the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as required by Section 12.2 or fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work , or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entityIf the Contractor fails to correct Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as required by Section 12.2 or repeatedly fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner may issue a written order to the Contractor to stop the Work, or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the Contractor or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by Section 6.1.3.








§ 2.5 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Work


If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within a ten-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, correct such default or neglect. Such action by the Owner and amounts charged to the Contractor are both subject to prior approval of the Architect and the Architect may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including Owner’s expenses and compensation for the Architect’s additional services made necessary by such default, neglect, or failure. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. If the Contractor disagrees with the actions of the Owner or the Architect, or the amounts claimed as costs to the Owner, the Contractor may file a Claim pursuant to Article 15.





§2.6 EXTENT OF OWNER RIGHTS


The rights stated in this Article 2 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents are cumulative and not in limitation of any rights of the Owner (i) granted in the Contract Documents, (ii) at law, or (iii) in equity.  In no event shall the Owner have control over, charge of, or any responsibility for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, notwithstanding any of the rights and authority granted the Owner in the Contract Documents.











ARTICLE 3   CONTRACTOR


§ 3.1 General


§ 3.1.1 The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. The Contractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Contractor shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Contractor with respect to all matters under this Contract. The term “Contractor” means the Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representative.





§ 3.1.2 The Contractor shall perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.





§ 3.1.3 The Contractor shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents either by activities or duties of the Architect in the Architect’s administration of the Contract, or by tests, inspections or approvals required or performed by persons or entities other than the Contractor.





§ 3.2 Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions by Contractor


§ 3.2.1 Execution of the Contract by the Contractor is a representation that the Contractor has visited the site, become generally familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, and correlated personal observations with requirements of the Contract Documents. The Contractor represents and warrants by execution of the Agreement that he has carefully examined the Project Manual and Addenda, the Contract Documents, any soil test rep01ts, drainage studies, geotechnical or other reports and the site of the Work, and that, :from his own investigations , he has satisfied himself as to the nature and location of the Work, the character, quality and quantity of surface and subsurface materials likely to be encountered, the character of machinery and equipment and other facilities needed for the performance of the Work, the chai·acter , quality, quantity, and availability of labor and Subcontractors required for the Work, the character, quality and quantity of professional services required for the Work, the chai·acter, quality, quai1tity and availability of materials, machinery, equipment and furnishings required for the Work, and all other matters and things which may in any way affect the Work or its performance. Should the Contractor find discrepancies, omissions or conflicts within the Contract Documents, or be in doubt as to their meaning, the Contractor shall at once notify the Architect and Owner in writing, and the Architect will issue a written addendum to all parties that is consistent with the Owner's Scope of Work.








§ 3.2.2 Because the Contract Documents are complementary, the Contractor shall, before starting each portion of the Work, carefully study and compare the various Contract Documents relative to that portion of the Work, as well as the information furnished by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.4, shall take field measurements of any existing conditions related to that portion of the Work, and shall observe any conditions at the site affecting it. These obligations are for the purpose of facilitating coordination and construction by the Contractor and are not for the purpose of discovering errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in the Contract Documents; however, the Contractor shall promptly report to the Architect any errors, inconsistencies or omissions discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require. It is recognized that the Contractor’s review is made in the Contractor’s capacity as a contractor and not as a licensed design professional, unless otherwise specifically provided in the Contract Documents.





§ 3.2.3 Neither the Owner nor the Contractor is required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor shall promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require.


The Contractor is not required to ascertain that the Contract Documents are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Contractor shall promptly report to the Architect any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Contractor as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require.





§ 3.2.4 If the Contractor believes that additional cost or time is involved because of clarifications or instructions the Architect issues in response to the Contractor’s notices or requests for information pursuant to Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall submit Claims as provided in Article 15. If the Contractor fails to perform the obligations of Sections 3.2.2 or 3.2.3, the Contractor shall pay such costs and damages to the Owner, subject to Section 15.1.7, as would have been avoided if the Contractor had performed such obligations. If the Contractor performs those obligations, the Contractor shall not be liable to the Owner or Architect for damages resulting from errors, inconsistencies or omissions in the Contract Documents, for differences between field measurements or conditions and the Contract Documents, or for nonconformities of the Contract Documents to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities.





§ 3.2.5 Prior to performing any Work, the Contractor shall locate all utility lines as shown and located on the plans and specifications, including telephone company lines and cables, sewer lines, water pipes, gas lines, electrical lines, including, but not limited to, all buried pipelines and buried telephone cables, and shall perform any Work in such a manner so as to avoid damaging any such lines, cables, pipes and pipelines during its Work, and shall be responsible for any loss, damage or extra expense resulting from such damage. Repairs shall be made immediately to restore all service. Any delay for such break shall be attributable to the Contractor. In addition, the Contractor shall review appropriate hazardous material surveys for the Project , and shall notify all Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors of the necessity to review such surveys. The Contractor shall perform any Work in such a manner as to avoid damaging, exposing, or dislodging any asbestos-containing materials or other hazardous materials that are clearly identified and located in hazardous material surveys. Before performing any portion of the Work, the Contractor shall fully investigate all physical aspects of the Project Site and verify all dimensions, measurements, property lines, grades, and elevations, existing improvements, and general suitability of existing conditions at the Project site.





§ 3.2.6 The Contractor shall arrange meetings prior to commencement of the Work of all major subcontractors to allow the Subcontractors to demonstrate an understanding of the Work and Contract Documents to the Architect and to allow the Subcontractors to ask for interpretations, when necessary. Each major Subcontractor shall review the Project Manual and the Construction Documents and shall evaluate and satisfy themselves as to the conditions and limitations under which the Work is to be performed.








§ 3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures


§ 3.3.1 The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work, using the Contractor’s best skill and attention. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Work under the Contract. If the Contract Documents give specific instructions concerning construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, the Contractor shall evaluate the jobsite safety thereof and shall be solely responsible for the jobsite safety of such means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. If the Contractor determines that such means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures may not be safe, the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Owner and Architect, and shall propose alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect shall evaluate the proposed alternative solely for conformance with the design intent for the completed construction. Unless the Architect objects to the Contractor’s proposed alternative, the Contractor shall perform the Work using its alternative means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, per Article 15.. 





§ 3.3.2 The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors and their agents and employees, and other persons or entities performing portions of the Work for, or on behalf of, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors.





§ 3.3.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for inspection of portions of Work already performed to determine that such portions are in proper condition to receive subsequent Work.





§ 3.3.4 The Contractor shall properly and efficiently coordinate the timing, scheduling and routing of all Work performed by all trades and Subcontractors. The Contractor shall develop and maintain a schedule of critical path construction activities for the Work.  This critical path schedule shall be updated at least bi-monthly and presented to the Owner and Architect upon request.





§ 3.3.5 The Contractor shall review Subcontractor safety programs, procedures, and precautions in connection with performance of the Work. However, the Contractor's duties shall not relieve any Subcontractor(s) or any other person or entity, including any person or entity with whom the Contractor does not have a contractual relationship, of their responsibility or liability relative to compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances and manufacturers' instructions which shall include the obligation to provide for the safety of their employees, other persons, and property and the requirements to maintain a work environment free of recognized hazards.








§ 3.4 Labor and Materials


§ 3.4.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for qualified, careful, and efficient workers and labor eligible to work in accordance with state and federal law, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation , and other facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work. Before ordering any material or doing any Work, the Contractor shall verify that all dimensions specified in the Drawings, Specifications and other Construction Documents are consistent with all actual dimensions in the field. Any inconsistency shall be brought to the attention of the Architect. In the event that discrepancies exist and the Architect was not notified beforehand, then costs to correct and/or replace ordered materials shall be borne by the Contractor. This subsection does not relieve the Architect of any contractual duties owed to the Owner.


Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work, whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the Work.





§ 3.4.2 Except in the case of minor changes in the Work approved by the Architect in accordance with Section 3.12.8 or ordered by the Architect in accordance with Section 7.4, the Contractor may make substitutions only with the consent of the Owner, after evaluation by the Architect and in accordance with a Change Order or Construction Change Directive.





§ 3.4.3 The Contractor shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Contractor’s employees and other persons carrying out the Work. The Contractor shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons not properly skilled in tasks assigned to them.





§ 3.4.4 Subcontractors will not be permitted to establish their own normal working hours (such as 10 hours per day, four days per week) except with the written consent of the Contractor and the Architect and without additional compensation.





§ 3.4.5 Including, but not limited to, the specific requirements of Section 3.3.5 and Article 10, the Contractor, its subcontractors and vendors shall bear responsibility for compliance with all federal, state and local laws, regulations, guidelines, and ordinances pertaining to safety of persons and property applicable to the Work.








§ 3.5 Warranty


§ 3.5.1 The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects. The Contractor further warrants and guarantees that Contractor shall perform the Work in a good and workmanlike manner, continuously and diligently in accordance with generally accepted standards of construction practice for construction projects similar to the Project, except to the extent the Contract Documents expressly specify a higher standard, in which case the standard shall be the higher standard. All material shall be installed in a true and straight alignment, level and plumb, patterns shall be uniform, and jointing of materials shall be flush and level, unless otherwise directed in writing by the Architect. Work, materials, systems, machinery, equipment or components not conforming to these requirements, including substitutions not properly approved and authorized, will be considered defective. The Contractor 's warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required by the Architect, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.The Contractor warrants to the Owner and Architect that materials and equipment furnished under the Contract will be of good quality and new unless the Contract Documents require or permit otherwise. The Contractor further warrants that the Work will conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents and will be free from defects, except for those inherent in the quality of the Work the Contract Documents require or permit. Work, materials, or equipment not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Contractor’s warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the Work not executed by the Contractor, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear and normal usage. If required by the Architect, the Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment.





§ 3.5.2 If, within any warranty period, repairs or changes are required in connection with warranted work, the Contractor shall promptly, upon receipt of notice from the Owner and without expense to the Owner:





1. Place in satisfactory condition in every particular all of such warranted Work and correct all defects therein;





2. Make good all damages to the buildings, sites, or equipment and contents, thereof, which, in the opinion of the Architect, are the result of the use of materials, equipment or workmanship which are inferior, defective or not in accordance with the Contract Documents;





3. Make good any work, materials, equipment, and contents of said buildings or sites which may have been disturbed in fulfilling any such warranty; and





4. If compliance with 1., 2., 3. are not completed in a reasonable period of time, then, the Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for all related costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees and fees of experts hired to investigate a warranty claim.





In any case wherein fulfilling the requirements of the Contract Documents or any warranty embraced in or required thereby, the Contractor disturbs any Work warranted under another Contract, it shall restore such disturbed Work to a condition satisfactory to the Owner, and it shall warrant such restored Work to the same extent as it was warranted under such other Contract.





If the Contractor, after notice, fails to proceed within seven (14) days to comply with the terms of this warranty, the Owner may have the defects corrected, and the Contractor and its surety shall be liable for all reasonable costs and expenses incurred.





The Contractor shall defend and save the Owner harmless against any claim, demand, loss or damage arising from any breach of this warranty by the Contractor.





This Section 3.5.2 is in addition to, and not in limitation of; any other warranties, rights, or remedies to which the Owner may be entitled.





§ 3.5.3 All specified express warranties required by the Contract Documents on workmanship, equipment, machinery, materials, systems or components shall be submitted in writing to the Architect for delivery to the Owner no later than the date of Final Completion and further agrees to perform the Work in such manner so as to preserve any and all such manufacturers, suppliers and installers ' warranties. Unless specified otherwise, all warranties shall run from the date of Final Completion for a period of one (1) year. The Contractor will present to the Owner an Alternate bid to include an additional one (1) year workmanship warranty specific to the Roofing system. Warranties under Section 3.5. 1 are not exclusive of any other warranties or guarantees set out in other places in the Contract Documents or expressed or implied under applicable law.





§ 3.5.4 The Contractor shall include in the bid documents an Add Alternate Bid to further guarantee for a period of twenty-four (24) months that the building shall be watertight and leak free at every point and in every area. If the Add Alternate Bid cost is accepted by the Owner, the Contractor shall, immediately upon notification by the Owner of water penetration, determine the source of water penetration, and at Contractor's own expense, do any Work necessary to make the building watertight. Contractor shall also, at its own expense, repair or replace any other damaged material to return the building to its original accepted condition. The twenty-four (24) month period shall run from the later of the Contractor's last act or omission giving rise to a cause of action under this warranty or Substantial Completion of the Project.





§ 3.5.5 Upon written notice from the Owner or the Architect, the Contractor shall promptly remedy defects in the Work as covered by applicable warranties. If the Contractor does not respond to the written notice within fourteen (14) days of Contractor's receipt of a written notice, either by beginning corrective work or notifying the Owner in writing regarding when corrective work will begin, the Owner may take measures to correct the Work and the Contractor will be obligated to reimburse the Owner's costs including reasonable consultant, engineering and legal fees. The provisions of this section shall be in addition to, and not in lieu of, any other rights and remedies available to the Owner.





§ 3.5.6 The warranties of the Contractor provided in Section 3.5 shall in no way limit or abridge the warranties of the manufacturers, suppliers, and installers of materials, machinery, equipment, systems or components which are to comprise a p01tion of the Work and all such wa.1Tanties shall be in form and substance as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall take no action or fail to act in any way which results in the denial, termination, or expiration of such third party warranties or which otherwise results in prejudice to the rights of the Owner under such warranties. The Contractor agrees to provide all notices required for the effectiveness of such warranties and shall include provisions in the contracts with the suppliers, manufacturers, and installers of such materials, machinery, systems, and equipment whereby the Owner shall have a direct right, but not a duty, of enforcement of such warranty obligations.


All material, equipment, or other special warranties required by the Contract Documents shall be issued in the name of the Owner, or shall be transferable to the Owner, and shall commence in accordance with Section 9.8.4.





§ 3.6 Taxes


The Contractor shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Contractor that are legally enacted when bids are received or negotiations concluded, whether or not yet effective or merely scheduled to go into effect.





§ 3.6.1 The Contractor shall submit with its monthly Certification and Application for Payment a notarized certification of the sales tax payments made under the Contract and payments on its subcontracts made for all taxable materials installed and stored at the Project for the pay period.





§ 3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws


§ 3.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded. If the Contractor disposes of or is required to dispose of materials from demolition, construction waste, excess dirt, rock and other materials, the Contractor shall pay all fees associated with disposal. All connection charges, assessments or inspection fees as may be imposed by any agency or utility company are included in the Contract Sum and shall be the Contractor's   responsibility.


Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall secure and pay for the building permit as well as for other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work that are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and legally required at the time bids are received or negotiations concluded.





§ 3.7.2 The Contractor shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to performance of the Work.





§ 3.7.3 If the Contractor performs Work knowing it to be contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Contractor shall assume appropriate responsibility for such Work and shall bear the costs attributable to correction.





§ 3.7.4 Concealed or Unknown Conditions


If the Contractor encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents or (2) unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall promptly provide notice to the Owner and the Architect before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than 14 days after first observance of the conditions. The Architect will promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Architect determines that they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, will recommend that an equitable adjustment be made in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. If the Architect determines that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Architect shall promptly notify the Owner and Contractor, stating the reasons. If either party disputes the Architect’s determination or recommendation, that party may submit a Claim as provided in Article 15.





§ 3.7.5 If, in the course of the Work, the Contractor encounters human remains or recognizes the existence of burial markers, archaeological sites or wetlands not indicated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner and Architect. Upon receipt of such notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume the operations. The Contractor shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in Article 15.





§ 3.7.6 In connection with the General Building, Plumbing, HVAC and Electrical Contracts, the Contractor shall provide the Owner through the Architect copies of inspection reports performed by the local building inspection department.








§ 3.8 Allowances


§ 3.8.1 The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Contract Documents. Items covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but the Contractor shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Contractor has reasonable objection.





§ 3.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents,


.1	allowances shall cover the cost to the Contractor of materials and equipment delivered at the site and all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;


.2	Contractor’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit, and other expenses contemplated for stated allowance amounts shall be included in the Contract Sum but not in the allowances; and


.3	whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs and the allowances under Section 3.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Contractor’s costs under Section 3.8.2.2.





§ 3.8.3 Materials and equipment under an allowance shall be selected by the Owner with reasonable promptness.





§ 3.9 Superintendent


§ 3.9.1 The Contractor shall employ a competent superintendent and necessary assistants who shall be in attendance at the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor, and communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor.





§ 3.9.2 The Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the name and qualifications of a proposed superintendent. Within 14 days of receipt of the information, the Architect may notify the Contractor, stating whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to the proposed superintendent or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.





§ 3.9.3 The Contractor shall not employ a proposed superintendent to whom the Owner or Architect has made reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not change the superintendent without the Owner’s consent, which shall not unreasonably be withheld or delayed.





§ 3.9.4 In the event that the Contractor 's superintendent(s) repeatedly fail to perform their functions in keeping with the standards commonly observed in the construction industry or repeatedly fail to cooperate and coordinate the Contractor's Work in conformance with the Contract Documents, then the Owner or Architect shall have the right to request the superintendent 's removal in writing. The Contractor agrees that, upon receipt of written notice, the Contractor shall remove the superintendent from the Project within two (2) weeks and provide a suitable replacement.





§ 3.9.5 Contractor's resident superintendent shall provide the Owner 's Representative and Architect with the Contractor's written daily field reports by email each working day.








§ 3.10 Contractor’s Construction and Submittal Schedules


§ 3.10.1 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall prepare and submit for the Owner's and Architect 's information a Contractor 's construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents, shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project, shall be related to the entire Project to the extent required by the Contract Documents, and shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work. The Contractor shall furnish the Owner and the Architect with copies of the schedule, all revisions to the schedule, and periodic (at least monthly) reports of actual performance of the Work in relation to the scheduled performance. The schedule must correlate with the schedule of values submitted by the Contractor.


The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract, shall submit for the Owner’s and Architect’s information a Contractor’s construction schedule for the Work. The schedule shall contain detail appropriate for the Project, including (1) the date of commencement of the Work, interim schedule milestone dates, and the date of Substantial Completion; (2) an apportionment of the Work by construction activity; and (3) the time required for completion of each portion of the Work. The schedule shall provide for the orderly progression of the Work to completion and shall not exceed time limits current under the Contract Documents. The schedule shall be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and Project.





§ 3.10.2 The Contractor, promptly after being awarded the Contract and thereafter as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, shall submit a submittal schedule for the Architect’s approval. The Architect’s approval shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be coordinated with the Contractor’s construction schedule, and (2) allow the Architect reasonable time to review submittals. If the Contractor fails to submit a submittal schedule, or fails to provide submittals in accordance with the approved submittal schedule, the Contractor shall not be entitled to any increase in Contract Sum or extension of Contract Time based on the time required for review of submittals.





§ 3.10.3 The Contractor shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent schedules submitted to the Owner and Architect.





§ 3.10.4 The Contractor shall keep informed of the progress and the detail of the Work of the Subcontractors and shall notify the Architect and Owner immediately of any failure of any Subcontractor to maintain the progress of the Work or of defective Work on the part of any Subcontractor. Failure of the Contractor to notify the Architect and Owner of schedule delays or defective Work shall be construed as acceptance by the Contractor of the status of the Work and as being satisfactory for the proper coordination of the Subcontractors' Work.











§ 3.11 Documents and Samples at the Site


The Contractor shall maintain at the site for the Owner one copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders and other Modifications, in good order. These documents shall be marked by Contractor on an on-going basis to record (i) deviations from the Drawings made during construction; (ii) details in the Work not previously shown;(iii) changes to existing conditions or existing conditions found to differ from those shown on any existing drawings; and (iv) such other information as either the Owner or Architect may reasonably request. In addition, Contractor shall maintain one record copy of the approved shop drawings, field test records, inspection certificates or records, manufacturers ' certificates, product data, samples and similar required submittals. The foregoing documents shall be available to the Architect and the Owner at all times and be delivered to the Architect following the completion of construction to enable the Architect to produce a set of "Record Drawings" showing the as-built condition of the improvements and any changes to existing conditions. Final payment and any retainage shall not be due and payable to the Contractor until after the foregoing documents have been delivered to the Architect.


The Contractor shall make available, at the Project site, the Contract Documents, including Change Orders, Construction Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections made during construction, and the approved Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar required submittals. These shall be in electronic form or paper copy, available to the Architect and Owner, and delivered to the Architect for submittal to the Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the Work as constructed.





§ 3.12 Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples


§ 3.12.1 Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, and other data specially prepared for the Work by the Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor, manufacturer, supplier, or distributor to illustrate some portion of the Work.





§ 3.12.2 Product Data consists of written, printed , drawn, sound recording, video recording, computer generated , electronic or other form of communication created by manufacturers, suppliers, testing organizations, standards organizations, manufacturer and supplier associations and trade groups, and similar creators of such communications, regarding materials, equipment, machinery, systems, processes and the components thereof, and regarding the installation, use, testing, operation, service, and maintenance thereof.


Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions, brochures, diagrams, and other information furnished by the Contractor to illustrate materials or equipment for some portion of the Work.





§ 3.12.3 Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish standards by which the Work will be judged.





§ 3.12.4 Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals are not Contract Documents. Their purpose is to demonstrate how the Contractor proposes to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents for those portions of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittals. Review by the Architect is subject to the limitations of Section 4.2.7. Informational submittals upon which the Architect is not expected to take responsive action may be so identified in the Contract Documents. Submittals that are not required by the Contract Documents may be returned by the Architect without action.





§ 3.12.5 The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve and submit to the Architect Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents in accordance with the submittal schedule required by the Architect or, in the absence of a required submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Owner or of separate contractors.


The Contractor shall review for compliance with the Contract Documents, approve, and submit to the Architect, Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals required by the Contract Documents, in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause no delay in the Work or in the activities of the Owner or of Separate Contractors.





§ 3.12.6 By submitting Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar submittals, the Contractor represents to the Owner and Architect that the Contractor has (1) reviewed and approved them, (2) determined and verified materials, field measurements and field construction criteria related thereto, or will do so, and (3) checked and coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the requirements of the Work and of the Contract Documents.





§ 3.12.7 The Contractor shall perform no portion of the Work for which the Contract Documents require submittal and review of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, until the respective submittal has been approved by the Architect.





§ 3.12.8 The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals and in accordance with the informational submittals upon which the Architect is not expected to take responsive action except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for deviations from requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect's approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals unless the Contractor has specifically informed the Architect in writing of such deviation at the time of submittal and (I) the Architect has given written approval to the specific deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples or similar submittals by the Architect's approval thereof.The Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Contract Documents by the Architect’s approval of Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, unless the Contractor has specifically notified the Architect of such deviation at the time of submittal and (1) the Architect has given written approval to the specific deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (2) a Change Order or Construction Change Directive has been issued authorizing the deviation. The Contractor shall not be relieved of responsibility for errors or omissions in Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, by the Architect’s approval thereof.





§ 3.12.9 The Contractor shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples, or similar submittals, to revisions other than those requested by the Architect on previous submittals. In the absence of such notice, the Architect’s approval of a resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.





§ 3.12.10 The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor 's responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences and procedures. The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law. If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by a properly licensed design professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional's written approval when submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review, approve or take other appropriate action on submittals for the purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall not be responsible for the adequacy of design criteria specified in the Contract Documents.The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services that constitute the practice of architecture or engineering unless such services are specifically required by the Contract Documents for a portion of the Work or unless the Contractor needs to provide such services in order to carry out the Contractor’s responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures. The Contractor shall not be required to provide professional services in violation of applicable law.





§ 3.12.10.1 If professional design services or certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or equipment are specifically required of the Contractor by the Contract Documents, the Owner and the Architect will specify all performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Contractor shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy and accuracy of the performance and design criteria provided in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall cause such services or certifications to be provided by an appropriately licensed design professional, whose signature and seal shall appear on all drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings, and other submittals prepared by such professional. Shop Drawings, and other submittals related to the Work, designed or certified by such professional, if prepared by others, shall bear such professional’s written approval when submitted to the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall be entitled to rely upon the adequacy and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by such design professionals, provided the Owner and Architect have specified to the Contractor the performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. Pursuant to this Section 3.12.10, the Architect will review and approve or take other appropriate action on submittals only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.





§ 3.12.10.2 If the Contract Documents require the Contractor’s design professional to certify that the Work has been performed in accordance with the design criteria, the Contractor shall furnish such certifications to the Architect at the time and in the form specified by the Architect.





§ 3.13.1 Only materials and equipment which are to be used directly in the Work shall be brought to and stored on the Project site by the Contractor. Materials stored off-site shall be stored in a bonded warehouse in the county where the Project is located. After equipment is no longer required for the Work, it shall be promptly removed from the Project site by the Contractor. Protection of construction materials and equipment stored at the Project site from weather, theft, damage and all other adversity is solely the responsibility of the Contractor.





§ 3.13.2 The Contractor and any entity for whom the Contractor is responsible shall not erect any sign on the Project site without the prior written consent of the Owner, which may be withheld in the sole discretion of the Owner.





§ 3.13.3 Contractor shall ensure that the Work, at all times, is performed in a manner that affords reasonable access, both vehicular and pedestrian, to the site of the Work and all adjacent areas. The Work shall be performed, to the fullest extent reasonably possible, in such a manner that public areas adjacent to the site of the Work shall be free from all debris, building materials and equipment likely to cause hazardous conditions. Without limitation of any other provision of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall use its best efforts to minimize any interference with the occupancy or beneficial use of any areas and buildings adjacent to the site of the Work.








§ 3.13 Use of Site


The Contractor shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Contract Documents and shall not unreasonably encumber the site with materials or equipment.





§ 3.14 Cutting and Patching


§ 3.14.1 The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to complete the Work or to make its parts fit together properly. All areas requiring cutting, fitting, or patching shall be restored to the condition existing prior to the cutting, fitting, or patching, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents.





§ 3.14.2 The Contractor shall not damage or endanger a portion of the Work or fully or partially completed construction of the Owner or Separate Contractors by cutting, patching, or otherwise altering such construction, or by excavation. The Contractor shall not cut or otherwise alter construction by the Owner or a Separate Contractor except with written consent of the Owner and of the Separate Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner or a Separate Contractor, its consent to cutting or otherwise altering the Work.





§ 3.15 Cleaning Up


§ 3.15.1 The Contractor on a daily basis shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials or rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. The premises are defined as the Project site and includes the Project limits as described in the Contract Documents, and public streets and private ways that are adjacent to the site and utilized for access and construction activity. The Contractor shall provide on-site containers for the collection of waste materials, debris, rubbish, and shall periodically, remove waste materials, debris and rubbish from the Work and dispose of all such materials at legal disposal areas away from the Project site. All cleaning operations shall be scheduled so as to ensure that contaminants resulting from the cleaning process will not fall on newly-coated or newly-painted surfaces. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste materials, rubbish, the Contractor's tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials from and about the Project, including mud and dirt on streets and roads caused by the operations of the Contractor and subcontractors and bear all cost associated with this task. Immediately after unpacking materials, equipment and machinery, all packing case lumber or other packing materials, wrapping or other like flammable waste shall be collected and removed from the building.  Care shall be taken not to mark, soil, or otherwise deface any finish. In the event that any finish becomes defaced in any way, the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors shall clean and restore such surfaces to their original condition.


The Contractor shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Work, the Contractor shall remove waste materials, rubbish, the Contractor’s tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus materials from and about the Project.





§ 3.15.2 If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so and the Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Contractor.


§ 3.15.3 The Contractor shall be responsible for the protection of the Work. Prior to the Architect 's inspection for Substantial Completion, the Contractor shall clean the exterior and interior surfaces exposed to view, remove temporary labels, stains, putty, soil, paint and foreign substances from all surfaces, including glass and painted surfaces, polish transparent and glossy surfaces, clean equipment and fixtures to a sanitary condition , replace air filters in mechanical equipment, clean roofs, gutters, and downspouts, remove obstructions and flush debris from drainage systems, clean site, sweep paved areas and rake clean other surfaces, remove trash and surplus materials from the site, clean and polish all floors, clean and polish all hardware, and repair all Work damaged during cleaning.





§ 3.15.4 After Substantial Completion and prior to Final Completion , the Contractor shall: (1) employ skilled workers for final cleaning, (2) remove grease, mastic adhesive, dust, dirt, stains, fingerprints, labels and other foreign materials from all sight-exposed interior and exterior surfaces, (3) wash and shine glazing and mirrors, (4) polish glossy surfaces to a clear shine, (5) vacuum carpeted and similar soft surfaces, (6) clean (damp mop with clean mop and water) resilient and hard surface floors repeating as necessary until no visible residue remains on floors, (7) clean plumbing fixtures to a sanitary condition, (8) clean surfaces of all equipment and remove excess lubrication, (9) clean permanent filters and replace disposable filters in ventilating systems if units were operated during construction and clean ducts, blowers and coils, (10) clean light fixtures, (11) remove waste, foreign matter and debris from roofs, gutters, downspouts, yard drains, and drainage ways, (12) remove waste, debris and surplus materials from the site, (13) remove the stains, spills and foreign substances from paved areas, and (14) broom clean exterior concrete and paved surfaces and rake clean the grounds.








§ 3.16 Access to Work


The Contractor shall provide the Owner and Architect with access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever located.





§ 3.17 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights


The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims for infringement of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold the Owner and Architect harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall not be responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers is required by the Contract Documents, or where the copyright violations are contained in Drawings, Specifications, or other documents prepared by the Owner or Architect. However, if an infringement of a copyright or patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Contractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for the loss unless the information is promptly furnished to the Architect.





§ 3.18 Indemnification


§ 3.18.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law the Contractor shall indemnify, defend , and hold harmless the Owner, Architect, Architect's consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, losses and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys' fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3.18.To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), but only to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or person described in this Section 3.18.





§ 3.18.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.18 by an employee of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, the indemnification obligation under Section 3.18.1 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Contractor or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.





§ 3.18.3 The Contractor hereby further acknowledges and agrees that should any Contractor or subcontractor or supplier of the Contractor file a claim or institute any legal proceeding against the Owner concerning any dispute or controversy arising from any acts, errors or omissions of the Contractor, then the Contractor shall indemnify (or contribute) and hold the Owner harmless from any and all costs, including, but not limited to legal costs and attorneys' fees and payments of any judgment  against the Owner.








ARTICLE 4   ARCHITECT


§ 4.1 General


§ 4.1.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be an Owner's representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Ce1tificate for Payment and, with the Owner's concurrence, from time to time during the one-year period for correction of work described in Section 12.2. The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents.The Architect is the person or entity retained by the Owner pursuant to Section 2.3.2 and identified as such in the Agreement.





§ 4.1.2 Duties, responsibilities, and limitations of authority of the Architect as set forth in the Contract Documents shall not be restricted, modified, or extended without written consent of the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.





§ 4.2 Administration of the Contract


§ 4.2.1 The Architect will provide administration of the Contract as described in the Contract Documents and will be an Owner’s representative during construction until the date the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. The Architect will have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in the Contract Documents.





§ 4.2.2 The Architect will visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise agreed with the Owner, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and to determine in general if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect will not be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Architect will not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, or for the safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, since these are solely the Contractor’s rights and responsibilities under the Contract Documents.





§ 4.2.3 On the basis of the site visits, the Architect will keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (3) defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. The Architect will not be responsible for the Contractor’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. The Architect will not have control over or charge of, and will not be responsible for acts or omissions of, the Contractor, Subcontractors, or their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.





§ 4.2.4 Communications 


Except as otherwise provided in the Contract Documents or when direct communications have been specially authorized, the Owner and Contractor shall endeavor to communicate with each other through the Architect about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract. Communications by and with the Architect's consultants shall be through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and material suppliers shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with separate contractors shall be through the Owner. The Contractor shall direct all correspondence relevant to the Contract Documents to the Architect with a copy for the Owner's representative. Architect shall then distribute to appropriate parties for review.The Owner and Contractor shall include the Architect in all communications that relate to or affect the Architect’s services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance of any direct communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. Communications by and with the Architect’s consultants shall be through the Architect. Communications by and with Subcontractors and suppliers shall be through the Contractor. Communications by and with Separate Contractors shall be through the Owner. The Contract Documents may specify other communication protocols.








§ 4.2.5 Based on the Architect's observations and evaluations of the Contractor's Applications for Payment, the Architect will review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.Based on the Architect’s evaluations of the Contractor’s Applications for Payment, the Architect will review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and will issue Certificates for Payment in such amounts.





§ 4.2.6 The Architect has shall reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Sections 13.5.2 and 13.5.3, whether or not such Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work. The Architect and the Contractor shall promptly notify, orally and in writing, the other party and the Owner of any fault or defect in the Work or nonconformance of the Work with the Contract Documents they may respectively y discover and each, upon discovery of the defect or nonconformance , shall be responsible for notifying the other patty and the Owner of those corrective actions they respectively take; provided , however, the Contractor shall have no duty to notify the Owner of discoveries made or actions taken by the Architect.


The Architect has authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect will have authority to require inspection or testing of the Work in accordance with Sections 13.4.2 and 13.4.3, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.





§ 4.2.7 The Architect will review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor’s submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples, but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect’s action will be taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Architect or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time in the Architect’s professional judgment to permit adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Contractor as required by the Contract Documents. The Architect’s review of the Contractor’s submittals shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligations under Sections 3.3, 3.5, and 3.12. The Architect’s review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Architect’s approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.





§ 4.2.8 The Architect will prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives, and may order minor changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4. The Architect will investigate and make determinations and recommendations regarding concealed and unknown conditions as provided in Section 3.7.4.





§ 4.2.9 The Architect will conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion pursuant to Section 9.8; receive and forward to the Owner, for the Owner’s review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract and assembled by the Contractor pursuant to Section 9.10; and issue a final Certificate for Payment pursuant to Section 9.10.





§ 4.2.10 If the Owner and Architect agree, the Architect will provide one or more Project representatives to assist in carrying out the Architect’s responsibilities at the site. The Owner shall notify the Contractor of any change in the duties, responsibilities and limitations of authority of the Project representatives.





§ 4.2.11 The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. Requests from Contractor for clarification or information shall clearly define the cause(s) of Contractor 's request and, as appropriate, shall include Contractor 's interpretation and Contractor's proposed solution. The Architect 's response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.


The Architect will interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness.





§ 4.2.12 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect will be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable from, the Contract Documents and will be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations and decisions, the Architect will endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, will not show partiality to either, and will not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith.





§ 4.2.13 The Architect’s decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect will be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the Contract Documents.





§ 4.2.14 The Architect will review and respond to requests for information about the Contract Documents. The Architect’s response to such requests will be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect will prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in response to the requests for information.





ARTICLE 5   SUBCONTRACTORS


§ 5.1 Definitions


§ 5.1.1 A Subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct contract with the Contractor to perform a portion of the Work at the site. The term “Subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Subcontractor. The term “Subcontractor” does not include a Separate Contractor or the subcontractors of a Separate Contractor.





§ 5.1.2 A Sub-Subcontractor is a person or entity of a lower tier than a Subcontractor who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor or with another Sub-Subcontractor. The term "Sub subcontractor" is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor.


A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity who has a direct or indirect contract with a Subcontractor to perform a portion of the Work at the site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor.





§ 5.2 Award of Subcontracts and Other Contracts for Portions of the Work


§ 5.2.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor, as soon as practicable after award of the Contract, shall notify the Owner and Architect of the persons or entities proposed for each principal portion of the Work, including those who are to furnish materials or equipment fabricated to a special design. Within 14 days of receipt of the information, the Architect may notify the Contractor whether the Owner or the Architect (1) has reasonable objection to any such proposed person or entity or (2) requires additional time for review. Failure of the Architect to provide notice within the 14-day period shall constitute notice of no reasonable objection.





§ 5.2.2 The Contractor shall not contract with a proposed person or entity to whom the Owner or Architect has made reasonable and timely objection. The Contractor shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Contractor has made reasonable objection.





§ 5.2.3 3 If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change, if any, unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names as required.


If the Owner or Architect has reasonable objection to a person or entity proposed by the Contractor, the Contractor shall propose another to whom the Owner or Architect has no reasonable objection. If the proposed but rejected Subcontractor was reasonably capable of performing the Work, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be increased or decreased by the difference, if any, occasioned by such change, and an appropriate Change Order shall be issued before commencement of the substitute Subcontractor’s Work. However, no increase in the Contract Sum or Contract Time shall be allowed for such change unless the Contractor has acted promptly and responsively in submitting names as required.





§ 5.2.4 The Contractor shall not substitute a Subcontractor, person, or entity for one previously selected if the Owner or Architect makes reasonable objection to such substitution.





§ 5.2.5 Each Contractor, Subcontractor, and Sub-Subcontractor shall be required to completely familiarize themselves with the plans and specifications, to visit the Work site to complete familiarize themselves with existing conditions, and to conduct any other appropriate investigations, inspections or inquiries prior to submission of a bid or proposal. No increases in Contract Sums shall be allowed for failure to so inspect and investigate.








§ 5.3 Subcontractual Relations


§ 5.3.1By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the Subcontractor 's Work, which the Contractor, by these Documents, assumes toward the Owner and Architect. The terms and conditions of the Contract Documents shall be incorporated by reference into each subcontract agreement, except as provided below. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents.  Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors. The obligations of the Contractor under this section are material terms of the Contract Documents.





§ 5.3.2 All agreements between the Contractor and Subcontractors shall state be in writing that the Owner "is an intended third-party beneficiary of this Contract." Consistent with third-party beneficiary status, neither the Owner nor the Architect shall be obligated to pay or to insure the payment of any monies to Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors.


By appropriate written agreement, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the Contractor all the obligations and responsibilities, including the responsibility for safety of the Subcontractor’s Work that the Contractor, by these Contract Documents, assumes toward the Owner and Architect. Each subcontract agreement shall preserve and protect the rights of the Owner and Architect under the Contract Documents with respect to the Work to be performed by the Subcontractor so that subcontracting thereof will not prejudice such rights, and shall allow to the Subcontractor, unless specifically provided otherwise in the subcontract agreement, the benefit of all rights, remedies, and redress against the Contractor that the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, has against the Owner. Where appropriate, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor to enter into similar agreements with Sub-subcontractors. The Contractor shall make available to each proposed Subcontractor, prior to the execution of the subcontract agreement, copies of the Contract Documents to which the Subcontractor will be bound, and, upon written request of the Subcontractor, identify to the Subcontractor terms and conditions of the proposed subcontract agreement that may be at variance with the Contract Documents. Subcontractors will similarly make copies of applicable portions of such documents available to their respective proposed Sub-subcontractors.








§ 5.4 Contingent Assignment of Subcontracts


§ 5.4.1 Each subcontract agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner, provided that


.1	assignments is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to Section 14.2 and only for those subcontract agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the Subcontractor and Contractor; and


.2	assignments is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the Contract.





When the Owner accepts the assignment of a subcontract agreement, the Owner assumes the Contractor’s rights and obligations under the subcontract.





§ 5.4.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the Subcontractor’s compensation shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.





§ 5.4.3 Upon such assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity.


Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 5.4, the Owner may further assign the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity. If the Owner assigns the subcontract to a successor contractor or other entity, the Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor contractor’s obligations under the subcontract.





ARTICLE 6   CONSTRUCTION BY OWNER OR BY SEPARATE CONTRACTORS


§ 6.1 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts


§ 6.1.1 The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner's own forces, and to award separate contracts in connection with other portions of the Project or other construction or operations on the site.The term “Separate Contractor(s)” shall mean other contractors retained by the Owner under separate agreements. The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces, and with Separate Contractors retained under Conditions of the Contract substantially similar to those of this Contract, including those provisions of the Conditions of the Contract related to insurance and waiver of subrogation.





§ 6.1.2 When separate contracts are awarded for different portions of the Project or other construction or operations on the site, the term “Contractor” in the Contract Documents in each case shall mean the Contractor who executes each separate Owner-Contractor Agreement.





§ 6.1.3 The Owner shall provide for coordination of the activities of the Owner’s own forces and of each Separate Contractor with the Work of the Contractor, who shall cooperate with them. The Contractor shall participate with any Separate Contractors and the Owner in reviewing their construction schedules. The Contractor shall make any revisions to its construction schedule deemed necessary after a joint review and mutual agreement. The construction schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner until subsequently revised.





§ 6.1.4 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, when the Owner performs construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate Contractors shall have the same obligations and rights that the Contractor has under the Conditions of the Contract, including, without excluding others, those stated in Article 3, this Article 6, and Articles 10, 11, and 12.





§ 6.2 Mutual Responsibility


§ 6.2.1 The Contractor shall afford the Owner and Separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the Contractor’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Contract Documents.





§ 6.2.2 If part of the Contractor’s Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or operations by the Owner or a Separate Contractor, the Contractor shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the Work, promptly notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Contractor’s Work. Failure of the Contractor to notify the Architect of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to proceeding with the Work shall constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or Separate Contractor’s completed or partially completed construction is fit and proper to receive the Contractor’s Work. The Contractor shall not be responsible for discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the Owner or Separate Contractor that are not apparent.





§ 6.2.3 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a Separate Contractor because of the Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities or defective construction. The Owner shall be responsible to the Contractor for costs the Contractor incurs because of a Separate Contractor’s delays, improperly timed activities, damage to the Work or defective construction.





§ 6.2.4 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage that the Contractor wrongfully causes to completed or partially completed construction or to property of the Owner or Separate Contractor as provided in Section 10.2.5.





§ 6.2.5 The Owner and each Separate Contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching as are described for the Contractor in Section 3.14.





§ 6.3 Owner’s Right to Clean Up


If a dispute arises among the Contractor, Separate Contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the Owner may clean up and the Architect will allocate the cost among those responsible.





ARTICLE 7   CHANGES IN THE WORK


§ 7.1 General


§ 7.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the Contract, by Change Order, Construction Change Directive or order for a minor change in the Work, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 7 and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.





§ 7.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement among the Owner, Contractor, and Architect. A Construction Change Directive requires agreement by the Owner and Architect and may or may not be agreed to by the Contractor. An order for a minor change in the Work may be issued by the Architect alone.





§ 7.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or order for a minor change in the Work.





§ 7.1.4 Allowance balances may be used to fund changes in the Work. The total fee of the Contractor shall be reconciled with the final balances for Allowances and Contingency line items to ultimately ensure that the final Contractor's Fee is a multiplier of the actual cost of the Work covered by the Allowance and Contingency items.








§ 7.2 Change Orders


§ 7.2.1 A Change Order is a written instrument prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner, Contractor, and Architect stating their agreement upon all of the following:


.1	The change in the Work;


.2	The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum; and


.3	The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time. Any Change Order which adjusts        the Contract Time or the date of Substantial Completion must be signed, in addition to the foregoing, by an authorized representative of Wingate University, Blue Ridge Community College, and Henderson County Hospital Corporation.





§ 7.2.2 The Contractor stipulates that the acceptance of a Change Order by the Contractor constitutes full accord and satisfaction for any and all Claims, whether direct or indirect, arising from the subject matter of the Change Order.





§ 7.2.3 When changes in the Contract Sum, either additions or deductions, are based upon unit prices and/or allowances, the total fee of the Contractor shall be reconciled with the final cost of the Work to ensure that the final Contractor's Fee is the correct multiplier of the actual cost of the Work.











§ 7.3 Construction Change Directives


§ 7.3.1 A Construction Change Directive is a written order prepared by the Architect and signed by the Owner and Architect, directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. The Owner may by Construction Change Directive, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other revisions, the Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly.  Any Construction Change Directive which adjusts the Contract Time or the date of Substantial Completion must be signed, in addition to the foregoing, by an authorized representative of Wingate University, Blue Ridge Community College, and Henderson County Hospital Corporation.








§ 7.3.2 A Construction Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change Order.





§ 7.3.3 If the Construction Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum, the adjustment shall be based on one of the following methods:


.1	Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit evaluation;


.2	Unit prices stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon;


.3	Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or


.4	As provided in Section 7.3.4.





§ 7.3.4 If the Contractor does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum, the Architect shall determine the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase in the Contract Sum, an amount for overhead and profit as set forth in the Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in the Agreement, a reasonable amount. In such case, and also under Section 7.3.3.3, the Contractor shall keep and present, in such form as the Architect may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, costs for the purposes of this Section 7.3.4 shall be limited to the following:


.1	Costs of labor, including applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, workers’ compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Architect;


.2	Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or consumed;


.3	Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Contractor or others;


.4	Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, directly related to the change; and


.5	Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.





§ 7.3.5 If the Contractor disagrees with the adjustment in the Contract Time, the Contractor may make a Claim in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.





§ 7.3.6 Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in the Work involved and advise the Architect of the Contractor’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or Contract Time.





§ 7.3.7 A Construction Change Directive signed by the Contractor indicates the Contractor’s agreement therewith, including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time or the method for determining them. Such agreement shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change Order.





§ 7.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Contractor to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net decrease in the Contract Sum shall be actual net cost as confirmed by the Architect. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with respect to that change.





§ 7.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Construction Change Directive to the Owner, the Contractor may request payment for Work completed under the Construction Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The Architect will make an interim determination for purposes of monthly certification for payment for those costs and certify for payment the amount that the Architect determines, in the Architect’s professional judgment, to be reasonably justified. The Architect’s interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum on the same basis as a Change Order, subject to the right of either party to disagree and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15.





§ 7.3.10 When the Owner and Contractor agree with a determination made by the Architect concerning the adjustments in the Contract Sum and Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such agreement shall be effective immediately and the Architect will prepare a Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or any part of a Construction Change Directive.





§ 7.4 Minor Changes in the Work


The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. The Architect’s order for minor changes shall be in writing. If the Contractor believes that the proposed minor change in the Work will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor shall notify the Architect and shall not proceed to implement the change in the Work. If the Contractor performs the Work set forth in the Architect’s order for a minor change without prior notice to the Architect that such change will affect the Contract Sum or Contract Time, the Contractor waives any adjustment to the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time.





ARTICLE 8   TIME


§ 8.1 Definitions


§ 8.1.1 Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including authorized adjustments, allotted in the Contract Documents for Substantial Completion of the Work.





§ 8.1.2 The date of commencement of the Work Shall Commence upon the last occurrence of all the following events: (a) Owner's acceptance of the Construction Manager 's Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, (b) the Owner's issuance of a Notice to Proceed, and (c) the receipt of all required construction permits.


The date of commencement of the Work is the date established in the Agreement.





§ 8.1.3 The date of Substantial Completion of the Project is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.  The date Final Completion for each phase of Work is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Paragraph 9.10.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Owner, the Contractor agrees that each phase’s Final Completion shall occur not more than thirty (30) days after the date of Substantial Completion.


The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by the Architect in accordance with Section 9.8.





§ 8.1.4 The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically defined.





§ 8.2 Progress and Completion


§ 8.2.1 Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Agreement, the Contractor confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.





§ 8.2.2 The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, permanently commence operations on the site or elsewhere prior to the effective date of insurance required by Article 11 to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner.





§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion and Final Completion within the Contract Time.





§ 8.2.4 The Contractor is subject to liquidated damages, as specified in the Agreement, if the Work is not completed by the date of Substantial Completion.


The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by agreement or instruction of the Owner in writing, commence the Work prior to the effective date of insurance required to be furnished by the Contractor and Owner.





§ 8.2.3 The Contractor shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion within the Contract Time.





§ 8.3 Delays and Extensions of Time


§ 8.3.1 If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by an act or neglect of the Owner or Architect, or of an employee of either, or of a separate contractor employed by the Owner; or by changes ordered in the Work; or government action, fire, or by delay authorized in writing by the Owner or by other causes that the Architect determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time may be extended by Change Order to the extent such delay will prevent the Construction Manager from achieving Substantial Completion within the Contract Time and if the performance of the Work is not, was not, and would not have been delayed by any other cause for which the Construction Manager is not entitled to an extension in the Contract Time under the Contract Documents.  The Construction Manager further acknowledges and agrees that adjustments in the Contract Time will be permitted for a delay only to the extent such delay (i) is not caused, or could not have been anticipated, by the Contract, (ii) could not be limited or avoided by the Construction Manager’s timely notice to the Owner of the delay or reasonable likelihood that a delay will occur, and (iii) is of a duration of not less than one (1) day.


If the Contractor is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) an act or neglect of the Owner or Architect, of an employee of either, or of a Separate Contractor; (2) by changes ordered in the Work; (3) by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions documented in accordance with Section 15.1.6.2, or other causes beyond the Contractor’s control; (4) by delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) by other causes that the Contractor asserts, and the Architect determines, justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such reasonable time as the Architect may determine.





§ 8.3.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.





§ 8.3.3 This Agreement does not permit the recovery by the Contractor of monetary damages, including, without limitation, extended home office overhead expenses, general conditions, consequential damages, or other compensable damages for delay or disruption or for extensions of time due to bad weather or acts of God, unless causes solely by the Owner or its Agent. In the event that a delay, disruption or extension of time beyond the contract date for Substantial Completion is caused solely by the Owner or its Agent, then the Contractor may claim actual direct expenses that have only been incurred as a direct result thereof.





§ 8.3.4 Adverse weather conditions shall be defined as "weather extremes" (precipitation, temperature, and/or winds) which could not have been anticipated and which prohibit the type of construction activity scheduled during the time of adverse weather. Requests for extensions of Contract Time shall comply with section 15.3.7 herein.





§ 8.3.5 Contractor agrees that dates w1der the Contract will not be extended due to normal inclement weather. For a time extension to be granted for abnormal, inclement weather a) such weather must, in the opinion of the Architect and the Owner 's Representative, actually have an adverse effect upon the progress of the Contractor's work which is of a critical nature, and b) in the opinion of the Architect and the Owner 's Representative, the adverse effect must not be due to any fault or negligence of Contractor and could not have been avoided by the Contractor through proper planning, coordination and implementation of adequate weather protection necessary to allow the Work to be continued without adverse effect upon labor production. Contractor agrees that the fact that abnormal inclement weather may occur does not, by itself, justify any time extension.





§ 8.3.6 Failure on the Contractor 's part to submit a claim for adverse weather each month shall constitute a waiver of the claim for the month. The Construction Progress Schedule shall be updated each month that unanticipated adverse weather days accrue.





§ 8.4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLETION


§ 8.4.1 The Contractor shall furnish such manpower, materials, facilities and equipment and shall work such hours, including night shifts, overtime operations, Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, as may be necessary to ensure the progress and completion of the Work in accordance with the approved and then current updated Construction Progress Schedule. If work falls behind such schedule and if it becomes apparent from such schedule that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, the Contractor agrees that it shall, as necessary, take some or all of the following actions at no additional cost to the Owner, as required to substantially eliminate, in the judgment of the Architect, the backlog of work:





1. Increase manpower in quantities and crafts necessary;


2. Increase the number of working hours per shift, shifts per working day, working days per week, the an10unt of equipment, or any combination of the foregoing;


3. Reschedule activities as needed, including critical path activities where possible; and/or


4. Employ the services of a construction time management consultant to be approved by the Owner at Contractor 's sole cost and expense.


5. Use construction contingency to expedite work without increasing the GMP.





§ 8.4.2 The Architect may require the Contractor to submit a recovery schedule within a reasonable time set by the Architect demonstrating the Contractor 's program and proposed plan to make up the lag in scheduled progress and to ensure completion of the Work within the Contract Time. If the Architect finds the proposed plan not acceptable, it may require the Contractor to submit a new plan. If the actions taken by the Contractor on the second proposed plan are not satisfactory, the Architect may require the Contractor to take any of the actions set forth in this Section 8.4, including use of construction contingency, without additional cost to the Owner, to make up the lag in scheduled progress.





§ 8.4.3 Failure of the Contractor to comply with the requirements of this section 8.4 may be considered grounds for determination by the Owner that the Contractor is failing to prosecute the Work with sufficient diligence to ensure its completion within the Contract Time.





§ 8.4.4 Damages for the delay shall be assessed against the various contractors regardless of their respective degrees of responsibility for the delay in the event that work is delayed beyond the Contract Times. Therefore, the Contractor and Owner agree that for each day of delay in excess of the Contract Times for construction, each Contractor shall pay to the Owner the sum of one thousand dollars ($1,000) per day related to Substantial Completion and five hundred dollars ($500) per day related to Final Completion as liquidated damages, not as a penalty, reasonably estimated in advance to cover the losses to be incurred by the Owner by reason of failure of the Contractors to complete the Work within the Contract Times, such time being of the essence of the Contract and a material consideration thereof.





Furthermore, the Owner may, upon recommendation of the Architect and upon written notice to the Contractors, withhold from the Contractors monthly pay requests up to the sum of five hundred dollars ($500) per day for each day that the Project is determined to be behind schedule at any time that the Project has remained behind schedule for more than thirty days.  Said damages shall be withheld until such time as it is determined that the Project is back on schedule and may be applied to satisfy in whole or part any final amount of liquidated damages assessed against the Assessment of liquidated damages is not subject to the provisions of Article 15.





This Section 8.3 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the Contract Documents.





ARTICLE 9   PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION


§ 9.1 Contract Sum


§ 9.1.1 The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized adjustments, is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work under the Contract Documents.





§ 9.1.2 If unit prices are stated in the Contract Documents or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities originally contemplated are materially changed so that application of such unit prices to the actual quantities causes substantial inequity to the Owner or Contractor, the applicable unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.





§ 9.2 Schedule of Values


Where the Contract is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Contractor shall submit a schedule of values to the Architect before the first Application for Payment, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in the form, and supported by the data to substantiate its accuracy, required by the Architect. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment. Any changes to the schedule of values shall be submitted to the Architect and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require, and unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s subsequent Applications for Payment.





§ 9.3 Applications for Payment


§ 9.3.1 The monthly Application for Payment shall be submitted by the Contractor so it will be received by the Architect not later than the last day of the month. The Architect will submit Applications for Payment that are approved to the Owner by the fifth (5) of the following month, and the Owner will make payment to the Contractor by the 15th of that month. The Applications for Payment for operations completed shall be in accordance with the Schedule of Values.





Each copy of the Contractor 's monthly Application for Payment shall bear the following certification over the Contractor’s signature:





I hereby certify that the labor and material listed on this statement have been used in the construction of this work and that all material included in this statement and not yet incorporated into the construction is stored on the site or off site in accordance with the terms of the Contract Documents and that the material is protected and insured as specified and that all such labor and material have been paid for in full.





Payments will be made on the basis of ninety-five percent (95%) of approved monthly applications. When the Owner has received the Architect 's final Certificate for Payment and the Owner, the Architect and all regulatory agencies have formally accepted all of the work, final payment will be made within thirty (30) days thereafter.





When work under the Contract is fifty percent (50%) complete and if satisfactory progress is being made, and subject to approval of the Architect and the Contractor 's Surety, the Owner may make remaining monthly payments in full. "Satisfactory progress" W1der this section, includes but is not limited to, the duty of the Contractor to fully correct all Work that has been identified in writing as "nonconforming" by the Architect, Owner or Engineer. Such corrective Work must be accepted by the Architect, Owner or Engineer.





The full Contract retainage may be reinstated if the manner and progress of the Work does not remain satisfactory to the Architect and Owner and to the extent necessary (not to exceed 5% at any one time) to enable the Owner to retain 2.5% total retainage through final completion. In addition to the provisions of this section, the Owner retains the right to withhold payment for W1satisfactory job progress, defective construction not remedied, disputed work, or third-party claims filed against the owner or reasonable evidence that a third-party claim will be   filed.





At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Architect an itemized Application for Payment prepared in accordance with the schedule of values, if required under Section 9.2, for completed portions of the Work. The application shall be notarized, if required, and supported by all data substantiating the Contractor’s right to payment that the Owner or Architect require, such as copies of requisitions, and releases and waivers of liens from Subcontractors and suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Contract Documents.





§ 9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 7.3.9, such applications may include requests for payment on account of changes in the Work that have been properly authorized by Construction Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the Architect, but not yet included in Change Orders.





§ 9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the Contractor does not intend to pay a Subcontractor or supplier, unless such Work has been performed by others whom the Contractor intends to pay.





§ 9.3.2  Payments will be made on the basis of invoices for specific materials or equipment incorporated in the Work and specified materials or equipment (I) suitably stored at the site or (2) suitably stored at some off-site location, provided the following conditions are met for off-site storage:





.1 The location must be agreed to, in writing, by the Owner and Surety.


.2 The location must be a bonded warehouse.


.3 The Contractor's Surety must agree, in writing, to the amounts included in each Application for Payment.


.4 The Contractor must bear the cost of the Owner 's and the Architect's expenses   related to visiting the off-site storage area and reviewing the stored contents.


.5 Payment shall not include any charges for overhead or profit on stored materials.


.6 Payments for materials or equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon submission by the Contractor of bills of sale or such other procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner 's title to such materials or equipment or otherwise protect the Owner 's interest, including applicable insurance (naming the Owner as insured and naming the specific materials or equipment stored and their location) and transportation to the site for those materials and equipment delivered to the Owner 's site. Failure to follow these procedures shall result in nonpayment for storage of or insurance on stored materials and equipment. Failure to follow these procedures shall also result in nonpayment of materials and equipment until such materials and equipment are incorporated into the Work.








§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously y issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to the best of the Contractor's knowledge, information and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests or encumbrances in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, material suppliers, or other persons or entities making a claim by reason of having provided labor, materials and equipment relating to the Work. CONTRACTOR SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD OWNER HARMLESS FROM ANY LIENS, CLAIMS, SECURITY INTERESTS OR ENCUMBRANCES FILED BY THE CONTRACTOR SUBCONTRACTORS, SUB-SUBCONTRACTORS, MATERIAL SUPPLIERS OR ANYONE CLAIMING BY, THROUGH OR UNDER THE CONTRACTOR, SUBCONTRACTOR, OR SUB-SUBCONTRACTOR FOR ITEMS COVERED BY PAYMENTS MADE BY THE OWNER TO CONTRACTOR.


Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, payments shall be made on account of materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved in advance by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon compliance by the Contractor with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable insurance, storage, and transportation to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site.





§ 9.3.3 The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. The Contractor further warrants that upon submittal of an Application for Payment all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and payments received from the Owner shall, to the best of the Contractor’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, in favor of the Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, or other persons or entities that provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to the Work.





§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment


§ 9.4.1 The Architect will, within five days after receipt of the Contractor 's Application for Payment, either issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor, for such amount as the Architect determines is properly due, or notify the Contractor and Owner in writing of the Architect's reasons for withholding certification in whole or in part as provided in Section 9.5.l.The Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either (1) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment, with a copy to the Contractor; or (2) issue to the Owner a Certificate for Payment for such amount as the Architect determines is properly due, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reasons for withholding certification in part as provided in Section 9.5.1; or (3) withhold certification of the entire Application for Payment, and notify the Contractor and Owner of the Architect’s reason for withholding certification in whole as provided in Section 9.5.1.





§ 9.4.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based on the Architect's observations at the site and evaluation of the Work and the data comprising the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect 's knowledge, information and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion and to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will further constitute a representation that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. However, the issuance of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (l) made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures.


The issuance of a Certificate for Payment will constitute a representation by the Architect to the Owner, based on the Architect’s evaluation of the Work and the data in the Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information, and belief, the Work has progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. The foregoing representations are subject to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, to results of subsequent tests and inspections, to correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and to specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. However, the issuance of a Certificate for Payment will not be a representation that the Architect has (1) made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work; (2) reviewed construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures; (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor’s right to payment; or (4) made examination to ascertain how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of the Contract Sum.





§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification


§ 9.5.1 The Architect may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to protect the Owner, if in the Architect’s opinion the representations to the Owner required by Section 9.4.2 cannot be made. If the Architect is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application, the Architect will notify the Contractor and Owner as provided in Section 9.4.1. If the Contractor and Architect cannot agree on a revised amount, the Architect will promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount for which the Architect is able to make such representations to the Owner. The Architect may also withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a Certificate for Payment previously issued, to such extent as may be necessary in the Architect’s opinion to protect the Owner from loss for which the Contractor is responsible, including loss resulting from acts and omissions described in Section 3.3.2, because of


.1	defective Work not remedied;


.2	third party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims, unless security acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Contractor;


.3	failure of the Contractor to make payments properly to Subcontractors or suppliers for labor, materials or equipment;


.4	reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;


.5	damage to the Owner or a Separate Contractor;


.6	reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay; or


.7	repeated failures to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. 


.8 liens or claims of liens with respect to any portion of the work; or


.9 failure to submit a written plan indicating action by the Contractor to restore, keep or maintain the Work on schedule for completion of Work within the Contract Time.








§ 9.5.2 When either party disputes the Architect’s decision regarding a Certificate for Payment under Section 9.5.1, in whole or in part, that party may submit a Claim in accordance with Article 15.





§ 9.5.3 When the reasons for withholding certification are removed, certification will be made for amounts previously withheld.





§ 9.5.4 If the Architect withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, issue joint checks to the Contractor and to any Subcontractor or supplier to whom the Contractor failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered. If the Owner makes payments by joint check, the Owner shall notify the Architect and the Contractor shall reflect such payment on its next Application for Payment. Notwithstanding any provision contained within this Article, if the Work has not attained Substantial Completion or Final Completion by the required dates, subject to extensions of time allowed under the Contract Documents, then the Architect may withhold any further Certificate for Payment to the Contractor to the extent necessary to preserve sufficient funds to complete construction of the Project and to cover liquidated damages. The Owner shall not be deemed in default by reasons of withholding payment as provided for in Sections 9.3.2, 9.5.1 or


this Section.








§ 9.6 Progress Payments


§ 9.6.1 After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment for undisputed amounts in the manner and within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect. The Owner shall notify the Contractor within twenty-one days if the Owner disputes the Architect's Certificate for Payment or the Contractor's Payment Application, listing the specific reasons for nonpayment. Payments to the Contractor shall not be construed as releasing the Contractor or the Surety from any obligations under the Contract Documents or the Performance and Payment Bonds.


After the Architect has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within the time provided in the Contract Documents, and shall so notify the Architect.





§ 9.6.2 The Contractor shall pay each Subcontractor, no later than seven days after receipt of payment from the Owner, the amount to which the Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the Contractor on account of the Subcontractor’s portion of the Work. The Contractor shall, by appropriate agreement with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make payments to Sub-subcontractors in a similar manner.





§ 9.6.3 The Architect will, on request, furnish to a Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of completion or amounts applied for by the Contractor and action taken thereon by the Architect and Owner on account of portions of the Work done by such Subcontractor.





§ 9.6.4 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Contractor that the Contractor has properly paid Subcontractors and suppliers amounts paid by the Owner to the Contractor for subcontracted Work. If the Contractor fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the right to contact Subcontractors and suppliers to ascertain whether they have been properly paid. Neither the Owner nor Architect shall have an obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of money to, a Subcontractor or supplier, except as may otherwise be required by law.





§ 9.6.5 The Contractor’s payments to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in Sections 9.6.2, 9.6.3 and 9.6.4.





§ 9.6.6 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the Owner shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Contract Documents.





§ 9.6.7 Unless the Contractor provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum, payments received by the Contractor for Work properly performed by Subcontractors or provided by suppliers shall be held by the Contractor for those Subcontractors or suppliers who performed Work or furnished materials, or both, under contract with the Contractor for which payment was made by the Owner. Nothing contained herein shall require money to be placed in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Contractor, create any fiduciary liability or tort liability on the part of the Contractor for breach of trust, or entitle any person or entity to an award of punitive damages against the Contractor for breach of the requirements of this provision.





§ 9.6.8 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees and litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any Subcontractor or supplier of any tier. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim for payment, the Owner shall notify the Contractor. If approved by the applicable court, when required, the Contractor may substitute a surety bond for the property against which the lien or other claim for payment has been asserted.





§ 9.7 Failure of Payment


If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within five days after receipt of the Contractor 's Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within ten days after the date established in the Contract Documents the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days ' written notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor 's reasonable costs of shut-down, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.


If the Architect does not issue a Certificate for Payment, through no fault of the Contractor, within seven days after receipt of the Contractor’s Application for Payment, or if the Owner does not pay the Contractor within seven days after the date established in the Contract Documents, the amount certified by the Architect or awarded by binding dispute resolution, then the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice to the Owner and Architect, stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Contract Documents.








§ 9.8 Substantial Completion


§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of each phase of the Work when the Work is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize that phase of the Work for its intended use.Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated portion thereof is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for its intended use.





§ 9.8.2 When the Contractor considers that the Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to accept separately, is substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Architect a comprehensive list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.





§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s list, the Architect will make an inspection to determine whether the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Architect’s inspection discloses any item, whether or not included on the Contractor’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work or designated portion thereof for its intended use, the Contractor shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct such item upon notification by the Architect. In such case, the Contractor shall then submit a request for another inspection by the Architect to determine Substantial Completion.





§ 9.8.4 When the Work is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion.When the Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Architect will prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall establish the date of Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance; and fix the time within which the Contractor shall finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Contract Documents shall commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.





§ 9.8.5 The Contractor shall achieve Final Completion of each phase of the Work within thirty (30) days after the date of Substantial Completion for each phase.The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted to the Owner and Contractor for their written acceptance of responsibilities assigned to them in the Certificate. Upon such acceptance, and consent of surety if any, the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Such payment shall be adjusted for Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.





§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use


§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented to by the insurer as required under Section 11.3.1.5 and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Work at any stage when such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Contractor, provided such occupancy or use is consented to by the insurer and authorized by public authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the portion is substantially complete, provided the Owner and Contractor have accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of the Work and commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. When the Contractor considers a portion substantially complete, the Contractor shall prepare and submit a list to the Architect as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Contractor to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Contractor or, if no agreement is reached, by decision of the Architect.





§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner, Contractor, and Architect shall jointly inspect the area to be occupied or portion of the Work to be used in order to determine and record the condition of the Work.





§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Work shall not constitute acceptance of Work not complying with the requirements of the Contract Documents.





§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment


§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice that the Work is ready for final inspection and acceptance and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Architect will promptly make such inspection. When the Architect finds the Work acceptable under the Contract Documents and the Contract fully performed, the Architect will promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment stating that to the best of the Architect’s knowledge, information and belief, and on the basis of the Architect’s on-site visits and inspections, the Work has been completed in accordance with the Contract Documents and that the entire balance found to be due the Contractor and noted in the final Certificate is due and payable. The Architect’s final Certificate for Payment will constitute a further representation that conditions listed in Section 9.10.2 as precedent to the Contractor’s being entitled to final payment have been fulfilled.





§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Contractor submits to the Architect (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the Work for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered (less amounts withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the Contract Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement that the Contractor knows of no reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Contract Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) documentation of any special warranties, such as manufacturers’ warranties or specific Subcontractor warranties, and (6) if required by the Owner, other data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts and releases and waivers of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be designated by the Owner. If a Subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the Owner, the Contractor may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance. If a lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance remains unsatisfied after payments are made, the Contractor shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in discharging the lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.





In addition, the following items must be completed and received by the Owner before Final Payment will be due:





.1 Written certifications required by Sections 10.5, 10.6, and10.7;


.2 Final list of Subcontractors (AIA Document G705);


.3 Warranties, organized as required elsewhere in the Contract Documents;


.4   Maintenance and Instruction Manuals;


.5 The Owner 's Final Completion Certificate; and


.6 Record drawings and "as-built" drawings. At the completion of the Project, the Contractor shall submit one complete set of "as-built" drawings, with all changes made during construction, including concealed mechanical, electrical and plumbing items. The Contractor shall submit these as electronic, sepia, or other acceptable medium, in the discretion of the Owner.





Documents identified as affidavits must be notarized. All manuals will contain an index listing the information submitted. The index section will be divided and identified by tabbing each section as listed in the index. Upon request, the Architect will furnish the Contractor with blank copies of the forms listed above. Final payment shall be paid by the Owner to the Contractor within thirty (30) days after the Owner 's Board has voted to approve Final Payment.





§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through no fault of the Contractor or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, and the Architect so confirms, the Owner shall, upon application by the Contractor and certification by the Architect, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed, corrected, and accepted. If the remaining balance for Work not fully completed or corrected is less than retainage stipulated in the Contract Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the written consent of the surety to payment of the balance due for that portion of the Work fully completed and accepted shall be submitted by the Contractor to the Architect prior to certification of such payment. Such payment shall be made under terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.





§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from


.1	liens, Claims, security interests, or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;


.2	failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Contract Documents; 


.3	terms of special warranties required by the Contract Documents; or


.4	audits performed by the Owner, if permitted by the Contract Documents, after final payment.





§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a supplier, shall constitute a waiver of claims by that payee except those previously made in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time of final Application for Payment.





ARTICLE 10   PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY


§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs


The Contractor shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the performance of the Contract.





§ 10.1.1 The Contractor's employees, agents, Subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for those acts any of them may be liable, shall not perform any service for the Owner while under the influence of any amount of alcohol or any controlled substance, or use, possess, distribute, or sell alcoholic beverages or any controlled substance while on the Owner's premises. No person shall use, possess, distribute or sell illicit drugs or drug paraphernalia; misuse legitimate prescription drugs; or act in contravention of warnings on medications while performing the Work or on the Owner's premises.





§ 10.1.2 The Contractor has adopted or will adopt its own policy to assure a drug-free and alcohol-free workplace while on the Owner 's premises or performing the Work. The Contractor will remove any of its employees, agents, Subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable, from performing the Work any time there is suspicion of alcohol and/or drug use, possession, or impairment involving such person, and at any time an incident occurs where drug or alcohol use could have been a contributing factor. The Owner has the right to require the Contractor to remove any person from performing the Work any time cause exists to suspect alcohol or drug use. In such cases, the person so removed may only be considered for return to work after the Contractor certifies as a result of a for-cause-test, conducted immediately following removal that said person was in compliance with this Section. The Contractor will not use any person to perform the Work who fails or refuses to take, or tests positive on, any for-cause alcohol or drug test.





§ 10.1.3 The Contractor will comply with all applicable federal, state and local drug and alcohol-related laws and regulations (e.g. Department of Transportation regulations, Drug-Free Workplace Act). The Owner has also banned the presence of all weapons on the Project site, whether or not the owner thereof has a permit for a concealed weapon, and the Contractor agrees that the Contractor's representatives, employees, agents, Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors will abide by same.








§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property


§ 10.2.1 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to


.1	employees on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby;


.2	the Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the site, under care, custody, or control of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, or a Sub-subcontractor; and


.3	other propertiesy at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.





§ 10.2.2 The Contractor shall comply with, and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on safety of persons or property or their protection from damage, injury, or loss.





§ 10.2.3 The Construction Manager shall also be responsible, at the Construction Manager’s sole cost and expense, for all measures necessary to protect any property adjacent to the Project and improvements therein.  Any damage to such property or improvements shall be promptly repaired by the Construction Manager.


The Contractor shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against hazards; promulgating safety regulations; and notifying the owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of the safeguards.





§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of hazardous materials or equipment or unusual methods are necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under supervision of properly qualified personnel, and shall only conduct such activities after giving reasonable advance written notice of the presence or use of such materials, equipment or methods to the Owner and the Architect. The storage of explosives other than small explosive charges for nail or rivet guns on the Owner 's property is prohibited. The use of explosive materials on the Owner's property other than small explosive charges for nail or rivet guns is prohibited unless expressly approved in advance in writing by the Owner and the Architect.


When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are necessary for execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under supervision of properly qualified personnel.





§ 10.2.5 The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss  to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.13 caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor , or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under Sections 10.2.l .2 and 10.2.1.3, except damage or loss attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to the Contractor 's obligations under Section 3.18.The Contractor shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property insurance required by the Contract Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3 caused in whole or in part by the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Contractor is responsible under Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3. The Contractor may make a Claim for the cost to remedy the damage or loss to the extent such damage or loss is attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner or Architect or anyone directly or indirectly employed by either of them, or by anyone for whose acts either of them may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the Contractor. The foregoing obligations of the Contractor are in addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.18.





§ 10.2.6 The Contractor shall designate a responsible member of the Contractor’s organization at the site whose duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Contractor’s superintendent unless otherwise designated by the Contractor in writing to the Owner and Architect.





§ 10.2.7 The Contractor shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or create an unsafe condition.





§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property


If either party suffers injury or damage to person or property because of an act or omission of the other party, or of others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, notice of the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21 days after discovery. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter.





§ 10.2.9 The Contractor shall do all things necessary to protect the Owner's premises and all persons from damage and injury, when all or a portion of the Work is suspended for any reason.





§ 10.2.10 The Contractor shall promptly report in writing to the Owner and Architect all accidents arising out of or in connection with the Work which cause death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full details and statements of any witnesses. In addition, if death, serious personal injury, or serious property damage is caused, the accident shall be reported immediately by telephone or messenger to the Owner and the Architect.





§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials and Substances


§ 10.3.1 The Contractor is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Contract Documents regarding hazardous materials or substances. If the Contractor encounters a hazardous material or substance not addressed in the Contract Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent foreseeable bodily injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Contractor, the Contractor shall, upon recognizing the condition, immediately stop Work in the affected area and notify the Owner and Architect of the condition.





§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Contractor's written notice, the Owner may obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the Owner and Contractor. In the event that hazardous materials are found to be present, the Contract Time may be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum may be increased in the amount of the Contractor's reasonable additional costs of shut-down, delay and start up by change order or, in the absence of agreement to a change order, at the direction of the Architect.Upon receipt of the Contractor’s notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Contractor and, in the event such material or substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Contractor and Architect the names and qualifications of persons or entities who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of the material or substance or who are to perform the task of removal or safe containment of the material or substance. The Contractor and the Architect will promptly reply to the Owner in writing stating whether or not either has reasonable objection to the persons or entities proposed by the Owner. If either the Contractor or Architect has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom the Contractor and the Architect have no reasonable objection. When the material or substance has been rendered harmless, Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the Owner and Contractor. By Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Contractor’s reasonable additional costs of shutdown, delay, and start-up.





§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, Subcontractors, Architect, Architect’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them from and against claims, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work in the affected area if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death as described in Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or negligence of the party seeking indemnity.





§ 10.3.4 The Contractor shall indemnify the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of a material or substance the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the Contractor fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.l.The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for hazardous materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Contract Documents. The Owner shall be responsible for hazardous materials or substances required by the Contract Documents, except to the extent of the Contractor’s fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.





§ 10.3.5 The Contractor shall reimburse the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of hazardous materials or substances the Contractor brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the Contractor fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due to the Owner’s fault or negligence.





§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Contractor, the Contractor is held liable by a government agency for the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Work as required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all cost and expense thereby incurred.





§ 10.4 Emergencies


In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Contractor shall act, at the Contractor’s discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of an emergency shall be determined as provided in Article 15 and Article 7.





§ 10.5 ASBESTOS OR ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS


Prior to payment of retainage and final payment, the Contractor shall submit to the Architect a written certification addressed to the Owner that all materials used in the construction of the Work contain less than 0.10% by weight of asbestos and for which it can be demonstrated that, under reasonably foreseeable job site conditions, will not release asbestos fibers in excess of O. l fibers per cub centimeter. The written certification shall further state that, should asbestos fibers be found in the Work in concentrations greater than 0.1 fibers per cubic centimeter, then the Contractor shall be responsible for determining which materials contain asbestos fibers and shall take all necessary corrective action to remove those materials from the Work, at no additional cost to the Owner. The written certification shall be dated, shall reference the specific Work and shall be signed by an officer of the Contractor.





§ 10.6 LEAD-FREE MATERIAL IN POTABLE WATER SYSTEM


§ 10.6.1 Prior to payment of retainage and final payment, the Contractor and each Subcontractor involved with the potable water system shall furnish a written certification that the potable water system installed as a part of the Work is "lead-free".





§ 10.6.2 The written certification shall further state that should lead be found in the potable water system built under this work, then the Contractor shall be responsible for determining which materials contain lead and shall take all necessary corrective action to remove lead from the Work, at no additional cost to the Owner. The written ce1tificate shall be dated, shall reference the specific Work and shall be signed by an officer of the Contractor.





§ 10.7 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS CERTIFICATION


The Contractor shall provide written certification that no materials used in the Work contain lead, asbestos, volatile organic compounds, formaldehyde, or other hazardous materials in them in excess of amounts allowed by federal, state or local standards, laws, codes, rules and regulations; the Federal Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) standards; and/or the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Administration (SHA) standards, whichever is most restrictive. The Contractor shall provide this written certificate as part of submittals under the Section in the Project Manual related to Contract Closeout.








ARTICLE 11   INSURANCE AND BONDS


§ 11.1 Contractor’s Insurance and Bonds


The following requirements modify the requirements of Article 11 of the General Conditions: The Contractor shall not commence work under the Contract until it has obtained all insurance required under this Article or as required by law, and until such insurance has been approved by the Owner. The Contractor shall not allow any grading and site work, roofing, mechanical, plumbing or electrical Subcontractor(s) to commence work until all similar insurance as specified in this Article has been so obtained and the Contractor has presented the Owner with a Certificate of Insurance evidencing such coverage. Prior to the commencement of any work, the Contractor shall require all other Subcontractors and any Sub-Subcontractors to provide insurance coverage as required by law and as reasonably necessary given the scope of the Subcontractor or Sub-Subcontractor's work. The Contractor shall present the Owner with a Certificate of insurance evidencing such coverage. All Certificates of insurance must be on Acord Form 25 or later version as approved by the North Carolina Department of insurance.








§ 11.1.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. The Owner, Architect, and Architect’s consultants shall be named as additional insureds under the Contractor’s commercial general liability policy or as otherwise described in the Contract Documents.





§ 11.1.2 The insurance required by Section 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than limits of liability specified in the Contract Documents or required by law, whichever coverage is greater. Coverages, which shall be written on an occurrence basis, shall be maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the Work until the date of final payment and termination of any coverage required to be maintained after final payment, and, with respect to the Contractor's completed operations coverage, until the expiration of the period for correction of Work or for such other period for maintenance of completed operations coverage as specified in the Contract Documents.





§ 11.1.2.1 The insurance required by section 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than the following limits, or greater if required by law:





1. Worker’s Compensation:


a. State 			Statutory


b. Applicable Federal 		Statutory


c. Employer’s Liability 


i. $100,000		Each Accident


ii. $1,000,000	Disease, Policy, Limit


iii. $100,000		Disease, Each Employee





2. Commercial General Liability (including premises/operations, independent contractors, products and completed operations):


a. Bodily Injury & Property Damage (combine single limit):


$1,000,000		Each Occurrence


$2,000,000		Annual Aggregate


b. Products and completed operation to be maintained for one (1) after final payment.





3. Contractual Liability (Hold Harmless Coverage):


a. Bodily Injury & Property Damage (combined single limit):


$1,000,000		Each Occurrence


	       $2,000,000		Annual Aggregate





4. Personal Injury, with employment exclusion deleted:


$1,000,000		Annual Aggregate





5. Comprehensive Automotive Liability (owned, non-owned and hired):


a. Bodily Injury & Property Damage (combine single limit):


$1,000,000		Each Accident





6. Excess Liability (umbrella): Minimum Limits


a. $2,000,00		Over Primary Insurance


Policies must follow the form of the base policies





7. Owner’s Protective Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall purchase and maintain owner’s protective liability insurance covering the Owner’s contingent liability for claims which may arise from operations under the Contract Documents.  Limit of coverage required for this insurance shall be not less than $1,000,00 combined single limit.





8. Builder’s Risk Insurance:





The Contractor shall effect and maintain all ISO Special Causes of Loss perils, including peril of transit upon the entire Project on which the Work is to be done, to one hundred percent (100%) of the insurable value thereof, including but not limited to, items of labor and materials connected therewith, whether in or adjacent to the structure insured; materials in place or to be used as part of or in the construction of the permanent construction , including but not limited to, surplus materials, shanties, protective fences, bridges, and temporary structures; miscellaneous materials and supplies incidental to the Work; and such scaffolding, staging, towers, forms, and equipment as are not owned or rented by the Contractor, the cost of which is included in the cost of the Work. Such insurance must be maintained in full until Final Completion of the Project and, prior to canceling such insurance, Contractor shall notify Owner in writing.





Exclusions: This insurance need not cover: any tools owned by the mechanics; and tools, equipment, scaffolding, staging, towers, and forms rented or owned by the Contractor, the capital value of which is not included in the Work; or any structures erected for housing of or service to workmen.





A loss, if any, is to be adjusted with the Owner, and is to be payable to the Owner and to the Contractor jointly, as their interests may appear. The Owner shall be named on the policy, by rider or other applicable endorsement as an additional insured.The Contractor shall provide surety bonds of the types, for such penal sums, and subject to such terms and conditions as required by the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall purchase and maintain the required bonds from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is located.





§ 11.1.3 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of obligations arising under the Contract, the Contractor shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or shall authorize a copy to be furnished. Certificates of insurance: No later than the date of the execution of the Contract, the Contractor will submit to the Owner four (4) copies of Certificates of insurance on the latest approved North Carolina Department of insurance Acord Form 25 by an insurer authorized to do business in North Carolina by the North Carolina Department of Insurance and rated A- (minus) or better by A.M. Best Company. The certificates shall ce1tify that the insurance policies carried by Contractor were in force before the Work commenced and certifying that these policies include endorsements issued by the insurer stating that the applicable insurance will not be canceled during the Contract other than by an endorsement added to the policies and certificates reading substantially as follows: 'The policies herein referred to me not cancelable or subject to reduction of coverage by the Insurer unless the Owner has received  thirty (30) days written notice via registered or ce1tified letter.' Additional Certificates of insurances will be provided, from time to time, as listed policies expire in order to evidence continuance insurance coverage from the date of the Contract through the end of the one (I) year correction period following the date of Final Completion. Certificates of Insurance containing disclaimers holding the insurer harmless for failure to notify the Owner of Contractor policy cancellations will not be acceptable and should be modified to delete such disclaimers from the Insurance Certificate forms. Evidence of insurance requirements of these Supplementary General Conditions may be provided by modifications to Acord Form 25 by endorsement, rider or separate certification by the insurer. No surplus lines insurance shall be acceptable.





In preparation of these forms, the following items should read:





1. The description of the Project/ the Work/operations/locations/vehicles/special items.


2. The certificate holder is:





County of Henderson


1 Historic Courthouse Square, Suite 5


Hendersonville, North Carolina 28792





3. The cancellation statement is:





SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELED BEFORE THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, THE ISSUING COMPANY WILL MAIL THIRTY (30) DAYS PRIOR WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT.





All blanks and questions on certificates must be filled out completely. Incomplete or inadequate ce1tificates will be returned to Contractor as unsatisfactory and commencement of its Work will be delayed until satisfactory certificates are submitted. Such delay will not warrant extension of the Contract Time. In the event of a reduction in any aggregate limit, the Contractor shall take immediate steps to have it reinstated. All insurance coverages of the Contractor shall be primary to any insurance or self-insurance program carried by the Owner. Renewal Certificates of Insurance on the Owner's form must be provided to the Owner thirty (30) days prior to expiration of current coverages so that there shall be no interruption in the Work due to lack of proof of insurance coverages required of the Contractor in the Contract Documents.





§ 11.1.4 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Contractor’s Required Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the date the Contractor becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any insurance required by the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide notice to the Owner of such impending or actual cancellation or expiration. Upon receipt of notice from the Contractor, the Owner shall, unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the Owner, have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by the Contractor. The furnishing of notice by the Contractor shall not relieve the Contractor of any contractual obligation to provide any required coverage.





§ 11.1.5 The acceptance of delivery to the Owner of any Certificate of Insurance evidencing the insurance coverages and limits required in the Contract does not constitute approval or agreement by the Owner that the insurance requirements in the Contract have been met or that the insurance policies shown in the Certificates of insurance are in compliance with the Contract requirements.





§ 11.1.6 Should at any time the Contractor not maintain the insurance coverages required of it in the Contract Documents, the Owner may either cancel or suspend the Contract or, at its sole discretion, shall be authorized to purchase such coverage and charge the Contractor for such coverages purchased. The Owner shall be under no obligation to (I) purchase such insurm1ce, (2) be responsible for the coverages purchased, or (3) be responsible for the insurance companies used. The decision of the Owner to purchase such insurance coverages shall in no way be construed to be a waiver of its rights under the Contract Documents.





§ 11.1.7 If any General Liability Insurance required herein is to be issued or renewed on a "claims made" form as opposed to the "occurrence" form, the retroactive date for coverages shall be no later than the commencement date of the Project and shall provide that in the event of cancellation or non-renewal the discovery period of insurance claims shall be unlimited.





§ 11.1.8   All policies described in this paragraph 11.1 shall be made available to the Owner or its legal representatives by means of exact copies of the original policies and placed in the hands of the Owner or its representatives.





§ 11.1.9   If requested in writing by any party in interest, the Contractor shall, upon occurrence of loss, furnish bond for the proper performance of its duties. The Contractor shall deposit any money received from insurance in an account separate from all its other funds; and it shall distribute it in accordance with such agreement as the parties of interest may reach, or in the absence of such an agreement, as the interest of the parties may appear. Replacement of injured work shall be performed by the Contractor.





§ 11.2 Owner’s Insurance


§ 11.2.1 The Owner shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining the Owner’s usual liability insurance.The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract Documents. The Owner shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located. 





§ 11.2.2 Failure to Purchase Required Property Insurance. If the Owner fails to purchase and maintain the required property insurance, with all of the coverages and in the amounts described in the Agreement or elsewhere in the Contract Documents, the Owner shall inform the Contractor in writing prior to commencement of the Work. Upon receipt of notice from the Owner, the Contractor may delay commencement of the Work and may obtain insurance that will protect the interests of the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-Subcontractors in the Work. When the failure to provide coverage has been cured or resolved, the Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be equitably adjusted. In the event the Owner fails to procure coverage, the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent the loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance to have been procured by the Owner. The cost of the insurance shall be charged to the Owner by a Change Order. If the Owner does not provide written notice, and the Contractor is damaged by the failure or neglect of the Owner to purchase or maintain the required insurance, the Owner shall reimburse the Contractor for all reasonable costs and damages attributable thereto.





§ 11.2.3 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Owner’s Required Property Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the date the Owner becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any property insurance required by the Contract Documents, the Owner shall provide notice to the Contractor of such impending or actual cancellation or expiration. Unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the Contractor: (1) the Contractor, upon receipt of notice from the Owner, shall have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by either the Owner or the Contractor; (2) the Contract Time and Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted; and (3) the Owner waives all rights against the Contractor, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent any loss to the Owner would have been covered by the insurance had it not expired or been cancelled. If the Contractor purchases replacement coverage, the cost of the insurance shall be charged to the Owner by an appropriate Change Order. The furnishing of notice by the Owner shall not relieve the Owner of any contractual obligation to provide required insurance.





§ 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation


§ 11.3.1 The Owner and Contractor waive all rights against (1) each other and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, each of the other; (2) the Architect and Architect’s consultants; and (3) Separate Contractors, if any, and any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, for damages caused by fire, or other causes of loss, to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance required by the Agreement or other property insurance applicable to the Project, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance. The Owner or Contractor, as appropriate, shall require similar written waivers in favor of the individuals and entities identified above from the Architect, Architect’s consultants, Separate Contractors, subcontractors, and sub-subcontractors. The policies of insurance purchased and maintained by each person or entity agreeing to waive claims pursuant to this section 11.3.1 shall not prohibit this waiver of subrogation. This waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity (1) even though that person or entity would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, (2) even though that person or entity did not pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, or (3) whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the damaged property.





§ 11.3.2 If during the Project construction period the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at or adjacent to the site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment property insurance is to be provided on the completed Project through a policy or policies other than those insuring the Project during the construction period, to the extent permissible by such policies, the Owner waives all rights in accordance with the terms of Section 11.3.1 for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by this separate property insurance.





§ 11.4 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance


The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the Owner against loss of use of the Owner’s property, or the inability to conduct normal operations, due to fire or other causes of loss. The Owner waives all rights of action against the Contractor and Architect for loss of use of the Owner’s property, due to fire or other hazards however caused.





§11.5 Adjustment and Settlement of Insured Loss


§ 11.5.1 A loss insured under the property insurance required by the Agreement shall be adjusted by the Owner as fiduciary and made payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to requirements of any applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.5.2. The Owner shall pay the Architect and Contractor their just shares of insurance proceeds received by the Owner, and by appropriate agreements the Architect and Contractor shall make payments to their consultants and Subcontractors in similar manner.





§ 11.5.2 Prior to settlement of an insured loss, the Owner shall notify the Contractor of the terms of the proposed settlement as well as the proposed allocation of the insurance proceeds. The Contractor shall have 14 days from receipt of notice to object to the proposed settlement or allocation of the proceeds. If the Contractor does not object, the Owner shall settle the loss and the Contractor shall be bound by the settlement and allocation. Upon receipt, the Owner shall deposit the insurance proceeds in a separate account and make the appropriate distributions. Thereafter, if no other agreement is made or the Owner does not terminate the Contract for convenience, the Owner and Contractor shall execute a Change Order for reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Work in the amount allocated for that purpose. If the Contractor timely objects to either the terms of the proposed settlement or the allocation of the proceeds, the Owner may proceed to settle the insured loss, and any dispute between the Owner and Contractor arising out of the settlement or allocation of the proceeds shall be resolved pursuant to Article 15. Pending resolution of any dispute, the Owner may issue a Construction Change Directive for the reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Work.





ARTICLE 12   UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK


§ 12.1 Uncovering of Work


§ 12.1.1 If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect's or the Owner's request or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect or the Owner, be uncovered for the Architect's or the Owner's examination and be replaced at the Contractor 's expense without change in the Contract Time.


If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Architect’s request or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, if requested in writing by the Architect, be uncovered for the Architect’s examination and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract Time.





§ 12.1.2 If a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect or the Owner has not specifically requested to examine prior to its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, costs of uncovering and replacement shall, by appropriate Change Order, be at the Owner 's expense. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, such costs and the cost of correction shall be at the Contractor 's expense unless the condition was caused by the Owner or a separate contractor in which event the Owner shall be responsible for payment of such costsIf a portion of the Work has been covered that the Architect has not specifically requested to examine prior to its being covered, the Architect may request to see such Work and it shall be uncovered by the Contractor. If such Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment to the Contract Sum and Contract Time as may be appropriate. If such Work is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, the costs of uncovering the Work, and the cost of correction, shall be at the Contractor’s expense.





§ 12.2 Correction of Work


§ 12.2.1 Before Substantial Completion


The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or Work failing to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, whether discovered before or after Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and replacement, and compensation for the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby, shall be at the Contractor's expense.





§ 12.2.1.2 The Owner may make emergency repairs to the Work or take such other measures necessary under the circumstances, if the Contractor does not promptly respond to a notice of defect or nonconforming Work. The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for this cost if the reason for the repairs is attributable to the Contractor. If payments then or thereafter due to the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such costs, then the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner on demand.The Contractor shall promptly correct Work rejected by the Architect or failing to conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, discovered before Substantial Completion and whether or not fabricated, installed or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Work, including additional testing and inspections, the cost of uncovering and replacement, and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, shall be at the Contractor’s expense.








§ 12.2.2 After Substantial Completion


§ 12.2.2.1 In addition to the Contractor's obligation to perform each phase of the Work in accordance with the Contract and in addition to all express and implies warranties, if, within one year after Substantial Completion of each phase of the Work, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of written notice from the Owner to do so. The Contractor will also present to the Owner an Alternate bid to include an additional one (I) year, for a total two (2) year, workmanship warranty related to the roofing system as detailed in section 3.5.3.


In addition to the Contractor’s obligations under Section 3.5, if, within one year after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of warranties established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Contract Documents, any of the Work is found to be not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall correct it promptly after receipt of notice from the Owner to do so, unless the Owner has previously given the Contractor a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice promptly after discovery of the condition. During the one-year period for correction of Work, if the Owner fails to notify the Contractor and give the Contractor an opportunity to make the correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the Contractor and to make a claim for breach of warranty. If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work within a reasonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the Owner or Architect, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 2.5.





§ 12.2.2.1.1 If the Contractor fails to perform the corrective Work within thirty (30) days, then the Owner may perform corrective Work, at the Contractor's expense. If the Owner performs corrective Work, then the Owner may also remove nonconforming Work and store the salvageable materials or equipment at the Contractor 's expense. If the Contractor does not pay all costs incurred by the Owner within ten (10) days after written notice, then the Owner may, upon ten (10) additional days' written notice, sell the removed materials and equipment in accordance with the Owner's policies, and shall account for the proceeds thereof, after deducting costs and damages that should have been borne by the Contractor, including compensation for the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby. If such proceeds of sale do not cover costs which the Contractor should have borne, then the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner.


§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Work shall be extended with respect to portions of Work first performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion and the actual completion of that portion of the Work.





§ 12.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Work shall not be extended by corrective Work performed by the Contractor pursuant to this Section 12.2.





§ 12.2.3 The Contractor shall remove from the site portions of the Work that are not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and are neither corrected by the Contractor nor accepted by the Owner.





§ 12.2.4 The Contractor shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or Separate Contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor’s correction or removal of Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.





§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other obligations the Contractor has under the Contract Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for correction of Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Contractor to correct the Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with the Contract Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced to establish the Contractor’s liability with respect to the Contractor’s obligations other than specifically to correct the Work.





§ 12.2.6 The provisions of this Section 12.2 apply to Work done by Subcontractors of the Contractor and


Sub-Subcontractors as well as Work done directly by employees of the Contractor.





§ 12.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Work


If the Owner prefers to accept Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be reduced as appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.





ARTICLE 13   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS


§ 13.1 Governing Law


The Contract shall be governed by the laws of The State of North Carolina and any litigation shall be conducted in the appropriate division of the General Course of Justice. Mandatory and exclusive venue for any disputes shall be in the county in which the Owner's main administrative office is located. The invalidity of any part or provision of the Contract shall not impair or affect in any manner whatsoever the validity, enforceability or effect of the remainder of the Contract.The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that jurisdiction’s choice of law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 15.4.








§ 13.2 Successors and Assigns


§ 13.2.1 The Owner and Contractor respectively bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives to covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Contract Documents. Except as provided in Section 13.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract.





§ 13.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Contractor, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Contract Documents. The Contractor shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment.





§ 13.3 Rights and Remedies


§ 13.3.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law.





§ 13.3.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner, Architect, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed upon in writing.





§ 13.4 Tests and Inspections


§ 13.4.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work shall be made as required by the Contract Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules, and regulations or lawful orders of public authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Contractor shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals. The Contractor shall give the Architect timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of tests, inspections, or approvals that do not become requirements until after bids are received or negotiations concluded. The Owner shall directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or approvals where building codes or applicable laws or regulations so require.





§ 13.4.2 If the Architect, Owner, or public authorities having jurisdiction determine that portions of the Work require additional testing, inspection, or approval not included under Section 13.4.1, the Architect will, upon written authorization from the Owner, instruct the Contractor to make arrangements for such additional testing, inspection, or approval, by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Contractor shall give timely notice to the Architect of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Architect may be present for such procedures. Such costs, except as provided in Section 13.4.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense.





§ 13.4.3 If procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 13.4.1 and 13.4.2 reveal failure of the portions of the Work to comply with requirements established by the Contract Documents, all costs made necessary by such failure, including those of repeated procedures and compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses, shall be at the Contractor’s expense.





§ 13.4.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Contract Documents, be secured by the Contractor and promptly delivered to the Architect.





§ 13.4.5 If the Architect is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Contract Documents, the Architect will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.





§ 13.4.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid unreasonable delay in the Work.





§ 13.5 Interest


The owner shall pay prime interest rate as published for such date in the Wall Street Journal.”Payments due and unpaid under the Contract Documents shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate the parties agree upon in writing or, in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is located.








ARTICLE 14   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT


§ 14.1 Termination by the Contractor


§ 14.1.1 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work, for any of the following reasons:


.1	Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be stopped;


.2	An act of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, that requires all Work to be stopped;


.3	Because the Architect has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Contractor of the reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.4.1, or because the Owner has not made payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Contract Documents; or


.4	The Owner has failed to furnish to the Contractor reasonable evidence as required by Section 2.2.





§ 14.1.2 The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract with the Contractor, repeated suspensions, delays or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 14.3 constitute in the aggregate more than 120 days in any 365-day period.The Contractor may terminate the Contract if, through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work, repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions of the entire Work by the Owner as described in Section 14.3, constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of days scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any 365-day period, whichever is less.





§ 14.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days' written notice to the Owner and Architect , terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed , including reasonable overhead and profit , costs incurred by reason of such termination .If one of the reasons described in Section 14.1.1 or 14.1.2 exists, the Contractor may, upon seven days’ notice to the Owner and Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, as well as reasonable overhead and profit on Work not executed, and costs incurred by reason of such termination. 





§ 14.1.4 If the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor, a Sub-subcontractor, or their agents or employees or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract Documents with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Contractor may, upon seven additional days’ notice to the Owner and the Architect, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as provided in Section 14.1.3.





§ 14.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause


§ 14.2.1 The Owner may terminate the Contract if the Contractor


.1	repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;


.2	fails to make payment to Subcontractors or suppliers in accordance with the respective agreements between the Contractor and the Subcontractors or suppliers;


.3	repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of a public authority; or


.4	otherwise is guilty of substantial breach of a provision of the Contract Documents.





§ 14.2.2 When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner, upon certification by the Architect that sufficient cause exists to justify such action, may without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor's surety, if any, seven days' written notice, terminate employment of the Contractor and may:When any of the reasons described in Section 14.2.1 exist, and upon certification by the Architect that sufficient cause exists to justify such action, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, seven days’ notice, terminate employment of the Contractor and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety:


.1	Exclude the Contractor from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Contractor;


.2	Accept assignment of subcontracts pursuant to Section 5.4; and


.3	Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request of the Contractor, the Owner shall furnish to the Contractor a detailed accounting of the costs incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work.





§ 14.2.3 When the Owner terminates the Contract for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.1, the Contractor shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.





§ 14.2.4 If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for the Architect's services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages included by the Owner and not expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. This obligation for payment shall survive termination of the Contract. This Section 14.2.4 is in addition to and not in limitation of any other rights and remedies of the Owner.If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work, including compensation for the Architect’s services and expenses made necessary thereby, and other damages incurred by the Owner and not expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Contractor. If such costs and damages exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the Owner. The amount to be paid to the Contractor or Owner, as the case may be, shall be certified by the Initial Decision Maker, upon application, and this obligation for payment shall survive termination of the Contract.





§ 14.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience


§ 14.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay or interrupt the Work, in whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.





§ 14.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by suspension, delay, or interruption under Section 14.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. No adjustment shall be made to the extent


.1	that performance is, was, or would have been, so suspended, delayed, or interrupted, by another cause for which the Contractor is responsible; or


.2	that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.





§ 14.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience


§ 14.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.





§ 14.4.2 Upon receipt of a notice of termination for convenience, the Contractor shall immediately, in accordance with instructions from the Owner, proceed with performance of the following duties regardless of delay in determining or adjusting amounts due under this section:





.1	cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;


.2	take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and


.3	except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders.


.4       proceed to complete the Work not terminated; and


.5       take actions that may be necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the terminated Work.	Upon receipt of notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor shall


.1	cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;


.2	take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and


.3	except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders.





§ 14.4.3 Upon each termination, the Contractor shall recover as its sole remedy payment 1) for Work properly performed in connection with the terminated portion of the Work prior to the effective date of termination, 2) for items properly and timely fabricated off the Project site, delivered and stored in accordance with the Owner's instruction, and 3) for profit on the Work not executed.  The Contractor hereby waives and forfeits all other claims for payment and damages, including, without limitation overhead related to the Work not executed.In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Owner shall pay the Contractor for Work properly executed; costs incurred by reason of the termination, including costs attributable to termination of Subcontracts; and the termination fee, if any, set forth in the Agreement.





ARTICLE 15   CLAIMS AND DISPUTES


§ 15.1 Claims 


§ 15.1.1 Definition


A Claim is a demand or assertion by the Contractor seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, interpretation of Contract terms, extension of time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract, the Project or the Work. The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the Contractor.


A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money, a change in the Contract Time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term “Claim” also includes other disputes and matters in question between the Owner and Contractor arising out of or relating to the Contract. The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. This Section 15.1.1 does not require the Owner to file a Claim in order to impose liquidated damages in accordance with the Contract Documents.





§ 15.1.2 Time Limits on Claims


The Owner and Contractor shall commence all Claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of or related to the Contract, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in the Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law, but in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Contractor waive all Claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 15.1.2.





§ 15.1.3 Notice of Claims


§ 15.1.3.1 Claims by the Contractor must be initiated by written notice to the Owner and with a copy sent to the Architect. Claims by the Contractor must be initiated within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the Contractor first knew or should have known of the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later. Claims must be initiated by written notice titled "Notice of Claim" ("Notice") and sent to the Architect and the Owner's designated representative. The Notice shall clearly set out the specific matter of complaint, and the impact or damages which may occur or have occurred as a result thereof, To the extent that the damages cannot be assessed at the time of the Notice, the Notice shall be amended at the earliest date reasonably possible. It is imperative that the Owner receive timely specific Notice of any potential problem identified by the Contractor in order that the problem can be mitigated or resolved promptly. Any alleged damages suffered by the Contractor that have not been included in a Notice within ninety (90) days after the Contractor first knew or should have known the damages shall be deemed waived by the Contractor.Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered prior to expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the other party and to the Initial Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision Maker. Claims by either party under this Section 15.1.3.1 shall be initiated within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.





§ 15.1.3.2 Claims by either the Owner or Contractor, where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered after expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, shall be initiated by notice to the other party. In such event, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker is required.





§ 15.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance


§ 15.1.4.1 Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Article 14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to make undisputed payments for Work performed in accordance with the Contract Documents.Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as provided in Section 9.7 and Article 14, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Contract Documents. 





§ 15.1.4.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted in accordance with the Initial Decision Maker’s decision, subject to the right of either party to proceed in accordance with this Article 15. The Architect will issue Certificates for Payment in accordance with the decision of the Initial Decision Maker.





§ 15.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost


If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, notice as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that is the subject of the Claim. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4.





§ 15.1.6 Claims for Additional Time


If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for additional cost or an increase in the GMP, written notice as provided herein shall be given to the Owner and the Architect. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4. The Architect will promptly investigate such claim and report findings and a recommended resolution in writing to the Owner and the Contractor. If the Claim is approved by the Board or the Owner's Representative, then the Contractor shall proceed with the execution of the Work that is the subject matter of the Claim. If the Claim is rejected by the Owner, then the Contractor may pursue alternative dispute resolutions provided for in the Contract Documents.





§ 15.1.5.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably anticipated and prevented the execution of critical path elements of the Work on no1mal working days. Adverse weather conditions mean unusually severe weather which is beyond the normal weather recorded and expected for the locality and/or the season or seasons of the year.





§ 15.1.5.3 The Contractor shall anticipate and include in a critical path construction schedule rain day due to adverse weather conditions in accordance with the average rainfall expected for the locality and/or the month in question. A rain day is defined as a day when rainfall exceeds one-quarter (0.25) inch from project inception to building dry-in and one-half (0.50) inch post building dry-in during a 24-hour period.





§ 15.1.5.4 Time extensions may be granted for rain days in any month when the cumulative number of rain days during that month exceeds the number scheduled, provided that the rainfall prevented the execution of the critical path of the Work on normal working days as shown on the Contractor 's schedule. No day will be counted as a rain day when substantial forces are able to perform Work on the Project for more than fifty percent (50%) of the usual workday or when the critical path of the Work on the Project is not adversely impacted.





§ 15.1.5.5 No extension of time shall be made to the Contractor because of hindrances or delays from any cause which is the fault of the Contractor or the Contractor 's Subcontractors or Sub-Subcontractors or under the Contractor 's control. Claims for extension of time may only be considered because of adverse weather conditions, rain delays, or hindrances or delays which are the fault of the Owner and/or under the Owner 's control, but only to the extent that the critical path of the Work is delayed. Other claims for extension of time shall be considered because of hindrances or delays not the fault of either the Contractor or the Owner, but only to the extent that the critical path of the Work is delayed. Board approval shall be required for any extension of time. No damages shall be paid for delays. The Contractor shall only be entitled to time extensions per the terms of the Contract Documents





§ 15.1.5.6 Requests for time extension shall be submitted on a monthly basis and shall specify the time delay, the cause of the delay, and the responsible party for the delay, whether the Contractor, the Owner, adverse weather, rain day, or other. No claims for damages for delay shall be made by the Contractor. Any claim not submitted under the terms of this Section shall be waived.








§ 15.1.6.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, notice as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of probable effect of delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.





§ 15.1.6.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.





§ 15.1.7 Waiver of Claims for Consequential Damages


The Contractor and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to this Contract. This mutual waiver includes


.1	damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, business and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such persons; and


.2	damages incurred by the Contractor for principal office expenses including the compensation of personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business and reputation, and for loss of profit, except anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.





This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude assessment of liquidated damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.





§ 15.2 RESOLUTION OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES


§ 15.2.1 Claims by the Contractor against the Owner, including those alleging an error or omission by the Architect shall be referred initially to the Architect for written recommendation. An initial recommendation by the Architect shall be required as a condition precedent to litigation of all Claims by the Contractor arising prior to the date final payment is due, unless 30 days have passed after the Claim has been referred to the Architect with no recommendation having been rendered by the Architect.





§ 15.2.2 The Architect will review Claims and within ten (10) days of the receipt of the Claim take one of the following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the Contractor, or (2) make a written recommendation to the Owner, with a copy to the Contractor.





§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Architect may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Architect in making a written recommendation.





§ 15.2.4 If the Architect requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten (10) days after receipt of such a request, and shall provide a response on the requested supporting data, advise the Architect when the response or supporting data will be furnished or advise the Architect that no supporting data will be furnished.





§ 15.2.5 As required by North Carolina General Statute Section l43-128(f l), the Owner, the Contractor, the Architect and all first-tier and lower-tier Subcontractors and Sub-Subcontractors are required to participate in mediation as a precondition to initiating litigation. The dispute resolution process adopted by the State Building Commission pursuant to North Carolina General Statute Section 143-135.26(11) is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference for use in conducting the mediation. Statutory, contract, bond, insurance, warranty and all other time periods (including but not limited to applicable statutes of limitation and statutes of repose) shall be tolled (suspended from running) during the mediation process. The costs of the mediation shall be paid one-third by the Owner and two-thirds by the other party or parties to the mediation, divided equally among the other parties if there is more than one other party.





§ 15.2.6 Upon receipt of a Claim against the Contractor or at any time thereafter, the Architect or the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor's default, the Architect or the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety' s assistance in resolving the controversy.





(Paragraphs deleted)


§ 15.3 LITGATION


§ 15.3.1 Any Claim arising out of or related to the Contract, except Claims waived under the terms of the Contract Documents, shall, subject to the provisions of Section 15.2.5, be subject to resolution by litigation.


[bookmark: _GoBack]§ 15.2 Initial Decision


§ 15.2.1 Claims, excluding those where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first discovered after expiration of the period for correction of the Work set forth in Section 12.2.2 or arising under Sections 10.3, 10.4, and 11.5, shall be referred to the Initial Decision Maker for initial decision. The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker, unless otherwise indicated in the Agreement. Except for those Claims excluded by this Section 15.2.1, an initial decision shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation of any Claim. If an initial decision has not been rendered within 30 days after the Claim has been referred to the Initial Decision Maker, the party asserting the Claim may demand mediation and binding dispute resolution without a decision having been rendered. Unless the Initial Decision Maker and all affected parties agree, the Initial Decision Maker will not decide disputes between the Contractor and persons or entities other than the Owner.





§ 15.2.2 The Initial Decision Maker will review Claims and within ten days of the receipt of a Claim take one or more of the following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting data from the other party, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim, (4) suggest a compromise, or (5) advise the parties that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim if the Initial Decision Maker lacks sufficient information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Initial Decision Maker concludes that, in the Initial Decision Maker’s sole discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Initial Decision Maker to resolve the Claim.





§ 15.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Initial Decision Maker may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek information from either party or from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Initial Decision Maker in rendering a decision. The Initial Decision Maker may request the Owner to authorize retention of such persons at the Owner’s expense.





§ 15.2.4 If the Initial Decision Maker requests a party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional supporting data, such party shall respond, within ten days after receipt of the request, and shall either (1) provide a response on the requested supporting data, (2) advise the Initial Decision Maker when the response or supporting data will be furnished, or (3) advise the Initial Decision Maker that no supporting data will be furnished. Upon receipt of the response or supporting data, if any, the Initial Decision Maker will either reject or approve the Claim in whole or in part.





§ 15.2.5 The Initial Decision Maker will render an initial decision approving or rejecting the Claim, or indicating that the Initial Decision Maker is unable to resolve the Claim. This initial decision shall (1) be in writing; (2) state the reasons therefor; and (3) notify the parties and the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision Maker, of any change in the Contract Sum or Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be final and binding on the parties but subject to mediation and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, to binding dispute resolution.





§ 15.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.2.6.1.





§ 15.2.6.1 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of receipt of an initial decision, demand in writing that the other party file for mediation. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to file for mediation within 30 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue binding dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.





§ 15.2.7 In the event of a Claim against the Contractor, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if any, of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Contractor’s default, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.





§ 15.2.8 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.





§ 15.3 Mediation


§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived as provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, and 15.1.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution.





§ 15.3.2 The parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of the Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings.





§ 15.3.3 Either party may, within 30 days from the date that mediation has been concluded without resolution of the dispute or 60 days after mediation has been demanded without resolution of the dispute, demand in writing that the other party file for binding dispute resolution.  If such a demand is made and the party receiving the demand fails to file for binding dispute resolution within 60 days after receipt thereof, then both parties waive their rights to binding dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.





§ 15.3.4 The parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof.





§ 15.4 Arbitration


§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in the Agreement, any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of the Agreement. The Arbitration shall be conducted in the place where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which arbitration is permitted to be demanded.





§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations. For statute of limitations purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim.





§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.





§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly consented to by parties to the Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof.





§ 15.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder 


§ 15.4.4.1 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either party may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).





§ 15.4.4.2 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either party may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent.





§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Contractor grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as those of the Owner and Contractor under this Agreement.







ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: The author of this document has added information needed for its completion. The author may also have revised the text of the original AIA standard form. An Additions and Deletions Report that notes added information as well as revisions to the standard form text is available from the author and should be reviewed.


This document has important legal consequences. Consultation with an attorney is encouraged with respect to its completion or modification.


AIA Document A201™–2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, is adopted in this document by reference. Do not use with other general conditions unless this document is modified.
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[bookmark: bm_DocDay][bookmark: bm_DocMonth][bookmark: bm_DocYear]AGREEMENT made as of the «5th   » day of «March  » in the year «2018  »


(In words, indicate day, month and year.)





BETWEEN the Owner:


(Name, legal status and address)





[bookmark: bm_OwnerFullFirmName][bookmark: bm_OwnerLegalEntity]«Henderson County  »«  »


[bookmark: bm_OwnerLongAddress]«  »





and the Construction Manager:


(Name, legal status and address)





[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerFullFirmName][bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerLegalEntity]«Beverly-Grant / Barnhill, a 50/50 Joint Venture  »«  »


[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerLongAddress]«80 Peachtree Road, Suite  »


«Asheville, NC 28803»





for the following Project:


(Name and address or location)





[bookmark: bm_ProjectName]«Edneyville Elementary School»


[bookmark: bm_ProjectLocation]«2875 Pace Road»


«Hendersonville, NC 28792»





The Architect:


(Name, legal status and address)





[bookmark: bm_ArchitectFullFirmName][bookmark: bm_ArchitectLegalEntity]«Clark-Nexsen  »


«301 College Street, Suite 300  »


[bookmark: bm_ArchitectLongAddress]«Asheville, NC 28801  »





The Owner’s Designated Representative:


(Name, address and other information)





[bookmark: bm_OwnerRepName]« Mr. David Berry »


[bookmark: bm_OwnerRepAddress]«100 North King Street, Hendersonville NC 28792  »


[bookmark: bm_OwnerRepTelephone]«  »


[bookmark: bm_OwnerRepFax]«  »


[bookmark: bm_OwnerRepMobile]«  »


[bookmark: bm_OwnerRepEmail]«  »





The Construction Manager’s Designated Representative:


(Name, address and other information)





[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerRepName]« Mr. J. Chris Smith  »


[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerRepAddress]«80 Peachtree Road Suite 201  »


[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerRepTelephone]« Asheville, NC 28803  »


[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerRepFax]«  »


[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerRepMobile]«  »


[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerRepEmail]«  »





The Architect’s Designated Representative:


(Name, address and other information)





[bookmark: bm_ArchitectRepName]« Mr. Chad Roberson, AIA  »


[bookmark: bm_ArchitectRepAddress]«301 College Street, Suite 300  »


[bookmark: bm_ArchitectRepTelephone]« Asheville, NC 28801  »


[bookmark: bm_ArchitectRepFax]«  »


[bookmark: bm_ArchitectRepMobile]«  »


[bookmark: bm_ArchitectRepEmail]«  »





The Owner and Construction Manager agree as follows.
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EXHIBIT A   GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE AMENDMENT





ARTICLE 1   GENERAL PROVISIONS


§ 1.1 The Contract Documents


The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to the execution of this Agreement, other documents listed in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract and are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. Upon the Owner’s acceptance of the Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Contract Documents will also include the documents described in Section 2.2.3 and identified in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and revisions prepared by the Architect and furnished by the Owner as described in Section 2.2.8. The Contract represents the entire and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. If anything in the other Contract Documents, other than a Modification, is inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern.





§ 1.2 Relationship of the Parties


The Construction Manager accepts the relationship of trust and confidence established by this Agreement and covenants with the Owner to cooperate with the Architect and exercise the Construction Manager’s skill and judgment in furthering the interests of the Owner; to furnish efficient construction administration, management services and supervision; to furnish at all times an adequate supply of workers and materials; and to perform the Work in an expeditious and economical manner consistent with the Owner’s interests. The Owner agrees to furnish or approve, in a timely manner, information required by the Construction Manager and to make payments to the Construction Manager in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents.





§ 1.3 General Conditions


For the Preconstruction Phase, AIA Document A201™–20107, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, as amended (hereafter “A201-2017”) shall apply only as specifically provided in this Agreement. For the Construction Phase, the general conditions of the contract shall be as set forth in A201–20107, which document is incorporated herein by reference. The term “Contractor” as used in A201–20107 shall mean the Construction Manager.





ARTICLE 2   CONSTRUCTION MANAGER’S RESPONSIBILITIES


The Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Sections 2.1 and 2.2. The Construction Manager’s Construction Phase responsibilities are set forth in Section 2.3. The Owner and Construction Manager may agree, in consultation with the Architect, for the Construction Phase to commence prior to completion of the Preconstruction Phase, in which case, both phases will proceed concurrently. The Construction Manager shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Construction Manager with respect to the Project.





§ 2.1 Preconstruction Phase


§ 2.1.1 The Construction Manager shall provide a preliminary evaluation of the Owner’s program, schedule and construction budget requirements, each in terms of the other. 





§ 2.1.2 Consultation


The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Architect and Owner to discuss such matters as procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work. The Construction Manager shall advise the Owner and the Architect on proposed site use and improvements, selection of materials, and building systems and equipment. The Construction Manager shall also provide recommendations consistent with the Project requirements to the Owner and Architect on constructability; availability of materials and labor; time requirements for procurement, installation and construction; and factors related to construction cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and possible cost reductions.





§ 2.1.3 When Project requirements in Section 3.1.1 have been sufficiently identified, the Construction Manager shall prepare and periodically update a Project schedule for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance. Under no circumstances may the date of Substantial Completion of the Project be later than TBD.  As used herein, “Substantial Completion” occurs when both the Architect certifies that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Project and a certificate of occupancy has been issued.  The Construction Manager shall obtain the Architect’s approval for the portion of the Project schedule relating to the performance of the Architect’s services. The Project schedule shall coordinate and integrate the Construction Manager’s services, the Architect’s services, other Owner consultants’ services, and the Owner’s responsibilities and identify items that could affect the Project’s timely completion. The updated Project schedule shall include the following: submission of the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal; components of the Work; times of commencement and completion required of each Subcontractor; ordering and delivery of products, including those that must be ordered well in advance of construction; and the occupancy requirements of the Owner. 





§ 2.1.4 Phased Construction


The Construction Manager shall provide recommendations with regard to accelerated or fast-track scheduling, procurement, or phased construction. The Construction Manager shall take into consideration cost reductions, cost information, constructability, provisions for temporary facilities and procurement and construction scheduling issues. 





§ 2.1.5 Preliminary Cost Estimates


§ 2.1.5.1 Based on the preliminary design and other design criteria prepared by the Architect, the Construction Manager shall prepare preliminary estimates of the Cost of the Work or the cost of program requirements using area, volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques for the Architect’s review and Owner’s approval. If the Architect or Construction Manager suggests alternative materials and systems, the Construction Manager shall provide cost evaluations of those alternative materials and systems.





§ 2.1.5.2 As the Architect progresses with the preparation of the Schematic Design, Design Development and Construction Documents, the Construction Manager shall prepare and update, at appropriate intervals agreed to by the Owner, Construction Manager and Architect, estimates of the Cost of the Work of increasing detail and refinement and allowing for the further development of the design until such time as the Owner and Construction Manager agree on a Guaranteed Maximum Price for the Work. Such estimates shall be provided for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s approval. The Construction Manager shall inform the Owner and Architect when estimates of the Cost of the Work exceed the latest approved Project budget and make recommendations for corrective action.





§ 2.1.6 Subcontractors and Suppliers


The Construction Manager shall develop bidders’ interest in the Project. 





§ 2.1.7 The Construction Manager shall prepare, for the Architect’s review and the Owner’s acceptance, a procurement schedule for items that must be ordered well in advance of construction. The Construction Manager shall expedite and coordinate the ordering and delivery of materials that must be ordered well in advance of construction. If the Owner agrees to procure any items prior to the establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner shall procure the items on terms and conditions acceptable to the Construction Manager. Upon the establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner shall assign all contracts for these items to the Construction Manager and the Construction Manager shall thereafter accept responsibility for them. 





§ 2.1.8 Extent of Responsibility


The Construction Manager shall exercise reasonable care in preparing schedules and estimates. The Construction Manager, however, does not warrant or guarantee estimates and schedules except as may be included as part of the Guaranteed Maximum Price .and except that the date of Substantial Completion may in no circumstance be later than TBD. The Construction Manager is not required to ascertain that the Drawings and Specifications are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Construction Manager shall promptly report to the Architect and Owner any nonconformity discovered by or made known to the Construction Manager as a request for information in such form as the Architect may require.





§ 2.1.9 Notices and Compliance with Laws


The Construction Manager shall comply with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities applicable to its performance under this Contract, and with equal employment opportunity programs, and other programs as may be required by governmental and quasi governmental authorities for inclusion in the Contract Documents.





§ 2.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price Proposal and Contract Time


§ 2.2.1 At a time to be mutually agreed upon by the Owner and the Construction Manager and in consultation with the Architect, the Construction Manager shall prepare a Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal for the Owner’s review and acceptance. The Guaranteed Maximum Price in the proposal shall be the sum of the Construction Manager’s estimate of the Cost of the Work, including contingencies described in Section 2.2.4, and the Construction Manager’s Fee. 





§ 2.2.2 To the extent that the Drawings and Specifications are anticipated to require further development by the Architect, the Construction Manager shall provide in the Guaranteed Maximum Price for such further development consistent with the Contract Documents and reasonably inferable therefrom. Such further development does not include such things as changes in scope, systems, kinds and quality of materials, finishes or equipment, all of which, if required, shall be incorporated by Change Order.





§ 2.2.3 The Construction Manager shall include with the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal a written statement of its basis, which shall include the following: 


.1	A list of the Drawings and Specifications, including all Addenda thereto, and the Conditions of the Contract;


.2	A list of the clarifications and assumptions made by the Construction Manager in the preparation of the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, including assumptions under Section 2.2.2, to supplement the information provided by the Owner and contained in the Drawings and Specifications;


.3	A statement of the proposed Guaranteed Maximum Price, including a statement of the estimated Cost of the Work organized by trade categories or systems, allowances, contingency, and the Construction Manager’s Fee;


.4	The anticipated date of Substantial Completion, which shall in no event be later than TBD, upon which the proposed Guaranteed Maximum Price is based; and


.5	A date by which the Owner must accept the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 





§ 2.2.4 In preparing the Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Construction Manager shall include its contingency for the Construction Manager’s exclusive use to cover those costs considered reimbursable as the Cost of the Work but not included in a Change Order.  The Construction Manager’s Construction Contingency shall be used to expedite the work, supplement any additional unforeseen general conditions cost, correct deficient work, address scheduling and coordination problems, correct scope gaps in the bidding of the project, correct code, regulatory and other items identified by the Owner in writing to the Construction Manager prior to bidding the project, and any issues that are the fault of the Construction Manager or its trade subcontractors subject to the terms of Article 6 Cost of the Work.  The Construction Manager’s use of the Construction Contingency fund shall be documented in writing by the Construction Manager.   





§ 2.2.5 The Construction Manager shall meet with the Owner and Architect to review the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal. In the event that the Owner and Architect discover any inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the information presented, they shall promptly notify the Construction Manager, who shall make appropriate adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, its basis, or both. 





§ 2.2.6 If the Owner notifies the Construction Manager that the Owner has accepted the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal in writing before the date specified in the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal, the Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal shall be deemed effective without further acceptance from the Construction Manager. Following acceptance of a Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Owner and Construction Manager shall execute the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment amending this Agreement, a copy of which the Owner shall provide to the Architect. The Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment shall set forth the agreed upon Guaranteed Maximum Price with the information and assumptions upon which it is based. 





§ 2.2.7 The Construction Manager shall not incur any cost to be reimbursed as part of the Cost of the Work prior to the commencement of the Construction Phase, unless the Owner provides prior written authorization for such costs.





§ 2.2.8 The Owner shall authorize the Architect to provide the revisions to the Drawings and Specifications to incorporate the agreed upon assumptions and clarifications contained in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment. The Owner shall promptly furnish those revised Drawings and Specifications to the Construction Manager as they are revised. The Construction Manager shall notify the Owner and Architect of any inconsistencies between the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and the revised Drawings and Specifications.





§ 2.2.9 The Construction Manager shall include in the Guaranteed Maximum Price all sales, consumer, use and similar taxes for the Work provided by the Construction Manager that are legally enacted, whether or not yet effective, at the time the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment is executed.





§ 2.3 Construction Phase


§ 2.3.1 General


§ 2.3.1.1 For purposes of Section 8.1.2 of A201–20107, the date of commencement of the Work shall mean the date of commencement of the Construction Phase.





§ 2.3.1.2 The Construction Phase shall commence upon the Owner’s acceptance of the Construction Manager’s Guaranteed Maximum Price proposal or the Owner’s issuance of a Notice to Proceed, whichever occurs earlier.





§ 2.3.2 Administration


§ 2.3.2.1 Those portions of the Work that the Construction Manager does not customarily perform with the Construction Manager’s own personnel shall be performed under subcontracts bid and awarded pursuant to North Carolina law, and specifically N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-128.1.


Those portions of the Work that the Construction Manager does not customarily perform with the Construction Manager’s own personnel shall be performed under subcontracts or by other appropriate agreements with the Construction Manager. The Owner may designate specific persons from whom, or entities from which, the Construction Manager shall obtain bids. The Construction Manager shall obtain bids from Subcontractors and from suppliers of materials or equipment fabricated especially for the Work and shall deliver such bids to the Architect. The Owner shall then determine, with the advice of the Construction Manager and the Architect, which bids will be accepted. The Construction Manager shall not be required to contract with anyone to whom the Construction Manager has reasonable objection.





§ 2.3.2.2 If the Guaranteed Maximum Price has been established and when a specific bidder (1) is recommended to the Owner by the Construction Manager, (2) is qualified to perform that portion of the Work, and (3) has submitted a bid that conforms to the requirements of the Contract Documents without reservations or exceptions, but the Owner requires that another bid be accepted, then the Construction Manager may require that a Change Order be issued to adjust the Contract Time and the Guaranteed Maximum Price by the difference between the bid of the person or entity recommended to the Owner by the Construction Manager and the amount and time requirement of the subcontract or other agreement actually signed with the person or entity designated by the Owner.





§ 2.3.2.3 Subcontracts or other agreements shall conform to the applicable payment provisions of this Agreement, and shall not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee without the prior consent of the Owner. If the Subcontract is awarded on a cost plus fee basis, the Construction Manager shall provide in the Subcontract for the Owner to receive the same audit rights with regard to the Subcontractor as the Owner receives with regard to the Construction Manager in Section 6.11 below.





§ 2.3.2.4 If the Construction Manager recommends a specific bidder that may be considered a “related party” according to Section 6.10, then the Construction Manager shall promptly notify the Owner in writing of such relationship and notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, according to Section 6.10.2.





§ 2.3.2.5 The Construction Manager shall schedule and conduct meetings to discuss such matters as procedures, progress, coordination, scheduling, and status of the Work. The Construction Manager shall prepare and promptly distribute minutes to the Owner and Architect.





§ 2.3.2.6 Upon the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction Manager shall prepare and submit to the Owner and Architect a construction schedule for the Work and submittal schedule in accordance with Section 3.10 of A201–20107. 





§ 2.3.2.7 The Construction Manager shall record the progress of the Project. On a monthly basis, or otherwise as agreed to by the Owner, the Construction Manager shall submit written progress reports to the Owner and Architect, showing percentages of completion and other information required by the Owner. The Construction Manager shall also keep, and make available to the Owner and Architect, a daily log containing a record for each day of weather, portions of the Work in progress, number of workers on site, identification of equipment on site, problems that might affect progress of the work, accidents, injuries, and other information required by the Owner.





§ 2.3.2.8 The Construction Manager shall develop a system of cost control for the Work, including regular monitoring of actual costs for activities in progress and estimates for uncompleted tasks and proposed changes. The Construction Manager shall identify variances between actual and estimated costs and report the variances to the Owner and Architect and shall provide this information in its monthly reports to the Owner and Architect, in accordance with Section 2.3.2.7 above. 





§ 2.4 Professional Services


Section 3.12.10 of A201–2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.





§ 2.5 Hazardous Materials


Section 10.3 of A201–2007 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.





§ 2.6 The Construction Manager acknowledges and recognizes that the Owner is entitled to full and beneficial occupancy and use of the completed Work following expiration of the Contract Time, and that the Owner has entered into, or will enter into, binding agreements with third parties based on the Contractor’s achieving Substantial Completion of the Work by not later than TBD.  The Construction Manager further acknowledges and agrees that if the Construction Manager fails to complete substantially or cause the Substantial Completion of any portion of the Work by TBD, the Owner will sustain extensive damages and serious loss as a result of such failure.  The exact amount of such damages will be extremely difficult to ascertain.  Therefore, the Owner and the Construction Manager agree as set forth in this Section 2.6.





§2.6.1	If the Construction Manager fails to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work by TBD, the Owner shall be entitled to retain or recover from the Construction Manager, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, the following per day amounts commencing the TBD and continuing each day until the date the Construction Manager achieves Substantial Completion of the entire Work.  Such liquidated damages are hereby agreed to be a reasonable pre-estimate of damages the Owner will incur as a result of delayed completion of the work:





TOTAL per day liquidated damages	$_TBD___





§2.6.2	The Owner may deduct liquidated damages described in Section 2.6.1 from any unpaid amounts then or thereafter due the Construction Manager under this Contract.  Any liquidated damages not so deducted from any unpaid amounts due the Construction Manager shall be payable to the Owner at the demand of the Owner, together with interest from the date of the demand at the legal rate.








ARTICLE 3   OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES


§ 3.1 Information and Services Required of the Owner


§ 3.1.1 The Owner shall provide information with reasonable promptness, regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the Owner’s objectives, constraints, and criteria, including schedule, space requirements and relationships, flexibility and expandability, special equipment, systems, sustainability and site requirements.





§ 3.1.2 Prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Construction Manager may request in writing that the Owner provide reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the Contract. Thereafter, the Construction Manager may only request such evidence if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Construction Manager as the Contract Documents require, (2) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum, or (3) the Construction Manager identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s ability to make payment when due. The Owner shall furnish such evidence as a condition precedent to commencement or continuation of the Work or the portion of the Work affected by a material change. After the Owner furnishes the evidence, the Owner shall not materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Construction Manager and Architect. 





§ 3.1.3 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner’s budget for the Project, including (1) the budget for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1.1, (2) the Owner’s other costs, and (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner’s budget for the Cost of the Work, the Owner shall notify the Construction Manager and Architect. The Owner and the Architect, in consultation with the Construction Manager, shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in the Project’s scope and quality.





§ 3.1.4 Structural and Environmental Tests, Surveys and Reports. During the Preconstruction Phase, the Owner shall furnish the following information or services with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and relevant to the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Construction Manager’s written request for such information or services. The Construction Manager shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy of information and services furnished by the Owner but shall exercise proper precautions relating to the safe performance of the Work.





§ 3.1.4.1 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law and as otherwise agreed to by the parties, such as structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials.





§ 3.1.4.2 The Owner shall furnish surveys describing physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the site of the Project, and a legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. 





§ 3.1.4.3 The Owner, when such services are requested, shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include but are not limited to test borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations.





§ 3.1.4.4 During the Construction Phase, the Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Contract Documents with reasonable promptness. The Owner shall also furnish any other information or services under the Owner’s control and relevant to the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work with reasonable promptness after receiving the Construction Manager’s written request for such information or services.





§ 3.2 Owner’s Designated Representative


The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Owner with respect to the Project. The Owner’s representative shall render decisions promptly and furnish information expeditiously, so as to avoid unreasonable delay in the services or Work of the Construction Manager. Except as otherwise provided in Section 4.2.1 of A201–20107, the Architect does not have such authority. The term “Owner” means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized representative.





§ 3.2.1 Legal Requirements. The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests. 





§ 3.3 Architect


The Owner shall retain an Architect to provide services, duties and responsibilities as described in AIA Document B133™–2014, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, Construction Manager as Constructor Edition. The Owner shall provide the Construction Manager a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and the Architect, and any further modifications to the agreement.





ARTICLE 4   COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS FOR PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES


§ 4.1 Compensation


§ 4.1.1 For the Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services, the Owner shall compensate the Construction Manager as follows:





§ 4.1.2 For the Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services described in Sections 2.1 and 2.2:


(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation and include a list of reimbursable cost items, as applicable.)





[bookmark: bm_PreconstructionPhaseCompensation]«The Construction Manager shall be compensated for a total Preconstruction Fee of $121,777.  »





[bookmark: bm_MonthsToCompletePreconstructionWords][bookmark: bm_MonthsToCompletePreconstruction]§ 4.1.3 If the Preconstruction Phase services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within «two  » ( «2  » ) months of the date of this Agreement, through no fault of the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s compensation for Preconstruction Phase services shall be equitably adjusted. 





§ 4.1.4 Compensation based on Direct Personnel Expense includes the direct salaries of the Construction Manager’s personnel providing Preconstruction Phase services on the Project and the Construction Manager’s costs for the mandatory and customary contributions and benefits related thereto, such as employment taxes and other statutory employee benefits, insurance, sick leave, holidays, vacations, employee retirement plans and similar contributions.





§ 4.2 Payments


§ 4.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services performed. 





[bookmark: bm_DaysUntilInterestDueWords][bookmark: bm_DaysUntilInterestDue]§ 4.2.2 Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Construction Manager’s invoice. Amounts unpaid «sixty  » ( «60  » ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Construction Manager.


(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)





[bookmark: bm_OverduePayInterest][bookmark: bm_BasisForInterest]«Zero  » % «0  »





ARTICLE 5   COMPENSATION FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES


§ 5.1 For the Construction Manager’s performance of the Work as described in Section 2.3, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager the Contract Sum in current funds. The Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1.1 plus the Construction Manager’s Fee.





§ 5.1.1 The Construction Manager’s Fee:


(State a lump sum, percentage of Cost of the Work or other provision for determining the Construction Manager’s Fee.)





[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagersFee]«Three and three quarter percent (3.75%) of the total GMP.  »





§ 5.1.2 The method of adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee for changes in the Work:





[bookmark: bm_MethodOfAdjustment]« Changes will be adjusted at the same rate of the Construction Manager’s Fee  »





§ 5.1.3 Limitations, if any, on a Subcontractor’s overhead and profit for increases in the cost of its portion of the Work:





[bookmark: bm_LimitationOnOverhead]«10% Overhead plus 5% Profit  »





§ 5.1.4 Rental rates for Construction Manager-owned equipment shall not exceed «  » percent ( «  » %) of the standard rate paid at the place of the Project.





§ 5.1.5 Unit prices, if any:


(Identify and state the unit price; state the quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)





			Item


			Units and Limitations


			Price per Unit ($0.00)





			[bookmark: bm_UnitPricesTable]  


			


			











§ 5.2 Guaranteed Maximum Price


§ 5.2.1 The Construction Manager guarantees that the Contract Sum shall not exceed the Guaranteed Maximum Price set forth in the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, as it is amended from time to time. To the extent the Cost of the Work exceeds the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Construction Manager shall bear such costs in excess of the Guaranteed Maximum Price without reimbursement or additional compensation from the Owner.


(Insert specific provisions if the Construction Manager is to participate in any savings.)





[bookmark: bm_ParticipationInSavingsProvisions]« THE PARTIES AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT THE BIDS RECEIVED BY THE CM FOR THE WORK, INCLUDING ALL OF THE ALTERNATES ACCEPTED BY THE OWNER, PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 5.2 OF THIS AGREEMENT EXCEED THE LINE ITEM IN THE GMP FOR THE COST OF THE WORK, THEN THE CM SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO TERMINATE THIS AGREEMENT.  THE CM SHALL PROVIDE THE OWNER WITH NOTICE OF INTENT TO TERMINATE PURSUANT TO THIS PROVISION WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) DAYS OF THE CM’S RECEIPT OF BIDS FOR THE PROJECT.  PRIOR TO A TERMINATION PURSUANT TO THIS PROVISION BECOMING EFFECTIVE, THE OWNER AND CM WILL REVIEW THE LIST OF ALTERNATES, OTHER MODIFICATIONS OR VALUE ENGINEERING REQUESTS IN ORDER TO DETERMINE WHETHER AN AGREEMENT CAN BE REACHED BETWEEN THE OWNER AND CM REGARDING A MODIFIED SCOPE OF WORK OR AN ADJUSTMENT TO THE GMP.  IN THE EVENT AN AGREEMENT REGARDING THE MODIFIED SCOPE OF THE WORK AND/OR A REVISION TO THE GMP CANNOT BE REACHED WITHIN FIFTEEN (15) DAYS OF THE OWNER’S  RECEIPT OF NOTICE OF INTENT TO TERMINATE PURSUANT TO THIS SECTION, THEN THE TERMINATION SHALL BECOME IMMEDIATELY EFFECTIVE.





At the conclusion of the construction phase, the unused portion of the Construction Manager’s Construction Contingency may be considered available for a 50 % CM to 50 % Owner split based on Owner’s evaluation of the performance on the contract. The distribution of savings in the Construction Manager’s Construction Contingency fund shall be considered as a performance incentive only if the project completes within the specified construction duration established in the GMP.   »





§ 5.2.2 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is subject to additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents and the Date of Substantial Completion shall be subject to adjustment as provided in the Contract Documents. 





§ 5.3 Changes in the Work


§ 5.3.1 The Owner may, without invalidating the Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions or other revisions. The Owner shall issue such changes in writing. The Architect may make minor changes in the Work as provided in Section 7.4 of AIA Document A201–20107, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Construction Manager shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment in the Contract Time as a result of changes in the Work.





§ 5.3.2 Adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price on account of changes in the Work subsequent to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment may be determined by any of the methods listed in Section 7.3.3 of AIA Document A201–20107, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction.





§ 5.3.3 In calculating adjustments to subcontracts (except those awarded with the Owner’s prior consent on the basis of cost plus a fee), the terms “cost” and “fee” as used in Section 7.3.3.3 of AIA Document A201–20107 and the term “costs” as used in Section 7.3.7 of AIA Document A201–20107 shall have the meanings assigned to them in AIA Document A201–20107 and shall not be modified by Sections 5.1 and 5.2, Sections 6.1 through 6.7, and Section 6.8 of this Agreement. Adjustments to subcontracts awarded with the Owner’s prior consent on the basis of cost plus a fee shall be calculated in accordance with the terms of those subcontracts.





§ 5.3.4 In calculating adjustments to the Guaranteed Maximum Price, the terms “cost” and “costs” as used in the above-referenced provisions of AIA Document A201–20107 shall mean the Cost of the Work as defined in Sections 6.1 to 6.7 of this Agreement and the term “fee” shall mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as defined in Section 5.1 of this Agreement.





§ 5.3.5 If no specific provision is made in Section 5.1.2 for adjustment of the Construction Manager’s Fee in the case of changes in the Work, or if the extent of such changes is such, in the aggregate, that application of the adjustment provisions of Section 5.1.2 will cause substantial inequity to the Owner or Construction Manager, the Construction Manager’s Fee shall be equitably adjusted on the same basis that was used to establish the Fee for the original Work, and the Guaranteed Maximum Price shall be adjusted accordingly.





ARTICLE 6   COST OF THE WORK FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE


§ 6.1 Costs to Be Reimbursed


§ 6.1.1 The term Cost of the Work shall mean all amounts paid by the Owner to  the Construction Manager for construction and post-construction phase basic services provided by the Construction Manager and payment to all separate Subcontractors, suppliers and equipment lessors for all work, material, and equipment supplied to the Project. Such costs shall be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project except with prior consent of the Owner. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set forth in Sections 6.1 through 6.7.


The term Cost of the Work shall mean costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager in the proper performance of the Work. Such costs shall be at rates not higher than the standard paid at the place of the Project except with prior consent of the Owner. The Cost of the Work shall include only the items set forth in Sections 6.1 through 6.7.





§ 6.1.2 Where any cost is subject to the Owner’s prior approval, the Construction Manager shall obtain this approval prior to incurring the cost. The parties shall endeavor to identify any such costs prior to executing Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment.





§ 6.2 Labor Costs


§ 6.2.1 Wages of construction workers directly employed by the Construction Manager to perform the construction of the Work at the site or, with the Owner’s prior approval, at off-site workshops.





§ 6.2.2 Wages or salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory and administrative personnel when stationed at the site and when stationed at the Construction Manager’s office as indicated and defined in the Construction Manager’s General Conditions presented with the GMP.  


Wages or salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory and administrative personnel when stationed at the site with the Owner’s prior approval.


(If it is intended that the wages or salaries of certain personnel stationed at the Construction Manager’s principal or other offices shall be included in the Cost of the Work, identify in Section 11.5, the personnel to be included, whether for all or only part of their time, and the rates at which their time will be charged to the Work.)





§ 6.2.3 Wages and salaries of the Construction Manager’s supervisory or administrative personnel engaged at factories, workshops or on the road, in expediting the production or transportation of materials or equipment required for the Work, but only for that portion of their time required for the Work.





§ 6.2.4 Costs paid or incurred by the Construction Manager for taxes, insurance, contributions, assessments and benefits required by law or collective bargaining agreements and, for personnel not covered by such agreements, customary benefits such as sick leave, medical and health benefits, holidays, vacations and pensions, provided such costs are based on wages and salaries included in the Cost of the Work under Sections 6.2.1 through 6.2.3.





§ 6.2.5 Bonuses, profit sharing, incentive compensation and any other discretionary payments paid to anyone hired by the Construction Manager or paid to any Subcontractor or vendor, with the Owner’s prior approval.





§ 6.2.6 Actual Construction Manager billing rates for Construction Manager’s Labor will include all labor burdens, benefits, taxes, insurances, IT network support, etc and will be established in the GMP:





§ 6.2.7 Actual Construction Manager billing rates for insurances and bonds:


a. General Liability Ins.		0.95% of GMP total


b. Perform. & Payment Bond	1% of GMP total


c. Subguard Bonds		1.25 % of subcontract total








§ 6.3 Subcontract Costs


Payments made by the Construction Manager to Subcontractors in accordance with the requirements of the subcontracts.





§ 6.4 Costs of Materials and Equipment Incorporated in the Completed Construction


§ 6.4.1 Costs, including transportation and storage, of materials and equipment incorporated or to be incorporated in the completed construction.





§ 6.4.2 Costs of materials described in the preceding Section 6.4.1 in excess of those actually installed to allow for reasonable waste and spoilage. Unused excess materials, if any, shall become the Owner’s property at the completion of the Work or, at the Owner’s option, shall be sold by the Construction Manager. Any amounts realized from such sales shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.





§ 6.5 Costs of Other Materials and Equipment, Temporary Facilities and Related Items


§ 6.5.1 Costs of transportation, storage, installation, maintenance, dismantling and removal of materials, supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by the Construction Manager at the site and fully consumed in the performance of the Work. Costs of materials, supplies, temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and tools that are not fully consumed shall be based on the cost or value of the item at the time it is first used on the Project site less the value of the item when it is no longer used at the Project site. Costs for items not fully consumed by the Construction Manager shall mean fair market value.





§ 6.5.2 Rental charges for temporary facilities, machinery, equipment and hand tools not customarily owned by construction workers that are provided by the Construction Manager at the site and costs of transportation, installation, minor repairs, dismantling and removal. The total rental cost of any Construction Manager-owned item may not exceed the purchase price of any comparable item. Rates of Construction Manager-owned equipment and quantities of equipment shall be subject to the Owner’s prior approval.





§ 6.5.3 Costs of removal of debris from the site of the Work and its proper and legal disposal.





§ 6.5.4 Costs of document reproductions, facsimile transmissions and long-distance telephone calls, postage and parcel delivery charges, telephone service at the site and reasonable petty cash expenses of the site office.





§ 6.5.5 That portion of the reasonable expenses of the Construction Manager’s supervisory or administrative personnel incurred while traveling in discharge of duties connected with the Work.





§ 6.5.6 Costs of materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a mutually acceptable location, subject to the Owner’s prior approval.





§ 6.6 Miscellaneous Costs


§ 6.6.1 Premiums for that portion of insurance and bonds required by the Contract Documents that can be directly attributed to this Contract. Self-insurance for either full or partial amounts of the coverages required by the Contract Documents, with the Owner’s prior approval.





§ 6.6.2 Sales, use or similar taxes imposed by a governmental authority that are related to the Work and for which the Construction Manager is liable.





§ 6.6.3 Fees and assessments for the building permit and for other permits, licenses and inspections for which the Construction Manager is required by the Contract Documents to pay.





§ 6.6.4 Fees of laboratories for tests required by the Contract Documents, except those related to defective or nonconforming Work for which reimbursement is excluded by Section 13.5.3 of AIA Document A201–20107 or by other provisions of the Contract Documents, and which do not fall within the scope of Section 6.7.3.





§ 6.6.5 Royalties and license fees paid for the use of a particular design, process or product required by the Contract Documents; the cost of defending suits or claims for infringement of patent rights arising from such requirement of the Contract Documents; and payments made in accordance with legal judgments against the Construction Manager resulting from such suits or claims and payments of settlements made with the Owner’s consent. However, such costs of legal defenses, judgments and settlements shall not be included in the calculation of the Construction Manager’s Fee or subject to the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If such royalties, fees and costs are excluded by the last sentence of Section 3.17 of AIA Document A201–20107 or other provisions of the Contract Documents, then they shall not be included in the Cost of the Work.





§ 6.6.6 Costs for electronic equipment and software, directly related to the Work with the Owner’s prior approval.





§ 6.6.7 Deposits lost for causes other than the Construction Manager’s negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility in the Contract Documents.





§ 6.6.8 Legal, mediation and arbitration costs, including attorneys’ fees, other than those arising from disputes between the Owner and Construction Manager, reasonably incurred by the Construction Manager after the execution of this Agreement in the performance of the Work and with the Owner’s prior approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.





§ 6.6.9 Subject to the Owner’s prior approval, expenses incurred in accordance with the Construction Manager’s standard written personnel policy for relocation and temporary living allowances of the Construction Manager’s personnel required for the Work.





§ 6.7 Other Costs and Emergencies


§ 6.7.1 Other costs incurred in the performance of the Work if, and to the extent, approved in advance in writing by the Owner.





§ 6.7.2 Costs incurred in taking action to prevent threatened damage, injury or loss in case of an emergency affecting the safety of persons and property, as provided in Section 10.4 of AIA Document A201–20107.





§ 6.7.3 Costs of repairing or correcting damaged or nonconforming Work executed by the Construction Manager, Subcontractors or suppliers, provided that such damaged or nonconforming Work was not caused by negligence or failure to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Construction Manager and only to the extent that the cost of repair or correction is not recovered by the Construction Manager from insurance, sureties, Subcontractors, suppliers, or others.





§ 6.7.4 The costs described in Sections 6.1 through 6.7 shall be included in the Cost of the Work, notwithstanding any provision of AIA Document A201–20107 or other Conditions of the Contract which may require the Construction Manager to pay such costs, unless such costs are excluded by the provisions of Section 6.8.





§ 6.8 Costs Not To Be Reimbursed


§ 6.8.1 The Cost of the Work shall not include the items listed below:


.1	Salaries and other compensation of the Construction Manager’s personnel stationed at the Construction Manager’s principal office or offices other than the site office, except as specifically provided in Section 6.2, or as may be provided in Article 11;


.2	Expenses of the Construction Manager’s principal office and offices other than the site office;


.3	Overhead and general expenses, except as may be expressly included in Sections 6.1 to 6.7;


.4	The Construction Manager’s capital expenses, including interest on the Construction Manager’s capital employed for the Work;


.5	Except as provided in Section 6.7.3 of this Agreement, costs due to the negligence or failure of the Construction Manager, Subcontractors and suppliers or anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them or for whose acts any of them may be liable to fulfill a specific responsibility of the Contract;


.6	Any cost not specifically and expressly described in Sections 6.1 to 6.7; 


.7	Costs, other than costs included in Change Orders approved by the Owner, that would cause the Guaranteed Maximum Price to be exceeded; and


.8	Costs for services incurred during the Preconstruction Phase.





§ 6.9 Discounts, Rebates and Refunds


§ 6.9.1 Cash discounts obtained on payments made by the Construction Manager shall accrue to the Owner if (1) before making the payment, the Construction Manager included them in an Application for Payment and received payment from the Owner, or (2) the Owner has deposited funds with the Construction Manager with which to make payments; otherwise, cash discounts shall accrue to the Construction Manager. Trade discounts, rebates, refunds and amounts received from sales of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue to the Owner, and the Construction Manager shall make provisions so that they can be obtained.





§ 6.9.2 Amounts that accrue to the Owner in accordance with the provisions of Section 6.9.1 shall be credited to the Owner as a deduction from the Cost of the Work.





§ 6.10 Related Party Transactions


§ 6.10.1 For purposes of Section 6.10, the term “related party” shall mean a parent, subsidiary, affiliate or other entity having common ownership or management with the Construction Manager; any entity in which any stockholder in, or management employee of, the Construction Manager owns any interest in excess of ten percent in the aggregate; or any person or entity which has the right to control the business or affairs of the Construction Manager. The term “related party” includes any member of the immediate family of any person identified above. 





§ 6.10.2 If any of the costs to be reimbursed arise from a transaction between the Construction Manager and a related party, the Construction Manager shall notify the Owner of the specific nature of the contemplated transaction, including the identity of the related party and the anticipated cost to be incurred, before any such transaction is consummated or cost incurred. If the Owner, after such notification, authorizes the proposed transaction, then the cost incurred shall be included as a cost to be reimbursed, and the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, equipment, goods or service from the related party, as a Subcontractor, according to the terms of Sections 2.3.2.1, 2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3. If the Owner fails to authorize the transaction, the Construction Manager shall procure the Work, equipment, goods or service from some person or entity other than a related party according to the terms of Sections 2.3.2.1, 2.3.2.2 and 2.3.2.3.





§ 6.11 Accounting Records


The Construction Manager shall keep full and detailed records and accounts related to the cost of the Work and exercise such controls as may be necessary for proper financial management under this Contract and to substantiate all costs incurred. The accounting and control systems shall be satisfactory to the Owner. The Owner and the Owner’s auditors shall, during regular business hours and upon reasonable notice, be afforded access to, and shall be permitted to audit and copy, the Construction Manager’s records and accounts, including complete documentation supporting accounting entries, books, correspondence, instructions, drawings, receipts, subcontracts, Subcontractor’s proposals, purchase orders, vouchers, memoranda and other data relating to this Contract. The Construction Manager shall preserve these records for a period of three years after final payment, or for such longer period as may be required by law.





ARTICLE 7   PAYMENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES


§ 7.1 Progress Payments


§ 7.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Construction Manager and Certificates for Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the Construction Manager as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.





§ 7.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day of the month, or as follows:





[bookmark: bm_AppForPayPeriod]«  »





[bookmark: bm_DOMArchitectReceivesApp][bookmark: bm_DOMOwnerPaysCM][bookmark: bm_MonthToPayCM][bookmark: bm_LateAppDaysToPayWords][bookmark: bm_LateAppDaysToPay]§ 7.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the «25th  » day of a month, the Owner shall make payment of the certified amount to the Construction Manager not later than the «25th  » day of the «following  » month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment shall be made by the Owner not later than «thirty  » ( «30  » ) days after the Architect receives the Application for Payment.


(Federal, state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)





§ 7.1.4 With each Application for Payment, the Construction Manager shall submit payrolls, petty cash accounts, receipted invoices or invoices with check vouchers attached, and any other evidence required by the Owner or Architect to demonstrate that cash disbursements already made by the Construction Manager on account of the Cost of the Work equal or exceed progress payments already received by the Construction Manager, less that portion of those payments attributable to the Construction Manager’s Fee, plus payrolls for the period covered by the present Application for Payment.





§ 7.1.5 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the Construction Manager in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Guaranteed Maximum Price among the various portions of the Work, except that the Construction Manager’s Fee shall be shown as a single separate item. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Construction Manager’s Applications for Payment.





§ 7.1.6 Applications for Payment shall show the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work as of the end of the period covered by the Application for Payment. The percentage of completion shall be the lesser of (1) the percentage of that portion of the Work which has actually been completed, or (2) the percentage obtained by dividing (a) the expense that has actually been incurred by the Construction Manager on account of that portion of the Work for which the Construction Manager has made or intends to make actual payment prior to the next Application for Payment by (b) the share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values.





§ 7.1.7 Subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be computed as follows:


.1	Take that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to completed Work as determined by multiplying the percentage of completion of each portion of the Work by the share of the Guaranteed Maximum Price allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values. Pending final determination of cost to the Owner of changes in the Work, amounts not in dispute shall be included as provided in Section 7.3.9 of AIA Document A201–20107;


.2	Add that portion of the Guaranteed Maximum Price properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work, or if approved in advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing;


.3	Add the Construction Manager’s Fee, less retainage calculated as the maximum allowable retainage pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-134.1(b1). The Construction Manager’s Fee shall be computed upon the Cost of the Work at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, shall be an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the Work bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;Add the Construction Manager’s Fee, less retainage of «  » percent ( «  » %). The Construction Manager’s Fee shall be computed upon the Cost of the Work at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, shall be an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum fee as the Cost of the Work bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion;


.4	Subtract retainage  calculated as the maximum allowable retainage pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-134.1(b1) from that portion of the Work that the Construction Manager self-performs;Subtract retainage of «  » percent ( «  » %) from that portion of the Work that the Construction Manager self-performs;


.5	Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner;


.6	Subtract the shortfall, if any, indicated by the Construction Manager in the documentation required by Section 7.1.4 to substantiate prior Applications for Payment, or resulting from errors subsequently discovered by the Owner’s auditors in such documentation; and


.7	Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Architect has withheld or nullified a Certificate for Payment as provided in Section 9.5 of AIA Document A201–20107.





§ 7.1.8 The Owner and Construction Manager shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure for review and approval of payments to Subcontractors and (2) the percentage of retainage held on Subcontracts, and the Construction Manager shall execute subcontracts in accordance with those agreements. 





§ 7.1.9 Except with the Owner’s prior approval, the Construction Manager shall not make advance payments to suppliers for materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.





§ 7.1.10 In taking action on the Construction Manager’s Applications for Payment, the Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Construction Manager and shall not be deemed to represent that the Architect has made a detailed examination, audit or arithmetic verification of the documentation submitted in accordance with Section 7.1.4 or other supporting data; that the Architect has made exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections; or that the Architect has made examinations to ascertain how or for what purposes the Construction Manager has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such examinations, audits and verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner’s auditors acting in the sole interest of the Owner.





§ 7.2 Final Payment


§ 7.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum less any liquidated damages, shall be made by the Owner to the Construction Manager when


.1	the Construction Manager has fully performed the Contract except for the Construction Manager’s responsibility to correct Work as provided in Section 12.2.2 of AIA Document A201–20107, and to satisfy other requirements, if any, which extend beyond final payment; 


.2	the Construction Manager has submitted a final accounting for the Cost of the Work and a final Application for Payment; and


.3	a final Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect. 





The Owner’s final payment to the Construction Manager shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment., or as follows:





[bookmark: bm_FinalPayment]«  »





§ 7.2.2 The Owner’s auditors will review and report in writing on the Construction Manager’s final accounting within 30 days after delivery of the final accounting to the Architect by the Construction Manager. Based upon such Cost of the Work as the Owner’s auditors report to be substantiated by the Construction Manager’s final accounting, and provided the other conditions of Section 7.2.1 have been met, the Architect will, within seven days after receipt of the written report of the Owner’s auditors, either issue to the Owner a final Certificate for Payment with a copy to the Construction Manager, or notify the Construction Manager and Owner in writing of the Architect’s reasons for withholding a certificate as provided in Section 9.5.1 of the AIA Document A201–20107. The time periods stated in this Section supersede those stated in Section 9.4.1 of the AIA Document A201–20107. The Architect is not responsible for verifying the accuracy of the Construction Manager’s final accounting.





§ 7.2.3 If the Owner’s auditors report the Cost of the Work as substantiated by the Construction Manager’s final accounting to be less than claimed by the Construction Manager, the Construction Manager shall be entitled to request mediation of the disputed amount without seeking an initial decision pursuant to Section 15.2 of A201–20107. A request for mediation shall be made by the Construction Manager within 30 days after the Construction Manager’s receipt of a copy of the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment. Failure to request mediation within this 30-day period shall result in the substantiated amount reported by the Owner’s auditors becoming binding on the Construction Manager. Pending a final resolution of the disputed amount, the Owner shall pay the Construction Manager the amount certified in the Architect’s final Certificate for Payment.





§ 7.2.4 If, subsequent to final payment and at the Owner’s request, the Construction Manager incurs costs described in Section 6.1.1 and not excluded by Section 6.8 to correct defective or nonconforming Work, the Owner shall reimburse the Construction Manager such costs and the Construction Manager’s Fee applicable thereto on the same basis as if such costs had been incurred prior to final payment, but not in excess of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. If the Construction Manager has participated in savings as provided in Section 5.2.1, the amount of such savings shall be recalculated and appropriate credit given to the Owner in determining the net amount to be paid by the Owner to the Construction Manager.





ARTICLE 8   INSURANCE AND BONDS


For all phases of the Project, the Construction Manager and the Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance, and the Construction Manager shall provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of AIA Document A201–20107.


(State bonding requirements, if any, and limits of liability for insurance required in Article 11 of AIA Document
A201–201707.)





			Type of Insurance or Bond


			Limit of Liability or Bond Amount ($0.00)





			[bookmark: bm_InsuranceTable]  


			











ARTICLE 9   DISPUTE RESOLUTION


§ 9.1 Any Claim or other dispute between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be subject to dispute resolution pursuant to the provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. §143-128.1(c) and 1 N.C.A.C. 30H.0400 et seq.  If and only if such dispute resolution process is exhausted without resolution, any Claim between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Article 9 and Article 15 of A201–2017.   


Any Claim between the Owner and Construction Manager shall be resolved in accordance with the provisions set forth in this Article 9 and Article 15 of A201–2007. However, for Claims arising from or relating to the Construction Manager’s Preconstruction Phase services, no decision by the Initial Decision Maker shall be required as a condition precedent to mediation or binding dispute resolution, and Section 9.3 of this Agreement shall not apply.





§ 9.2 For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by mediation pursuant to Section 15.3 of AIA Document A201–20107, the method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:


(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Construction Manager do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.)





[bookmark: bm_ArbitrationMethod][ «  » ]	Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201–20107





[bookmark: bm_LitigationMethod][ «  » ]	Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction





[bookmark: bm_OtherDisputeResolution][ «X  » ]	Other: Step 1 is mandatory meeting, Step 2 is mediation, Step is litigation(Specify)





[bookmark: bm_SpecifiedDisputeResolution]«  »





§ 9.3 Initial Decision Maker


The Architect will serve as the Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Section 15.2 of AIA Document A201–20107 for Claims arising from or relating to the Construction Manager’s Construction Phase services, unless the parties appoint below another individual, not a party to the Agreement, to serve as the Initial Decision Maker. 


(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect.)





[bookmark: bm_InitialDecisionMakerName]«  »


[bookmark: bm_InitialDecisionMakerAddress]«  »


[bookmark: bm_InitialDecisionMakerTelephone]«  »


[bookmark: bm_InitialDecisionMakerFax]«  »





ARTICLE 10   TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION


§ 10.1 Termination Prior to Establishment of the Guaranteed Maximum Price


§ 10.1.1 Prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Construction Manager for the Owner’s convenience and without cause, and the Construction Manager may terminate this Agreement, upon not less than seven days’ written notice to the Owner, for the reasons set forth in Section 14.1.1 of A201–20107.





§ 10.1.2 In the event of termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 10.1.1, the Construction Manager shall be equitably compensated for Preconstruction Phase services performed prior to receipt of a notice of termination. In no event shall the Construction Manager’s compensation under this Section exceed the compensation set forth in Section 4.1.





§ 10.1.3 If the Owner terminates the Contract pursuant to Section 10.1.1 after the commencement of the Construction Phase but prior to the execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the Owner shall pay to the Construction Manager an amount calculated as follows, which amount shall be in addition to any compensation paid to the Construction Manager under Section 10.1.2:


.1	Take the Cost of the Work incurred by the Construction Manager to the date of termination;


.2	Add the Construction Manager’s Fee computed upon the Cost of the Work to the date of termination at the rate stated in Section 5.1 or, if the Construction Manager’s Fee is stated as a fixed sum in that Section, an amount that bears the same ratio to that fixed-sum Fee as the Cost of the Work at the time of termination bears to a reasonable estimate of the probable Cost of the Work upon its completion; and


.3	Subtract the aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner for Construction Phase services.





The Owner shall also pay the Construction Manager fair compensation, either by purchase or rental at the election of the Owner, for any equipment owned by the Construction Manager which the Owner elects to retain and which is not otherwise included in the Cost of the Work under Section 10.1.3.1. To the extent that the Owner elects to take legal assignment of subcontracts and purchase orders (including rental agreements), the Construction Manager shall, as a condition of receiving the payments referred to in this Article 10, execute and deliver all such papers and take all such steps, including the legal assignment of such subcontracts and other contractual rights of the Construction Manager, as the Owner may require for the purpose of fully vesting in the Owner the rights and benefits of the Construction Manager under such subcontracts or purchase orders. All Subcontracts, purchase orders and rental agreements entered into by the Construction Manager will contain provisions allowing for assignment to the Owner as described above.





If the Owner accepts assignment of subcontracts, purchase orders or rental agreements as described above, the Owner will reimburse or indemnify the Construction Manager for all costs arising under the subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement, if those costs would have been reimbursable as Cost of the Work if the contract had not been terminated. If the Owner chooses not to accept assignment of any subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement that would have constituted a Cost of the Work had this agreement not been terminated, the Construction Manager will terminate the subcontract, purchase order or rental agreement and the Owner will pay the Construction Manager the costs necessarily incurred by the Construction Manager because of such termination.





§ 10.2 Termination Subsequent to Establishing Guaranteed Maximum Price


Following execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment and subject to the provisions of Section 10.2.1 and 10.2.2 below, the Contract may be terminated as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201–20107.





§ 10.2.1 If the Owner terminates the Contract after execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the amount payable to the Construction Manager pursuant to Sections 14.2 and 14.4 of A201–20107 shall not exceed the amount the Construction Manager would otherwise have received pursuant to Sections 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 of this Agreement.





§ 10.2.2 If the Construction Manager terminates the Contract after execution of the Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, the amount payable to the Construction Manager under Section 14.1.3 of A201–20107 shall not exceed the amount the Construction Manager would otherwise have received under Sections 10.1.2 and 10.1.3 above, except that the Construction Manager’s Fee shall be calculated as if the Work had been fully completed by the Construction Manager, utilizing as necessary a reasonable estimate of the Cost of the Work for Work not actually completed.





§ 10.3 Suspension


The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201–20107. In such case, the Guaranteed Maximum Price and Contract Time shall be increased as provided in Section 14.3.2 of AIA Document A201–20107, except that the term “profit” shall be understood to mean the Construction Manager’s Fee as described in Sections 5.1 and 5.3.5 of this Agreement.





ARTICLE 11   MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS


§ 11.1 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in A201–20107.





§ 11.2 Ownership and Use of Documents


Section 1.5 of A201–20107 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.





§ 11.3 Governing Law


Section 13.1 of A201–20107 shall apply to both the Preconstruction and Construction Phases.





§ 11.4 Assignment


The Owner and Construction Manager, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Construction Manager shall assign this Agreement without the written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner’s rights and obligations under this Agreement. Except as provided in Section 13.2.2 of A201–20107, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract.





§ 11.5 Other provisions:





[bookmark: bm_OtherProvisions]«  »





ARTICLE 12   SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT


§ 12.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Construction Manager and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Construction Manager. 





§ 12.2 The following documents comprise the Agreement:


.1	AIA Document A133–2009, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Construction Manager as Constructor where the basis of payment is the Cost of the Work Plus a Fee with a Guaranteed Maximum Price


.2	AIA Document A201–20107, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction


.3	AIA Document E201™–2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the following:





[bookmark: bm_OtherDigitalDataProtocol]«  »





.4	AIA Document E202™–2008, Building Information Modeling Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the following:





[bookmark: bm_OtherBuildingInfoModelingProtocol]«  »





.5	Other documents:


(List other documents, if any, forming part of the Agreement.)





[bookmark: bm_OtherDocuments]« a Construction Manager at Risk Fee Proposal, dated October 20, 2017.


b AIA A201—2017 Supplementary General Conditions dated March 5, 2018.


 »





This Agreement is entered into as of the day and year first written above.





			[bookmark: bm_DigitalSignature1]  


			


			[bookmark: bm_DigitalSignature2]  





			OWNER (Signature)


			


			CONSTRUCTION MANAGER (Signature)





			[bookmark: bm_OwnerRepName_1][bookmark: bm_OwnerRepTitle]«  »«  »


			


			[bookmark: bm_ConstructionManagerRepName_1]«  »«  »Gary C. Webb





			(Printed name and title)


			


			(Vice President, Barnhill Contracting CompanyPrinted name and title)





























							


			  





			CONSTRUCTION MANAGER 

















							


			J. Chris Smith





			Vice President, Beverly-Grant, Inc.
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: Fwd: HHS Design Drawings
Date: Wednesday, January 03, 2018 3:18:50 PM


Fyi


From: John Bryant <jmbryant@hcpsnc.org>
Sent: Wednesday, January 3, 2018 2:52:23 PM
To: Chad Roberson
Cc: Sara Melanson; Bo Caldwell; Stephanie Alfrey
Subject: HHS Design Drawings
 
Chad,


I do hope this message finds you well after the holiday season.


Members of our Board have requested to review to the most current design
plans for HHS.  They are planning an upcoming discussion re: Stillwell
future use at a January 18 Board Workshop
and would like the plans as a
reference.


Would you mind sending a digital or hard copy of the most up-to-date
Design Development drawing to me to provide for their review?


Thanks so very much and talk with you soon.  jb


"When in doubt, let kindness and compassion guide you."  Samin Nosrat


Proud to be an employee of Henderson County Public Schools.


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
Subject: Fwd: IHS - Certificate of Substantial Completion
Date: Monday, July 23, 2018 9:23:16 AM
Attachments: 2017-11-21_CertificateofSubComp.pdf


ATT00001.htm


John,
I am traveling this morning but if you will sign this and email back, we will get it to Barnhill
for there signatures, I thought this was already signed when I sent this previously.


Thx
Chad 


From: David Lancor
Sent: Monday, July 23, 2018 9:19:39 AM
To: Chad Roberson
Subject: Fwd: IHS - Certificate of Substantial Completion
 


Sent from my iPhone. 


Begin forwarded message:


From: David Lancor <DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com>
Date: November 21, 2017 at 11:02:20 AM EST
To: "David Berry (dberry@hendersoncountync.org)"
<dberry@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: IHS - Certificate of Substantial Completion


David:
 
Please find attached the Certificate of Substantial Completion for your review, and if no
comment, please sign and return to me, and I’ll sign and send it to the CM.
 


1. As discussed on the telephone, the A201-2007 for this project, section 3.5.3,
states that the warranties shall begin at Final Completion.   As directed, I have
filled out the Certificate to state
that warranties begin at substantial completion
instead.  As discussed, based on your experience it would be difficult to get a
subcontractor to fulfill a warranty claim that was filed 12 months after final
completion, due to the length of time between Substantial
and Final.


2. Section 9.8.5 of A201-2007 says “The Contractor shall achieve Final Completion
of each phase of the Work within thirty (30) days after the date of Substantial
Completion for each phase.  So that
is what is listed.


 
Sincerely,



mailto:CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com

mailto:johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org

mailto:DLancor@ClarkNexsen.com

mailto:dberry@hendersoncountync.org

mailto:dberry@hendersoncountync.org






   Document G704TM – 2000
Certificate of Substantial Completion 



AIA Document G704™ – 2000. Copyright © 1963, 1978, 1992 and 2000 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA®  
Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AIA®  Document, or any 
portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document 
was produced by AIA software at 16:30:50 on 11/20/2017 under Order No. 7896756710 which expires on 12/18/2018, and is not for resale.
User Notes: (3B9ADA28)
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PROJECT:
(Name and address)
Innovative High School
180 West Campus Drive
Flat Rock, NC, 28731          



PROJECT NUMBER: 5199-F/ 
CONTRACT FOR: General Construction
CONTRACT DATE: July 13, 2016



TO OWNER: TO CONTRACTOR:
(Name and address) (Name and address)
Henderson County
1 Historic Courthouse Square, Ste 2
Hendersonville, NC 
28792          
 



Beverly Grant/ Barnhill
80 Peachtree Road, Suite 201
Asheville, North Carolina 
28803          
 



OWNER: 



ARCHITECT: 



CONTRACTOR: 



FIELD: 



OTHER: 



PROJECT OR PORTION OF THE PROJECT DESIGNATED FOR PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE SHALL INCLUDE:



All portions.     



The Work performed under this Contract has been reviewed and found, to the Architect’s best knowledge, information and belief, 
to be substantially complete. Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Work when the Work or designated 
portion is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Contract Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Work for 
its intended use. The date of Substantial Completion of the Project or portion designated above is the date of issuance established 
by this Certificate, which is also the date of commencement of applicable warranties required by the Contract Documents, except 
as stated below:



Warranty Date of Commencement
          



Clark Nexsen, Inc.   August 23rd, 2017
ARCHITECT BY DATE OF ISSUANCE



A list of items to be completed or corrected is attached hereto. The failure to include any items on such list does not alter the 
responsibility of the Contractor to complete all Work in accordance with the Contract Documents. Unless otherwise agreed to in 
writing, the date of commencement of warranties for items on the attached list will be the date of issuance of the final Certificate 
of Payment or the date of final payment.



Cost estimate of Work that is incomplete or defective: $30,000.00



The Contractor will complete or correct the Work on the list of items attached hereto within Thirty (30) days from the above date 
of Substantial Completion.



Beverly Grant/Barnhill    
CONTRACTOR BY DATE 



The Owner accepts the Work or designated portion as substantially complete and will assume full possession at 12:00am (time) 
on August, 24th, 2017 (date).



Henderson County    
OWNER BY DATE











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



The responsibilities of the Owner and Contractor for security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work and insurance 
shall be as follows:
(Note: Owner’s and Contractor’s legal and insurance counsel should determine and review insurance requirements and 
coverage.)



The owner assumes responsibility for security, maintenance, utilities, damage to the Work, and insurance on the date 
of substantial completion.     


















David
 
 
David Lancor AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Architect | Associate


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6275 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
dlancor@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com



#CONFIDENTIALITY NOTE: This e-mail and any files transmitted with it contain privileged and confidential information and are
intended solely for the use of the individual
or entity to which they are addressed. If you are not the intended recipient or the
person responsible for delivering the e-mail to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination or copying of
this e-mail or any of its attachments is
strictly prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the
sending individual or entity by e-mail and permanently delete the original e-mail and attachments from your computer system.#
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell; David Berry
Subject: Fwd: Outstanding Client Invoices (CN 5199)
Date: Friday, July 13, 2018 11:34:47 AM
Attachments: 5199.A Inv 67627 Serv Thru 2018.01.31.pdf


5199.A Inv 68012 Serv Thru 2018.05.31.pdf
5199.A Inv 68275 Serv Thru 2018.06.30.pdf
5199.D Inv 67635 Serv Thru 2018.04.30.pdf
5199.D Inv 68014 Serv Thru 2018.05.31.pdf
5199.D Inv 68189 Serv Thru 2018.06.30.pdf
5199-G Inv 67637 Serv Thru 2018.04.30.pdf
5199-G Inv 68015 Serv Thru 2018.05.31.pdf
5199-G Inv 68190 Serv Thru 2018.06.30.pdf


From: Brandy Hyatt
Sent: Friday, July 13, 2018 11:29:46 AM
To: Chad Roberson
Cc: Margaret M. Bagdon; Lisa P. Lister
Subject: Outstanding Client Invoices (CN 5199)
 
Good morning,
 
I have attached the client invoices that you needed to show today’s date, July 13. If there is anything
else that you need please let me know.
 
Thank you,
Brandy Hyatt 
Billing Specialist


C L A R K N E X S E N


4525 Main Street Suite 1400

Virginia Beach, VA 23462

757.961.7926 Direct
757.455.5800 Office 
bhyatt@clarknexsen.com

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



July 13, 2018



Professional Services for the Period through January 31, 2018



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



Amend 01 - Construction Docs 817,200.00 18.00 147,096.01 138,924.00 8,172.01



Amend 01 - Design Development 408,600.00 100.00 408,600.00 408,600.00



0.00



Amend 01 - CA 817,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Bidding 136,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Subtotal 8,172.01



0.00



Total Fee 2,771,500.00 1,011,796.01 1,003,624.00 8,172.01



Amend 01 - Closeout 136,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Date Balance



Invoice Total: $8,172.01



Remit Payment to:  Clark Nexsen, Inc., 4525 Main Street, Suite 1400, Virginia Beach, Virginia 23462



4525 Main Street, Suite 1400, Virginia Beach,  Virginia  23462   757.455.5800   Fax 757.455.5638  www.clarknexsen.com



Clark Nexsen - Margaret M. Bagdon



Invoice No: 67627



Mr. John Mitchell



Henderson County



100 North King Street



Hendersonville, NC  28792



Total 81,720.01



66273 11/30/2017 81,720.01



Outstanding Invoices



Number











Principal Chadwick Roberson
Project Manager Chadwick Roberson



Mr. John Mitchell
Henderson County
100 North King Street
Hendersonville, NC  28792



April 30, 2018
Invoice No: 67627



Project 5199.A A/E Improvement Projects, Henderson County, NC - Hendersonville High School
Professional Services for the Period through April 30, 2018



Description
Total



Fee
Percent



Complete
Total Fee



Earned
Prior Fee



Earned
Current Fee



Earned



Advanced Planning 47,500.00 100.00 47,500.00 47,500.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Schematic Design 408,600.00 100.00 408,600.00 408,600.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Design Development 350,283.46 100.00 350,283.46 350,283.46 0.00



Amend 01 - Construction Docs 563,622.84 18.00 101,452.11 95,815.88 5,636.23



Amend 01 - Bidding 93,937.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - CA 563,622.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Closeout 93,937.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Total Fee 2,121,503.42 907,835.57 902,199.34 5,636.23



Subtotal 5,636.23



                $5,636.23Invoice Total:



  For CN Use Only
The total CV is $2,771,500.00 - Split between 5199.A ($2,121,503.42) and 5199.A-MA ($649,996.58)





michele.ohara
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FOR CN USE ONLY-
DOES NOT GET SENT
TO THE CLIENT











Principal Clinton Hardie
Project Manager Clinton Hardie



Mr. John Mitchell
Henderson County
100 North King Street
Hendersonville, NC  28792



April 30, 2018
Invoice No: 67627A



Project 5199.A- MA A/E Improvement Projects, Henderson County, NC - Hendersonville High School
Professional Services for the Period through April 30, 2018



Description
Total



Fee
Percent



Complete
Total Fee



Earned
Prior Fee



Earned
Current Fee



Earned



Amend 01 - Design Development 58,316.54 100.00 58,316.54 58,316.54 0.00



Amend 01 - Construction Docs 253,577.16 18.00 45,643.90 43,108.12 2,535.78



Amend 01 - Bidding 42,262.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - CA 253,577.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Closeout 42,262.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Total Fee 649,996.58 103,960.44 101,424.66 2,535.78



Fee 2,535.78



                $2,535.78Invoice Total:



  For CN Use Only
The total CV is $2,771,500.00 - Split between 5199.A ($2,121,503.42) and 5199.A-MA ($649,996.58)





michele.ohara


Typewritten Text


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



Invoice No: 68012



Mr. John Mitchell



Henderson County



100 North King Street



Hendersonville, NC  28792



Total 8,172.01



67627 4/30/2018 8,172.01



Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance



Invoice Total: $65,375.99



Subtotal 65,375.99



0.00



Total Fee 2,771,500.00 1,077,172.00 1,011,796.01 65,375.99



Amend 01 - Closeout 136,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



0.00



Amend 01 - CA 817,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Bidding 136,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



0.00



Amend 01 - Construction Docs 817,200.00 26.00 212,472.00 147,096.01 65,375.99



Amend 01 - Design Development 408,600.00 100.00 408,600.00 408,600.00



0.00



Amend 01 - Schematic Design 408,600.00 100.00 408,600.00 408,600.00 0.00



Advanced Planning 47,500.00 100.00 47,500.00 47,500.00



Professional Services for the Period through May 31, 2018



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



Amend 01 - Construction Docs 563,622.84 28.00 157,814.40 146,541.94 11,272.46



Amend 01 - Bidding 93,937.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - CA 563,622.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Closeout 93,937.14 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Total Fee 2,121,503.42 964,197.86 952,925.40 11,272.46



Subtotal 11,272.46



                $11,272.46Invoice Total:



 Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance
67627 4/30/2018 5,636.23
68012 5/31/2018 45,089.83
Total 50,726.06



For CN Use Only
The total CV is $2,771,500.00 - Split between 5199.A ($2,121,503.42) and 5199.A-MA ($649,996.58)





aslovensky


Text Box


Backup for CN use only.  This does not go to the client.  This is for Asheville's portion of the project.
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Principal Clinton Hardie
Project Manager Clinton Hardie



Mr. John Mitchell
Henderson County
100 North King Street
Hendersonville, NC  28792



June 30, 2018
Invoice No: 68275A



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



Amend 01 - Construction Docs 253,577.16 28.00 71,001.60 65,930.06 5,071.54



Amend 01 - Bidding 42,262.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - CA 253,577.16 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amend 01 - Closeout 42,262.86 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Total Fee 649,996.58 129,318.14 124,246.60 5,071.54



Fee 5,071.54



                $5,071.54Invoice Total:



 Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance
67627A 4/30/2018 2,535.78
68012A 5/31/2018 20,286.16
Total 22,821.94



For CN Use Only
The total CV is $2,771,500.00 - Split between 5199.A ($2,121,503.42) and 5199.A-MA ($649,996.58)





aslovensky
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Backup for CN use only.  This does not go to the client.  This is for Macon's portion of the project.
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
Invoice No: 67635



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



Construction Docs 314,250.00 100.00 314,250.00 241,972.50 72,277.50



Bidding 62,850.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



CA - Closeout 314,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Total Fee 1,277,000.00 899,850.00 827,572.50 72,277.50



Subtotal 72,277.50



                $72,277.50Invoice Total:



 Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance
67313 3/31/2018 75,420.00
Total 75,420.00













Principal Chadwick Roberson
Project Manager Chadwick Roberson



Mr. John Mitchell
Henderson County
100 North King Street
Hendersonville, NC  28792



July 13, 2018
Invoice No: 68014



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



Bidding 62,850.00 50.00 31,425.00 0.00 31,425.00



CA - Closeout 314,300.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Total Fee 1,277,000.00 931,275.00 899,850.00 31,425.00



Subtotal 31,425.00



                $31,425.00Invoice Total:



 Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance
67635 4/30/2018 72,277.50
Total 72,277.50













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
Invoice No: 67637



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



Construction Admin 153,887.50 81.00 124,648.88 109,260.13 15,388.75



Closeout 30,777.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amendment 001 228,167.00 100.00 228,167.00 228,167.00 0.00



Total Fee 843,717.00 783,700.88 768,312.13 15,388.75



Subtotal 15,388.75



                $15,388.75Invoice Total:



 Outstanding Invoices



Number Date Balance
67314 3/31/2018 15,388.75
Total 15,388.75













Principal Chadwick Roberson
Project Manager Chadwick Roberson



Mr. John Mitchell
Henderson County
100 North King Street
Hendersonville, NC  28792



July 13, 2018
Invoice No: 68015



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



Construction Admin 153,887.50 91.00 140,037.63 124,648.88 15,388.75



Closeout 30,777.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00



Amendment 001 228,167.00 100.00 228,167.00 228,167.00 0.00



Total Fee 843,717.00 799,089.63 783,700.88 15,388.75



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
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 4:41:26 PM
Attachments: 6dbed9f1-0337-44b7-9435-0f5e0dcb373b.png


J Mitchell 1-26-16-2.pdf


Steve,
For clarity, I added the track as part of the project noted as item e.
 
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


Spam
Phish/Fraud
Not spam
Forget previous vote
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



e. Replacement of the existing track with a rubberized track surface and subgrade 



preparations. 



 



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



 



 



Enclosures 













From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: HHS Field
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 4:26:28 PM
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
Cc: John Bryant; Aaron Brumo; Sara Melanson
Subject: HHS and Edneyville
Date: Wednesday, February 21, 2018 2:03:21 PM
Attachments: 6edc3a38-2d40-4d73-95d4-01fa8828f71f.png


Gentlemen,


We would like to schedule a meeting either March 5th or 6th to review the scopes of work on
Edneyville and HHS to make sure everyone is clear about what we are including in the contractors
scope of work and the owner’s scope of work. 
 


Are either of those days available or better?  Only thing I would ask is if the 6th works better we do it
in the morning, my son’s first baseball game of the season is that afternoon. 
 
Let me know and we will send out an invite. 
 
 
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
To: Steve Wyatt; John Mitchell
Cc: Sara Melanson
Subject: HHS extended duration
Date: Thursday, May 24, 2018 6:50:06 PM
Attachments: 562315f5-c766-42ff-bb23-58be0cd76439.png


Copy of 5-14-2018 with updated escalation rates and extended duration-final.pdf


Steve and John,
Please find attached information requested associated with the extended duration of the project
and the increased escalation found in the market.  Several clarifications:
 


1. Baseline budget created in 2016 was used for the calculations with a start date of
construction in May 2018


2. Escalation was set at 8% per year, this is conservative, if things continue on the same path it
will likely exceed 10-12% per year.


3. This is the full escalation amount and does not isolate a single year. 
 


If you have any questions, please give me a call. 
 
Thank you.
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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Conceptual Budgeting - Option 3 - New Hendersonville High School 5/14/2018



Phase 1 - Clear and Prepare the Site 3.8 acres @ 300,000.00$        1,136,425.62$           



Escalation-Assumed construction start on 5/2018 40 month @ .66% per month 26.400% 300,016.36$              



Phase 2 - Construct the new Facility 161,500 sf @ 218.00$                35,207,000.00$         



Phase 2 - Sitework 4 acres @ 100,000.00$        380,000.00$              



Escalation-Assumed construction complete by 1/2021 44 month @ .66% per month 29.040% 10,224,112.80$         



Phase 3 - Relocate 3 months



Phase 4 - Demolish Existing Buildings 83,113 sf @ 7.00$                    581,791.00$              



Phase 5 - Sitework 3 acres @ 200,000.00$        600,000.00$              



Escalation-Assumed construction complete by 8/2021 65 month @ ..66% per month 42.900% 506,988.34$              



Sub total 48,936,334.12$         



Overhead and Profit 6.0% 2,936,180.05$           



Sub total 51,872,514.17$         



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 778,087.71$              



Grand Total Construction costs 52,650,601.88$         



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,579,518.06$           



Geotech 50,000.00$                



Survey 50,000.00$                



Special inspector 350,000.00$              



AE fees 3,253,807.20$           



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$              



Hazardous material testing and demo 50,000.00$                



Commissioning agent 0.0% -$                            



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 161,500            sf @ 10.00$                  1,615,000.00$           



Total Project costs 59,823,927.14$         



SQUARE FOOTAGE OF THE BUILDING IS BASED ON STANDARD DPI SPACE PROFILES FOR A SCHOOL OF 800 STUDENTS WITH A CORE CAPACITY OF 1000



The budget presented in August of 2015 was utilized as the baseline.



IF THE ALTERNATE SQUARE FOOTAGE IS SELECTED ADDITIONAL STUDY WILL BE REQUIRED TO CONFIRM HOW THIS COULD AFFECT PHASING OR SITE CONFIGURATIONS



Assumptions for conceptual budget



1.  Steel Framed building



2.  Construction site would be located on an existing Urban site 



3.  Assumed release to proceed with design by May 4 2017



4.  Construction Manager at Risk Delivery method



5.  Current construction market trends maintain current growth patterns



6.  Multistory construction 



7.  Shallow foundation systems



8.  No excessive amounts of unsuitable soils, rock, wetlands, or storm water detention beyond typical NCDEHNR requirements



9.  No finance charges, bond procurement fees, legal fees, etc. are included



10.  No purchase cost for land



11.  Onsite parking is very limited-No parking deck structure is included



12.  Moderate level of sustainability-NC 2012 Energy code compliant



13.  Wet labs in accordance with DPI standards



14.  All classrooms to be flat floor, i.e., no tiered classrooms













From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell; David Berry
Subject: HHS
Date: Thursday, May 03, 2018 3:42:29 PM
Attachments: b224906d-28d7-4367-ba35-fc54de691ff4.png


5-3-18 DD Budget Option 2.pdf
5-3-18 DD Budget Option 1.pdf


John, Please see attached information regarding the options for the High School budget.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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Design Development budget -Hendersonville High School-OPTION 2 5/3/2018



Construct New facility @ 187,000
Construct the new Facility 187,000 sf @ 285.50$               53,388,500.00$        



 Sitework



Demolition of the existing buildings



Sub total 53,388,500.00$        



CM Fee 3.8% 2,002,068.75$          



Sub total 55,390,568.75$        



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 830,858.53$              



Grand Total Construction costs 56,221,427.28$        



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,686,642.82$          



Geotech 57,974.30$                



Survey 50,000.00$                



Special inspector 360,000.00$              



AE fees 3,474,484.21$          



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$              



Hazardous material testing and demo 80,000.00$                



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 187,000            sf @ 10.00$                  1,870,000.00$          



Total Project costs 64,025,528.61$        



Alternate 5- 3' high fence along hwy 25 775,684.00$              



Alternate 6- increase fence height to 8' along hwy 25 231,743.00$              



Alternate 8- fassifern lot 890,000.00$              



Alternate 9- Fence around Stillwell 339,250.00$              



Alternate 10-Intersection improvements at Oakland and 9th 246,284.00$              



Total Alternates 2,482,961.00$          



Owner Contingency 3.0% 74,488.83$                



Geotech 5,000.00$                  



Survey -$                            



Special inspector 7,500.00$                  



AE fees 153,446.99$              



Total project cost for Alternates 2,723,396.82$      



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



3.  Assumed release to proceed with design by May 25, 2018, building complete in January of 2021.



4.  Construction Manager at Risk Delivery method



5.  Current construction market trends maintain current growth patterns



6.  Multistory construction 



7.  Shallow foundation systems/geopiers at areas identified on geotech report



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



15.  Auditorium seats approximately 900  



16.  Includes auxillary gym



17. Main gym includes seating for approximately 1000



18.  Includes modifications made with Clark Nexsen and Henderson County Schools to reduce square footage down to 185,000 gsf.



19.  Does not include any improvements to football field, pressbox, bleachers, Stillwell building.



20.  Does not include any funds expended for the demolition of the Boyd property that has taken place in the March of 2018



21.  Does not include any improvements to the City of Hendersonville sewer system outside of the site boundary



22. Does not include any modifications to the storm drainage under the football field.



23.  Kitchen equipment, furniture, fixtures, technology, low voltage wiring, etc. to be included in FFE budget 













Design Development Budgeting - New Hendersonville High School OPTION 1 5/3/2018



Construct the new Facility 161,500 sf @ 271.00$               43,766,500.00$        



 Sitework



Demolition of existing buildings



Sub total 43,766,500.00$        



CM Fee 3.8% 1,641,243.75$          



Sub total 45,407,743.75$        



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 681,116.16$              



Grand Total Construction costs 46,088,859.91$        



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,382,665.80$          



Geotech 57,974.30$                



Survey 50,000.00$                



Special inspector 360,000.00$              



AE fees 2,724,000.00$          



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$              



Hazardous material testing and demo 80,000.00$                



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 161,500            sf @ 10.00$                  1,615,000.00$          



Total Project costs 52,583,500.00$        



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



3.  Assumed release to proceed with design by May 25, 2018



4.  Construction Manager at Risk Delivery method



5.  Current construction market trends are volitaile -the true impacts of tariffs has not been determined



6.  Multistory construction 



7.  Shallow foundation systems (except as noted in the geotech report)



8.  No excessive amounts of unsuitable soils, rock, wetlands, or storm water detention beyond typical NCDEHNR requirements



9.  No finance charges, bond procurement fees, legal fees, etc. are included



10.  No purchase cost for land



11.  Onsite parking is very limited-Fassifern lot is listed as an alternate



12.  Moderate level of sustainability-NC 2012 Energy code compliant



13.  Wet labs in accordance with DPI standards



14.  All classrooms to be flat floor, i.e., no tiered classrooms



15.  Auditorium seating capacity is 400



16. 161,500 does not include auxillary gym.



17.  NO WORK IS INCLUDED ON THE EXISTING FOOTBALL FIELD.



18.  Kitchen equipment, furniture, fixtures, technology, low voltage wiring, etc to be included in the FFE budget
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To: David Berry; John Mitchell
Subject: IHS FFE
Date: Monday, January 29, 2018 9:45:43 AM
Attachments: e40b49d3-4eb3-4443-a2fb-554f508fc35e.png


170314 Executed Agreement - Amend 003(01) FF&E for Innovative High School.pdf


 
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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From: Chad Roberson
To: David Berry
Cc: Thad Ninnemann; Sara Melanson; John Mitchell
Date: Thursday, April 12, 2018 1:49:17 PM
Attachments: 9429f6cd-d1bb-4e3f-97c2-c0637702d19a.png


§ 15.1.2 NOTICE OF CLAIMS
Claims by either the Owner or Contractor must be initiated by written notice to the other party and to the Initial
Decision Maker with a copy sent to the Architect, if the Architect is not serving as the Initial Decision Maker.
Claims by either party must be initiated within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or
within 21 days after the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.
 
§ 15.1.4 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL COST
If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum, written notice as provided herein shall
be given before proceeding to execute the Work. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency
endangering life or property arising under Section 10.4.
 
§ 15.1.5 CLAIMS FOR ADDITIONAL TIME
§ 15.1.5.1 If the Contractor wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, written notice as provided
herein shall be given. The Contractor’s Claim shall include an estimate
of cost and of probable effect of delay on
progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.
 
§ 15.1.5.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be
documented by data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the
period of time, could not have
been reasonably anticipated and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.
 
 
 
David,
See above items related to extensions for weather claims.  This would require a claim be made
within 21 days from the events occurrence.  Clark Nexsen is the  initial decision maker in any request
for additional
monies.  We will never approve any claim for additional general conditions related to
weather extensions, if there were any desire for the contractor to file a claim in mediation or
arbitration, they would basically eliminate themselves from future CM projects
in WNC or State
Construction projects. 
 
I will review the schedule and provide feedback related to the durations as soon as possible.
 
Thx
Chad
 
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell; Samantha Reynolds
Date: Wednesday, August 01, 2018 7:59:49 AM
Attachments: Signed COC.pdf


John,
Attached is the Certificate of Substantial Completion for IHS.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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From: Chad Roberson
To: David Berry
Cc: John Mitchell
Date: Tuesday, September 11, 2018 8:11:20 AM


David,
Good morning, would you mind checking on invoices for us?  We have 3 outstanding invoices from
June and one from August. Let me know if you need anything.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Date: Wednesday, October 10, 2018 5:56:06 PM
Attachments: 104-A1.1-TB.pdf


John,
These are the one’s we did about 6 years ago down at the Gorges.  They running about 75-80k then. 
They are very simple but very durable. 
 
Thx
C
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Cc: David Berry
Date: Tuesday, October 23, 2018 9:02:55 AM


John,
Good morning, were you able to get those outstanding invoices paid? 
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 4:31:00 PM
Attachments: 09633eec-0537-41f9-95db-4ddc31e32843.png


J Mitchell 1-26-16-2.pdf


Track included .
 
 
 
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
Subject: RE:
Date: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 4:34:40 PM


Yep anything else you see in there?
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: John Mitchell [mailto:johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org]

Sent: Wednesday, January 10, 2018 4:34 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Re:
 
Thanks.  You going to send it to Steve 


Sent from my iPad


On Jan 10, 2018, at 4:30 PM, Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com> wrote:


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
Cc: Samantha Reynolds
Subject: RE: Certificate of Completion
Date: Thursday, July 05, 2018 4:37:09 PM
Attachments: 68360734-75f3-4376-94e1-538ba8b88dd7.png


2017-11-21_CertificateofSubComp.pdf


Please see attached certificate of completion.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>

Sent: Thursday, July 05, 2018 4:11 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Fwd: Certificate of Completion
 


Sent from my iPhone


Begin forwarded message:


From: Samantha Reynolds <sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>
Date: July 5, 2018 at 4:06:33 PM EDT
To: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: Certificate of Completion


Hi John,
 
I’ve been asked to supply a certificate of completion for the Innovative High School
project to satisfy a requirement of our financing agreement.  Is this something you
would normally prepare?  If so, can I get a copy?  I’m not sure if
Carey had already
received one, but it’s not part of the files he left.
 
Thanks!
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












 


Samantha Reynolds, CPA
Finance Director
 
Henderson County
113 North Main Street
Hendersonville, NC 28792
828.697.4821
 
county logo 2


"All e-mail correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records
Law, which may result in monitoring and disclosure to third parties.”
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: RE: Certificate of Completion
Date: Thursday, July 05, 2018 4:28:43 PM


I will get it for you.
 
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
Subject: RE: Edneyville ES construction bids
Date: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 12:46:44 PM


GMP contract document will be delivered by no later than Friday.  Contract value will be $21.4M. 
The bids will be received on May 2, 2018.  Project will reconcile to the bids but will not exceed
$21.4M for construction.
 
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

Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 11:16 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: FW: Edneyville ES construction bids
 
Please respond…
 


From: Samantha Reynolds 
Sent: Wednesday, April 04, 2018 9:13 AM
To: David Berry <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>
Cc: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: Edneyville ES construction bids
 
Hi David,
 
We are working to put together the LCG application for the financing of the Edneyville ES project. 
Can you please confirm the date for construction bid opening and confirm the GMP will be


presented to the BOC during the April 18th
meeting?
 
Thank you,
 


Samantha Reynolds, CPA
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Henderson County
113 North Main Street
Hendersonville, NC 28792
828.697.4821
 


"All e-mail correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law, which may
result in monitoring and disclosure to third parties.”
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Marcus Jones
Cc: John Mitchell; Aaron Brumo; David Berry
Subject: RE: Edneyville Sewer
Date: Monday, February 26, 2018 4:36:56 PM
Attachments: 53cfb3bd-515b-41ab-b27f-5afc98cd4498.png


Marcus,
I think it will be better for the County to just contract directly with Mark Brooks.   To date he has
spent around $25,000 that I need to do an amendment for our Edneyville Contract.  As we discussed
on the phone,
Mark informed me that there is a minimum window of 10 months for permitting,
design, and installation.  At the latest, a decision needs to be made by the end of June 2018. 
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Marcus Jones [mailto:majones@hendersoncountync.org]

Sent: Monday, February 26, 2018 9:12 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: Edneyville Sewer
 
Chad,
 
From the last BOC meeting, we were directed to further study the following three options:


1. Drip Irrigation System
2. Traditional Septic System
3. A 100,000 gallon package plant located on Clear Creek that will serve as much of Edneyville as


possible (North High School) with the gravity system.
 
Would you like me to contact Mark directly?
 
Thanks,
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Visit
www.hcrecycles.org to stay up-to-date about recycling programs!
 
All e-mail correspondence to and from this address is subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law, which may result
in monitoring and disclosure to third parties.
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Brian Walker; John Mitchell
Subject: RE: HHS - Meeting
Date: Sunday, November 26, 2017 4:14:42 PM


Brian,


Hope you guys had a good Thanksgiving.  First time I can meet is December 5th.  I am tied up all this
week.  I am open for anytime that day.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Brian Walker [mailto:brian.walker@jrvannoy.com]

Sent: Wednesday, November 22, 2017 1:17 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org
Subject: HHS - Meeting
 
Chad,
 
John called this afternoon and we came to the same conclusion you and I did yesterday about
getting all our teams together.  Can you check you and your teams calendar and John could you do
the same?  Would it be feasible to meet the middle
to end of next week?  Thanks!
 


Brian Walker  
LEED® AP,
  |
Vannoy Construction | Vice-President
office: 828 575 1300
|
mobile:
828 772 4711
|
fax: 828 575 1301
Mailing Address: 230 Hilliard Avenue, Unit 01,
Asheville, NC 28801
*:
brian.walker@jrvannoy.com
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From: Chad Roberson
To: J Michael Edney
Cc: Steve Wyatt
Subject: RE: HHS Football Stadium Progress
Date: Thursday, January 04, 2018 5:20:10 PM
Attachments: bbe5625f-fb72-4bf3-8651-e18b285efb48.png


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
To: J. Michael Edney
Cc: John Mitchell; Sara Melanson
Subject: RE: HHS
Date: Thursday, May 24, 2018 7:55:26 AM
Attachments: a53ef2c2-2a1b-473d-85f6-e9fa1c91635f.png


Michael,
I appreciate the urgency of the request.  This is a process that will take 2-3 weeks to provide a
credible number anything short is a guess. 
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: J. Michael Edney <edneyjm@hendersoncountync.org>

Sent: Thursday, May 24, 2018 7:08 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>; Sara Melanson
<SMelanson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Re: HHS
 
I need a good number before 3!!


 
Sent from my iPhone 


On May 24, 2018, at 6:42 AM, Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com> wrote:


Michael,
Unfortunately it’s not that simple.  The answer is it depends on the value of the square
feet.  If you take out more $100/sf then the average value is less, take out more
$500/sf and the average value is greater.  When reducing and adding
at this point in
the process you cannot simply take the overall building square feet cost and multiple it
by the the reduction or addition there are more factors involved.  I am around this
morning if you need to discuss this further.
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Thank you.
Chad 
 


From: J. Michael Edney <edneyjm@hendersoncountync.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 23, 2018 6:40:00 PM
To: Chad Roberson
Cc: John Mitchell; Sara Melanson
Subject: Re: HHS
 
So that would reduce the 66.5 mil by some number maybe 11,000 x 275.00=
$2,970,000 ??


 
Sent from my iPhone 


On May 23, 2018, at 6:20 PM, Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com> wrote:


Michael,
The drawings you have reflect the full project at 187,000 sf and the
budget that we discussed previously.  In order to get to the 161,500 sf
roughly 17,000 sf has to be removed.  There is not a cumulative list of
items that have been removed.
 We have met with the school system to
review options for items to remove.  The square feet that tentatively have
been offered by the school system to be removed is roughly 11,000 sf.
 This has not been tested to determine exactly how this will impact the
project other than a reduction of square feet.  I am out of the office and
do not have access to the exact information that is the reason for the
generalities.  If you need further information don’t hesitate to contact me.
 
 
Thx
Chad
 


From: J. Michael Edney <edneyjm@hendersoncountync.org>
Sent: Wednesday, May 23, 2018 5:19:23 PM
To: John Mitchell
Cc: Chad Roberson
Subject: Re: HHS
 
Need ASAP so I can review before tomorrow afternoon please!!


 
Sent from my iPhone 
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On May 23, 2018, at 1:31 PM, John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org> wrote:


Chad:
 
Will you please provide the information requested below.
 
John 


Sent from my iPhone


Begin forwarded message:


From: "J. Michael Edney"
<edneyjm@hendersoncountync.org>
Date: May 23, 2018 at 1:08:14 PM EDT
To: John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: HHS


Send me the list of cuts please. You said 17000
sq ft  ??


Sent from my iPhone


Spam
Phish/Fraud
Not spam
Forget previous vote
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From: Chad Roberson
To: David Berry; Joel Helms
Cc: John Mitchell; Thad Ninnemann
Subject: RE: Henderson County Emergency Services HQ - Area A & C Slabs
Date: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 3:50:13 PM
Attachments: 34f1f41f-16cb-4b30-a112-75f4439a4bf9.png


David,
My opinion is protection of work in place is part of the CM’s responsibility and they should have
accounted for this in some form or fashion during their preconstruction services and subsequent
bids.  I would push
back on this. 
 
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: David Berry [mailto:dberry@hendersoncountync.org]

Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 3:37 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; Joel Helms <JHelms@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>; Thad Ninnemann
<tninnemann@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: FW: Henderson County Emergency Services HQ - Area A & C Slabs
 
??????????
 


From: John Mathews [mailto:jmathews@cooperconst.com]

Sent: Wednesday, February 14, 2018 3:33 PM
To: David Berry <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>; Thad Ninnemann
<tninnemann@hendersoncountync.org>
Cc: Mike Cooper <mcooper@cooperconst.com>; Matthew Carter <mdcarter@cooperconst.com>;
Mike Carter <mcarter@cooperconst.com>
Subject: Henderson County Emergency Services HQ - Area A & C Slabs
 
David,
 
As we discussed in our OACM meeting a few weeks ago, we are concerned that the slab in Areas A &
C is going to be stained by the traffic going across this slab between now and the time that this slab
is ready to be sealed at the end of
the project.  There is not a curing compound that is compatible
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with the sealer that is going to be used that could have been placed when the slab was first laid and
there is no good method to cover the slab (plastic, wood, masonite) that will stay in place
and
actually protect the slab.  We have verified with the manufacturer that the sealer that we are going
to use on the project can be installed now, sanded down later, and another coat be applied at the
end of the project.  This would provide some protection
for the slab during construction and still
allow the subs to work off the slab.  The cost of this added coat of sealer and the required sanding of
the slab would cost ≈ $26,000 from the contractor’s contingency.
 
Please think this over and let us know how you’d like is to proceed.
 
Thank you.
 


John C. Mathews
Project Manager / Estimator
 
Cooper Construction Company, Inc.
828.692.7238 (office) | 828.696.9978 (fax)
761 S. Allen Rd, Flat Rock NC 28731 (office)
PO Box 806, Hendersonville NC 28793 (mailing)
www.cooperconst.com)


       
This message and any attachment are intended only for the use of the individual or entity to which it is addressed and may contain
information that is non-public,
proprietary, privileged and confidential. If you are not the intended recipient, you are directed not to read,
disclose, distribute or otherwise use this transmission. If you have received this communication in error, please erase all copies of the
message
and its attachments and notify the sender immediately. Any opinions contained in this e-mail, explicit or implied, are solely
those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of Cooper Construction Company.
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Samantha Reynolds; John Mitchell
Cc: Aaron Brumo
Subject: RE: Henderson County
Date: Tuesday, May 08, 2018 8:26:52 AM
Attachments: image002.png
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Samantha,
Nothing as of yet, we will follow up with them and see where we are in the que.
 
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

Sent: Tuesday, May 08, 2018 8:17 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: RE: Henderson County
Importance: High
 
Hi Chad,
 
Following up with the email from last week.  Have you heard anything regarding the shell and
foundation permit and when it will be available?
 
Thank you,
Samantha


From: Samantha Reynolds 
Sent: Thursday, May 3, 2018 10:51 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Cc: Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>
Subject: RE: Henderson County
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Department of State Treasurer
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State Treasurer of North Carolina






































Importance: High
 
Hi Chad,
 
Can you provide us with an update on the progress of the shell and foundation permit and when it
will be available?
 
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
 
 
 
 


From: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 3:37 PM
To: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Cc: Samantha Reynolds <sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>; Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>;
joe.futima@nctreasurer.com
Subject: Re: Henderson County
 
Carey,
They will not provide a date certain for the return of comments but they typically are running 30-45
days.  We expect to have them in the next 2-3 weeks.  
 
Thx
Chad
 


From: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>
Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 3:35:02 PM
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To: Chad Roberson; John Mitchell
Cc: Samantha Reynolds; Jared White; joe.futima@nctreasurer.com
Subject: RE: Henderson County
 
Chad,
See comments from the LGC below.  Can you check the progress as to when the “shell and
foundation” permit will be available and comments back from DOI/DPI please.  If we don’t have
something by next Monday, we will be pushed to the June
LGC meeting for approval.  Let me know
soon.  Thanks.
 
Carey
 


From: Joe Futima [mailto:Joe.Futima@nctreasurer.com]

Sent: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 3:23 PM
To: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>
Cc: Samantha Reynolds <sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>; Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>
Subject: RE: Henderson County
 
Carey,
As you know this permit is considered crucial and necessary for LGC approval.  We have less
flexibility with the new Treasurer as we have had in the past so it looks like this will be something


that we will need
by next Monday the 23rd which is right before we circulate the agenda to
committee members.  Can you please check to see if this is expected soon because otherwise this
will have to move to a June approval.
Thanks,
 
Joe Futima
Financial Analyst
State and Local Government Finance Division
3200 Atlantic Avenue, Raleigh, NC 27604
Phone: (919) 814 4284
Fax: (919) 855 5812
 


3200 Atlantic Avenue, Raleigh, NC 27604
www.NCTreasurer.com


E-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the
North Carolina Public Records Law. It may be subject to monitoring
and disclosed to third
parties, including law enforcement personnel,
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by an authorized state official.
IMPORTANT: When sending confidential or sensitive information,
encryption should be used.
 
 


From: Carey McLelland [mailto:carey@hendersoncountync.org]

Sent: Tuesday, April 17, 2018 2:36 PM
To: Joe Futima <Joe.Futima@nctreasurer.com>
Cc: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>; Samantha Reynolds
<sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>; Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>
Subject: FW: Henderson County
 
Hello Joe,
We are working on getting you the items you need.  See the response below from the Clark Nexsen
architect.  What additional professionals do you need fee arrangement letters for?
 
Carey
 


From: Chad Roberson [mailto:CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com]

Sent: Tuesday, April 17, 2018 2:19 PM
To: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Cc: Samantha Reynolds <sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: RE: Henderson County
 
Carey,
Nothing has changed since the last letter.  We have submitted for review comments from DOI/DPI
and we are awaiting responses.
 
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

Sent: Tuesday, April 17, 2018 2:18 PM
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To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Cc: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>; Samantha Reynolds
<sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: FW: Henderson County
Importance: High
 
Hello Chad,
See below.  Please provide me with updated letter as to whether a “shell and foundation” permit
have been obtained for the new Edneyville Elementary School to provide to the LGC ASAP.  Thanks.
 
Carey
 


From: Joe Futima [mailto:Joe.Futima@nctreasurer.com]

Sent: Tuesday, April 17, 2018 2:13 PM
To: Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>
Cc: Carey McLelland <carey@hendersoncountync.org>; Samantha Reynolds
<sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>; Russ Burrell <rburrell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: Henderson County
 
Jared,
 
I am looking at wrapping up the agenda drafts this week and still need some addition information for
Henderson.  For the application I need to get:


GMP for the School.
Draft of County Attorney Letter.
Fee arrangement letters from the professionals.
Update/clarification as to whether “shell & foundation” permit has been obtained and have
ClarkNexsen update letter.


 
For agenda preparation I will need:


·       
An updated set of numbers.
·       
NTE rate and amount.
·       
Expected ratings and UW discount (including counsel fees.).


 
Please le t me know if you have any questions on any of these items.
 
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
and disclosed to third parties, including
law enforcement personnel,
by an authorized state official.
IMPORTANT: When sending confidential or sensitive information,
encryption should be used.
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Jared White; Samantha Reynolds
Cc: John Mitchell
Subject: RE: Henderson Permit
Date: Tuesday, June 19, 2018 3:21:52 PM
Attachments: image001.png
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Jared,
We have done everything we can on our end.  This has never been an issue with any of the
Henderson County projects in the past nor any other projects that I have
had where the LGC was
involved.    DOI has the documents, we have returned them in less than 48 hours after we received
comments.  Verification with the plan reviewer has been documented,  they have been received and
are in the que.  DOI is not going to grant
a foundation permit if the they aren’t going to grant the
core and shell. As soon as we receive the letter from DOI we will let everyone know. 
 
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


From: Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2018 3:14 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; Samantha Reynolds
<sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: RE: Henderson Permit
 
Chad,
Per Biff, when can the letter state “Shell & Foundation permit has been
granted and approved” –
that is what we need in order to get on the LGC agenda for approval.
 
Jared White, Vice President
George K. Baum & Company
112 S. Tryon Street, Suite 1755 | Charlotte, NC 28284
704.972.6525 (o) | 704.942.4355 (c)
whitej@gkbaum.com
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From: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2018 2:45 PM
To: Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>; Samantha Reynolds <sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: Re: Henderson Permit
 
Jared,
There has been no further discussions.  We have foundation approval per my letter last week.  We
have resubmitted based on the two comments we received last week.  They were
related to the
finish schedule and shouldn’t be a hold up.  
 
Thx
Chad
 


From: Jared White <whitej@gkbaum.com>
Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2018 2:41:03 PM
To: Samantha Reynolds; Chad Roberson
Subject: RE: Henderson Permit
 
Samantha and Chad,
 
Has there been any dialogue with the LGC that I am not aware of.   Per Biff’s latest email below, he
was not signed off on the verbiage.
 
Jared White, Vice President
George K. Baum & Company
112 S. Tryon Street, Suite 1755 | Charlotte, NC 28284
704.972.6525 (o) | 704.942.4355 (c)
whitej@gkbaum.com
 


From: Jared White

Sent: Friday, June 15, 2018 12:40 PM
To: Samantha Reynolds <sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson
<CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Fwd: Henderson Permit
 
Chad, Can you please comment on Biff’s request below.  
 
Jared White, Vice President
George K. Baum & Company
112 S Tryon Street, Suite 1755 | Charlotte, North Carolina 28284
704.972.6525 (o) | 704.942.4355 (c)
whitej@gkbaum.com


From: Biff McGilvray <Biff.McGilvray@nctreasurer.com>
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Sent: Friday, June 15, 2018 10:03:47 AM
To: Jared White; Joe Futima
Cc: Samantha Reynolds
Subject: RE: Henderson Permit
 
I’ve never heard of a “core” approval.  Does that contemplate the foundation?  Get a (hopefully)
confirmation of that from Chad.
 
Biff McGilvray, MBA, CPA
Senior Financial Analyst
State and Local Government Finance Division 
Phone: (919) 814-4280


3200 Atlantic Avenue, Raleigh, NC 27604
www.NCTreasurer.com


E-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North
Carolina Public Records Law. It may be subject to monitoring and disclosed to
third parties,
including law enforcement personnel, by an authorized state
official.
IMPORTANT: When sending confidential or sensitive information, encryption
should be used.
 
 


From: Jared White [mailto:whitej@gkbaum.com]

Sent: Thursday, June 14, 2018 4:28 PM
To: Biff McGilvray <Biff.McGilvray@nctreasurer.com>; Joe Futima <Joe.Futima@nctreasurer.com>
Cc: Samantha Reynolds <sreynolds@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: Henderson Permit
 
Biff and Joe:
 
We have received the shell and foundation permit! Please see the attached letter from the
architect and confirm that we are all set with moving forward towards a July approval.
 Thanks. 
 
Jared White, Vice President
George K. Baum & Company
112 S Tryon Street, Suite 1755 | Charlotte, North Carolina 28284
704.972.6525 (o) | 704.942.4355 (c)
whitej@gkbaum.com
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The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board requires we notify you that when we are engaged
by an issuer to serve as underwriter or placement agent for a specific municipal securities
transaction, we act as a principal in a commercial, arm's
length transaction with that issuer,
and not as its municipal advisor or fiduciary for that transaction. As an underwriter or
placement agent, we have certain financial and other interests that differ from those of the
issuer. This communication and any attachment
(this “email”) may contain confidential,
privileged and/or proprietary material for the sole use of the intended recipient. Receipt by
anyone else does not constitute loss of the confidential, privileged or proprietary nature of the
communication. If you received
this email in error, please contact the sender by return
electronic mail and delete all copies of this communication. Information received or sent from
our email system is subject to review by supervisory personnel, is retained and may be
produced to regulatory
authorities or others with a legal right to the information.
The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board requires we notify you that when we are engaged by an
issuer to serve as underwriter or placement agent for a specific municipal securities transaction, we
act as a principal in a commercial, arm's length transaction with that issuer, and not as its municipal
advisor or fiduciary for that transaction. As an underwriter or placement agent, we have certain
financial and other interests that differ from those of the issuer. This communication and any
attachment (this “email”) may contain confidential, privileged and/or proprietary material for the
sole use of the intended recipient. Receipt by anyone else does not constitute loss of the
confidential, privileged or proprietary nature of the communication. If you received this email in
error, please contact the sender by return electronic mail and delete all copies of this
communication. Information received or sent from our email system is subject to review
by
supervisory personnel, is retained and may be produced to regulatory authorities or others with a
legal right to the information.
The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board requires we notify you that when we are engaged by an
issuer to serve as underwriter or placement agent for a specific municipal securities
transaction, we
act as a principal in a commercial, arm's length transaction with that issuer, and not as its municipal
advisor or fiduciary for that transaction. As an underwriter or placement agent, we have certain
financial and other interests that differ
from those of the issuer. This communication and any
attachment (this “email”) may contain confidential, privileged and/or proprietary material for the
sole use of the intended recipient. Receipt by anyone else does not constitute loss of the
confidential,
privileged or proprietary nature of the communication. If you received this email in
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
To: Erin Renwick; John Mitchell; David Berry; Brian Walker
Cc: Sara Melanson
Subject: RE: Hendersonville High School
Date: Thursday, February 08, 2018 5:43:29 PM
Attachments: 229ce9bc-dc0b-4879-bd16-21c1a4a69116.png


Erin,
I will move some things around on my end and make Friday work. 
 
John and David, will that work for you? 
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Erin Renwick [mailto:erin.renwick@jrvannoy.com]

Sent: Thursday, February 08, 2018 3:38 PM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>; David Berry <dberry@hendersoncountync.org>; Brian
Walker <brian.walker@jrvannoy.com>
Cc: Sara Melanson <SMelanson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: RE: Hendersonville High School
 
Hi Chad,
 
Is it ok with the group if we reschedule for the same timeframe next Friday, 2/16? We have conflicts
with most of our schedules for every other day next week, other than Friday.
 
Additionally, can we tentatively set up a separate day to review sitework? This can sometimes be a
lengthy package to discuss, and we would both have a few folks outside of the core group to
coordinate for that
discussion that wouldn’t need to be present for the overall review. Can you
check with the Civil Engineer and see if anything would work for you all for the following week?
 
Thanks,
 
Erin Renwick



mailto:CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com

mailto:erin.renwick@jrvannoy.com

mailto:johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org

mailto:DBerry@Hendersoncountync.gov

mailto:brian.walker@jrvannoy.com

mailto:SMelanson@ClarkNexsen.com

mailto:croberson@clarknexsen.com

http://www.clarknexsen.com/











 


From: Chad Roberson [mailto:CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com]

Sent: Thursday, February 8, 2018 1:35 PM
To: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>; David Berry
<dberry@hendersoncountync.org>; Brian Walker <brian.walker@jrvannoy.com>;
Erin Renwick
<erin.renwick@jrvannoy.com>
Cc: Sara Melanson <SMelanson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: Hendersonville High School
 
Folks, we are still going thru the reconciliation process and need a little extra time.  I have spoke with
John and Brian and would like to reschedule our meeting for tomorrow to the first of next week. 
John indicated
that Tuesday is available for him.  Please let me know if that works. 
 
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


  ­­  
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: RE: IHS
Date: Monday, January 29, 2018 9:45:46 AM
Attachments: 4d2866cf-2f91-45ce-a847-185985253ddf.png


Just sent it.
 
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

Sent: Monday, January 29, 2018 9:29 AM
To: Chad Roberson <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: FW: IHS
 
Do you have a copy with your signature on it you could scan to me.
 


From: John Mitchell 
Sent: Wednesday, March 15, 2017 4:02 PM
To: Chad Roberson (CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com) <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: IHS
 
 
 
John Mitchell
Business and Community Development Director
Henderson County
828-694-6556 (office)
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Cc: Sara Melanson
Subject: RE: Section 179D Certification for Henderson County Health Sciences Center
Date: Tuesday, September 11, 2018 1:56:10 PM


Little help on getting these signed.  Thx  c
 
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
Sent: Tuesday, August 21, 2018 6:53 PM
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



https://emailfilteringservice.net/canit/b.php?c=s&i=09WyhU7Ms&m=f1b5c5c9a976&rlm=hendersoncountync-org&t=20180911

https://emailfilteringservice.net/canit/b.php?c=p&i=09WyhU7Ms&m=f1b5c5c9a976&rlm=hendersoncountync-org&t=20180911

https://emailfilteringservice.net/canit/b.php?c=n&i=09WyhU7Ms&m=f1b5c5c9a976&rlm=hendersoncountync-org&t=20180911

https://emailfilteringservice.net/canit/b.php?c=f&i=09WyhU7Ms&m=f1b5c5c9a976&rlm=hendersoncountync-org&t=20180911






From: Chad Roberson
To: Steve Wyatt; Amy Brantley
Cc: John Mitchell
Subject: RE: three items , as soon as possible please
Date: Thursday, July 05, 2018 6:08:25 PM
Attachments: cf33482c-52eb-453d-8081-96452ce9c576.png


7-5-18 Options.pdf


Steve,
Attached are the documents indicating the budgets for each option including the original DPI
standard building and the 400 seat auditorium with auxiliary gym. For the purposes of this exercise,


we have anticipated
that we would be given approval to move forward on July 18th.  This would
provide us with a start date for earthwork at the end of September.  Delays beyond that date add
approximately $400,000 per month to the budget compounded. 
 
Thru the end of June, we have invoiced  $1,093,516. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.
 
Thx
Chad
 
Chad Roberson AIA, LEED AP BD+C
Principal


C L A R K N E X S E N


301 College Street Suite 300

Asheville, NC 28801

828.333.6271 Direct
828.232.0608 Office 
croberson@clarknexsen.com

www.clarknexsen.com


From: Steve Wyatt <swyatt@hendersoncountync.org> 
Sent: Thursday, July 05, 2018 12:27 PM
To: Amy Brantley <brantley@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson
<CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: RE: three items , as soon as possible please
 
What have we spent on demo?
 


From: Amy Brantley 
Sent: Thursday, July 5, 2018 11:22 AM
To: Steve Wyatt <swyatt@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson (CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com)
<CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
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SUMMARY OF OPTIONS Variance from original budget Variance in original square feet



Low Range High Range Low Range High Range



DPI baseline study- 400 seat auditorium no auxillary gym 54,516,637.07$        56,837,661.85$         1,916,637.07$                                    4,237,661.85$                                      0



including all alternates 56,999,598.07$        59,320,622.85$         4,399,598.07$                                    6,720,622.85$                                      



Option A-1     400 seat auditorium with auxillary gym 58,636,105.87$        61,199,437.01$         6,036,105.87$                                    8,599,437.01$                                      10000



including all alternates 61,119,066.87$        63,682,398.01$         8,519,066.87$                                    11,082,398.01$                                    



Option A- reduced building size with 900 seat auditorium and auxillary gym 60,423,313.34$        63,068,850.44$         7,823,313.34$                                    10,468,850.44$                                    15,500                                                               



including all alternates 62,906,274.34$        65,551,811.44$         10,306,274.34$                                  12,951,811.44$                                    



-$                                                      -$                                                        



Option B- Remove auditorium, band and choral, partial renovation to Stillwell 65,052,541.84$        69,651,476.39$         12,452,541.84$                                  17,051,476.39$                                    30,500                                                               



including all alternates 67,535,502.84$        72,134,437.39$         14,935,502.84$                                  19,534,437.39$                                    



-$                                                      -$                                                        



Option C- Remove auditorium, NO renovation to stillwell, includes auxillary gym in new facility 55,396,704.71$        58,294,033.47$         2,796,704.71$                                    5,694,033.47$                                      12,000                                                               



including all alternates 57,879,665.71$        60,776,994.47$         5,279,665.71$                                    8,176,994.47$                                      











Option DPI baseline 7/5/2018



Project  description



Includes 400 seat auditorium and no Auxillary gym



Cost per SF low Cost Per SF high Low High



Construct the new Facility 161,500 sf @ 281.00$                293.50 45,381,500.00$                    47,400,250.00$              



 Sitework



Demolition of existing buildings



Sub total 45,381,500.00$                    47,400,250.00$              



CM Fee 3.8% 1,701,806.25$                       1,777,509.38$                



Sub total 47,083,306.25$                    49,177,759.38$              



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 706,249.59$                          737,666.39$                   



Grand Total Construction costs 47,789,555.84$                    49,915,425.77$              



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,433,686.68$                       1,497,462.77$                



Geotech 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Survey 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Special inspector 350,000.00$                          350,000.00$                   



AE fees 2,953,394.55$                       3,084,773.31$                



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$                          225,000.00$                   



Hazardous material testing and demo 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 161,500             sf @ 10.00$                  1,615,000.00$                       1,615,000.00$                



Total Project costs 54,516,637.07$         56,837,661.85$    



ADDITIONAL SCOPE ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN ORIGINAL BUDGET AS A RESULT OF REZONING OR EVOLUTION OF THE PROJECT



Alternate 5- 3' high fence along hwy 25 775,684.00$                          775,684.00$                   



Alternate 6- increase fence height to 8' along hwy 25 231,743.00$                          231,743.00$                   



Alternate 8- fassifern lot 890,000.00$                          890,000.00$                   



Alternate 9- Fence around Stillwell 339,250.00$                          339,250.00$                   



Alternate 10-Intersection improvements at Oakland and 9th 246,284.00$                          246,284.00$                   



Revised grand  total including alternates 56,999,598.07$                    59,320,622.85$             



SQUARE FOOTAGE OF THE BUILDING IS BASED ON STANDARD DPI SPACE PROFILES FOR A SCHOOL OF 800 STUDENTS WITH A CORE CAPACITY OF 1000



Qualifications for above noted items



1.  Steel Framed building



2.  Construction site would be located on an existing Urban site 



3.  Assumed release to proceed with design by July 18, 2018



4.  Construction Manager at Risk Delivery method



5.  Current construction market trends are volitaile 



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



16. DOES NOT INCLUDE AN Auxillary Gym



17.  NO WORK IS INCLUDED ON THE EXISTING FOOTBALL FIELD.



18.  Does not include a connector between new building and existing Stillwell



19.  Kitchen equipment, furniture, fixtures, technology, low voltage wiring, etc to be included in the FFE budget











Option A-1 7/5/2018



Project  description



Includes new auditorium to seat 400, auxillary gym, classrooms as requested by HCS



Cost per SF low Cost Per SF high Low High



Construct the new Facility 171,500 sf @ 285.00$                298.00 48,877,500.00$                    51,107,000.00$              



 Sitework



Demolition of existing buildings



Sub total 48,877,500.00$                    51,107,000.00$              



CM Fee 3.8% 1,832,906.25$                       1,916,512.50$                



Sub total 50,710,406.25$                    53,023,512.50$              



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 760,656.09$                          795,352.69$                   



Grand Total Construction costs 51,471,062.34$                    53,818,865.19$              



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,544,131.87$                       1,614,565.96$                



Geotech 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Survey 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Special inspector 350,000.00$                          350,000.00$                   



AE fees 3,180,911.65$                       3,326,005.87$                



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$                          225,000.00$                   



Hazardous material testing and demo 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 171,500             sf @ 10.00$                  1,715,000.00$                       1,715,000.00$                



Total Project costs 58,636,105.87$         61,199,437.01$    



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



Revised grand  total including alternates 61,119,066.87$                    63,682,398.01$             



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



16. Includes Auxillary Gym



17.  NO WORK IS INCLUDED ON THE EXISTING FOOTBALL FIELD.



18.  Does not include a connector between new building and existing Stillwell



19.  Kitchen equipment, furniture, fixtures, technology, low voltage wiring, etc to be included in the FFE budget











Option A 7/5/2018



Project  description



Includes new auditorium to seat 900, auxillary gym, classrooms as requested by HCS



Cost per SF low Cost Per SF high Low High



Construct the new Facility 177,000 sf @ 285.00$                298.00 50,445,000.00$                    52,746,000.00$              



 Sitework



Demolition of existing buildings



Sub total 50,445,000.00$                    52,746,000.00$              



CM Fee 3.8% 1,891,687.50$                       1,977,975.00$                



Sub total 52,336,687.50$                    54,723,975.00$              



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 785,050.31$                          820,859.63$                   



Grand Total Construction costs 53,121,737.81$                    55,544,834.63$              



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,593,652.13$                       1,666,345.04$                



Geotech 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                     



Survey 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                     



Special inspector 350,000.00$                          350,000.00$                   



AE fees 3,282,923.40$                       3,432,670.78$                



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$                          225,000.00$                   



Hazardous material testing and demo 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                     



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 170,000             sf @ 10.00$                  1,700,000.00$                       1,700,000.00$                



Total Project costs 60,423,313.34$        63,068,850.44$   



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



Revised grand  total including alternates 62,906,274.34$                    65,551,811.44$             



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



15.  Auditorium seating capacity is 900



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











Option B 7/5/2018



Project  description



Cost per SF low Cost Per SF high Low High



Construct the new Facility 160,000 sf @ 288.00$                298.00 46,080,000.00$                     47,680,000.00$              



Sitework



Demolition of existing buildings



Renovation to Stillwell Auditorium 12,000               sf @ 145.00$                175.00$                    1,740,000.00$                       2,100,000.00$                



Renovation in Stillwell for Band and Choral 20,000 sf @ 130.00$                150.00$                    2,600,000.00$                       3,000,000.00$                



Stillwell Code required Changes 60,000 sf @ 55.00$                  75.00$                      3,300,000.00$                       4,500,000.00$                



Add exterior canopy between buildings 1 ls @ 560,000.00$        1,000,000.00$         560,000.00$                          1,000,000.00$                



Sub total 54,280,000.00$                     58,280,000.00$              



CM Fee 3.8% 2,035,500.00$                       2,185,500.00$                



Sub total 56,315,500.00$                     60,465,500.00$              



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 844,732.50$                          906,982.50$                   



Grand Total Construction costs 57,160,232.50$                     61,372,482.50$              



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,714,806.98$                       1,841,174.48$                



Geotech 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Survey 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Special inspector 350,000.00$                          350,000.00$                   



AE fees 3,532,502.37$                       3,792,819.42$                



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$                          225,000.00$                   



Hazardous material testing and demo 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 192,000             sf @ 10.00$                  1,920,000.00$                       1,920,000.00$                



Total Project costs 65,052,541.84$         69,651,476.39$    



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



Revised grand  total including alternates 67,535,502.84$                    72,134,437.39$             



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



15.  Auditorium seating capacity is currently in the existing auditorium 



16. Includes Auxillary Gym



17.  NO WORK IS INCLUDED ON THE EXISTING FOOTBALL FIELD.



18.  Does  include a connector between new building and existing Stillwell



19.  Kitchen equipment, furniture, fixtures, technology, low voltage wiring, etc to be included in the FFE budget



Remove the Auditorium, Band and Choral from New and relocate to existing Stillwell building.  Renovate Stillwell Auditorium, Renovate Stillwell to provide Band 



and Choral, and perform code required upgrades/MEP required upgrades to entire facilit.  New Facility includes Auxillary Gym.











Option C 7/5/2018



Project  description



Cost per SF low Cost Per SF high Low High



Construct the new Facility 160,000 sf @ 285.00$                298.00 45,600,000.00$                     47,680,000.00$              



Sitework



Demolition of existing buildings



Renovation to Stillwell Auditorium -                      sf @ 145.00$                175.00$                    -$                                         -$                                  



Renovation in Stillwell for Band and Choral 0 sf @ 130.00$                150.00$                    -$                                         -$                                  



Stillwell Code required Changes 0 sf @ 55.00$                  75.00$                      -$                                         -$                                  



Add exterior canopy between buildings 1 ls @ 560,000.00$        1,000,000.00$         560,000.00$                          1,000,000.00$                



Sub total 46,160,000.00$                     48,680,000.00$              



CM Fee 3.8% 1,731,000.00$                       1,825,500.00$                



Sub total 47,891,000.00$                     50,505,500.00$              



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 718,365.00$                          757,582.50$                   



Grand Total Construction costs 48,609,365.00$                     51,263,082.50$              



Owner Contingency 3.0% 1,458,280.95$                       1,537,892.48$                



Geotech 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Survey 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Special inspector 350,000.00$                          350,000.00$                   



AE fees 3,004,058.76$                       3,168,058.50$                



CM pre-con fee 225,000.00$                          225,000.00$                   



Hazardous material testing and demo 50,000.00$                            50,000.00$                      



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 160,000             sf @ 10.00$                  1,600,000.00$                       1,600,000.00$                



Total Project costs 55,396,704.71$         58,294,033.47$    



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



Revised grand  total including alternates 57,879,665.71$                    60,776,994.47$             



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



18.  Does include a connector between new building and existing Stillwell



19.  Kitchen equipment, furniture, fixtures, technology, low voltage wiring, etc to be included in the FFE budget



Remove the Auditorium from new, Band and Choral remain in New  NO RENOVATION TO STILLWELL .  New Facility includes Auxillary Gym.












Subject: RE: three items , as soon as possible please
 
The Boyd Property cost $2,750,000, and Fassifern was $500,000. These are purchase prices only, not
including any renovation.
 


From: Steve Wyatt 
Sent: Thursday, July 5, 2018 9:54 AM
To: Chad Roberson (CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com) <CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Cc: Amy Brantley <brantley@hendersoncountync.org>; John Mitchell
<johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: three items , as soon as possible please
 
First , what is the current estimate for HHS as designed , adding an auxiliary gym? Second , should
the BOE reject the all of the options to move forward and the BOC agree to that on July 18 , what
will be the total we have invested on
architectural and related design/construction fees?  Finally , for
Amy , what did we invest in the Boyd Property and Fassifern? Thank you
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Mark Brooks; wbuie@wgla.com
Cc: John Mitchell
Subject: Re: Edneyville
Date: Thursday, June 28, 2018 6:40:19 PM


Just as it relates to the short term approval.  All others should go thru the county


From: Mark Brooks <mbrooks@brooksea.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 3:01:15 PM
To: Chad Roberson; wbuie@wgla.com
Cc: 'John Mitchell'
Subject: RE: Edneyville
 
OK. I assume you mean as far as getting the short term plan finalized and approved.  What about
forthcoming soil science work? Address it to ClarkNexsen?
 


From: Chad Roberson [mailto:CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com]

Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 1:09 PM
To: Mark Brooks <mbrooks@brooksea.com>; wbuie@wgla.com
Cc: 'John Mitchell' <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: RE: Edneyville
 
Mark,
To keep it clean just bill this to us and we will get reimbursed from the County.
 
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

Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 10:21 AM
To: wbuie@wgla.com
Cc: 'John Mitchell' <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>; Chad Roberson
<CRoberson@ClarkNexsen.com>
Subject: RE: Edneyville
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Thanks Will, I can certainly do that.  Should the Land Resource Management (Walker Fergusons
company) proposal be made out to Brooks Engineering? If so, who am I contracting with? If not, who
to?
 
Couple of further administrative questions. Yesterday we were asked to submit the plans we had
completed for the “temporary” system amendments to the existing drainfield that would essentially
buy some time until
sewer or another solution was implemented.  We had not completely finished
the scope of services with our original contract with  ClarkNexsen as the plans were never permitted.
But Chad mentioned that moving forward I should just contract directly with the
County? We still
have some work to do to address comments, get the plans in, and get the system permitted.  Should
it be installed we would have to inspect and certify.  Who are we billing moving forward on that? 
 
Thanks, just want to get all this straightened out on the front end.
 
 
Mark C. Brooks, P.E.
Brooks Engineering Associates, P.A.
17 Arlington Street
Asheville, NC  28801
(828)232-4700


 
 
 


From: wbuie@wgla.com [mailto:wbuie@wgla.com]

Sent: Thursday, June 28, 2018 9:41 AM
To: 'Mark Brooks' <mbrooks@brooksea.com>
Cc: 'John Mitchell' <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Subject: Edneyville
 
Mark,
 
Hope you are doing well.  I wanted to follow up on Edneyville and give you a quick update.  The folks
at Henderson County has spoken with both the adjacent property owners.  The owners of the
Hannen property (to the west of the school)
are willing to discuss selling some property for septic. 
The neighbor to the south may be agreeable, and we are continuing the dialogue.
 
I think you were going to reach out to the soils consultant to get a proposal for the initial soils
evaluation for the 4 – 5 acres needed.  If you have that proposal, can you share that with me and
John Mitchell (copied on this email)? 
If not, do you mind encouraging those folks to get the proposal
to use as soon as they can?
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Thanks Mark.  Feel free to call me if we need to discuss.
 
Will
 
William R. Buie, P.E.
Project Manager/Principal
WGLA Engineering, PLLC


724 5th Avenue West
Hendersonville, NC 28739
828-687-7177 ext 302
www.wgla.com
 


Please note our new mailing address is 724 5th Avenue West Hendersonville, NC  28739.
 
 


Virus-free.
www.avg.com
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From: Chad Roberson
To: John Mitchell
Subject: Re: GMP Ednyville
Date: Wednesday, August 08, 2018 4:24:58 PM


I will dig it up when I get back in the office.  All the power is out downtown!


From: John Mitchell <johnmitchell@hendersoncountync.org>
Sent: Wednesday, August 8, 2018 4:07:58 PM
To: Chad Roberson
Subject: GMP Ednyville
 
Do you have a signed copy of the GMP for ednyville?
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Carey McLelland; John Mitchell
Cc: Samantha Reynolds; Jared White; joe.futima@nctreasurer.com
Subject: Re: Henderson County
Date: Wednesday, April 18, 2018 3:37:36 PM
Attachments: image001.png


image002.png
image003.png
image004.png
image006.png
image007.png


Carey,
They will not provide a date certain for the return of comments but they typically are running
30-45 days.  We expect to have them in the next 2-3 weeks.  


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
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Nirthl Corrolina G
Department of State Treasurer

Dale R. Folwell, CPA
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
and disclosed to
third parties, including law enforcement personnel,
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
and disclosed to third parties,
including law enforcement personnel,
by an authorized state official.
IMPORTANT: When sending confidential or sensitive information,
encryption should be used.
 
 


 



http://www.nctreasurer.com/

http://twitter.com/nctreasurer

http://www.facebook.com/ncdst

http://www.nctreasurer.com/Inside-The-Department/StayConnected/Pages/default.aspx
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From: Chad Roberson
To: Steve Wyatt
Cc: Amy Brantley; John Mitchell
Subject: Re: three items , as soon as possible please
Date: Thursday, July 05, 2018 10:01:31 AM


I will pull this together as soon as possible. I have a call into Brian as well to get their view.


From: Steve Wyatt <swyatt@hendersoncountync.org>
Sent: Thursday, July 5, 2018 9:53:41 AM
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
To: Carey McLelland
Cc: John Mitchell
Subject: Status letter of Edneyville
Date: Monday, April 02, 2018 12:08:14 PM
Attachments: cd23f62f-50e6-49eb-a1ab-0788b18891e9.png


John Mitchel 4-2-17.pdf


Carey,
See attached.
 
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



April 2, 2018 



Henderson County 



1 Historic Courthouse Square 



Suite 5 



Hendersonville, NC 28792 



 



Attn:  Mr. John Mitchell 



 



Re: Edneyville Elementary 



 



Dear Mr. Mitchell, 



 



At the request of Carey McLelland, this letter is to provide a status of the permitting process for 



the above referenced project.  As of today’s date, the follow permits have been applied for and 



received: 



a. Water allocation has been granted and approved.   



b. Erosion control permit is being applied for currently 



c. Storm water permit is being applied for currently 



d. Final building drawings were submitted to Department of Insurance on March 30, 2018 



e. To our knowledge no other permitting is required or expected to be required.     



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
Subject: budget history
Date: Wednesday, March 28, 2018 2:41:13 PM
Attachments: b3ce6817-4907-4fcc-87c6-0904a1fda296.png


2016-04-11_Conceptual Budgeting.pdf
2016-03-25_Conceptual Budgeting.pdf


John and David,
Budget histories attached.
 
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
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Conceptual Budgeting - Option 3 - New Hendersonville High School 4/11/2016



Phase 1 - Clear and Prepare the Site 3.8 acres @ 300,000.00$        1,136,425.62$           



Escalation-Assumed construction start on 5/2018 32 month @ .37% per month 11.840% 134,552.79$              



Phase 2 - Construct the new Facility 161,500 sf @ 198.00$                31,977,000.00$        



Phase 2 - Sitework 4 acres @ 100,000.00$        380,000.00$              



Escalation-Assumed construction complete by 3/2020 43 month @ .37% per month 15.910% 5,087,540.70$           



Phase 3 - Relocate 3 months



Phase 4 - Demolish Existing Buildings 83,113 sf @ 7.00$                    581,791.00$              



Phase 5 - Sitework 3 acres @ 200,000.00$        600,000.00$              



Escalation-Assumed construction complete by 8/2020 57 month @ .37% per month 21.090% 249,239.72$              



Sub total 40,146,549.84$        



Overhead and Profit 6.0% 2,408,792.99$           



Sub total 42,555,342.83$        



Bonds and insurance 1.5% 638,330.14$              



Grand Total Construction costs 43,193,672.97$        



Owner Contingency 5.0% 2,159,683.65$           



Soft Costs(AE fees, CM pre-con fee, survey, permitting, geotech, 



special inspector, material testing agent, Air Monitoring etc.) 12.0% 5,183,240.76$           



Commissioning agent 1.0% 431,936.73$              



Furniture, fixture, equipment ,technology 161,500            sf @ 10.00$                  1,615,000.00$           



Total Project costs 52,583,534.10$        



Optional program components Additional SF Escalation Construction costs Owner Contingency Soft costs FFE costs Total additional costs



Add auditorium to seat 100015 15,290              GSF @ 400.00$                15.9% 7,089,055.60$           354,452.78$                893,221.01$            152,900.00$            8,489,629.39$                    



Add gym for 2500 seating capacity
16



23,838              GSF @ 300.00$                15.9% 8,289,187.74$           414,459.39$                1,044,437.66$        238,380.00$            9,986,464.78$                    



Add football field house
17



8,500                 GSF @ 300.00$                15.9% 2,955,705.00$           147,785.25$                372,418.83$            85,000.00$              3,560,909.08$                    



Increase level of finish to exterior envelope 1,000,000.00$           50,000.00$                   126,000.00$            1,176,000.00$                    



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



3.  Assumed release to proceed with design by May 1 2016



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



15.  Additional square footage includes larger stage,dressing areas, lobby, and storage space.  



16.  Additional square footage includes Auxillary gym, wrestling room, larger lobby/concessions/common space, PE rooms remain per 800 student guidelines



17.  Additional square footage includes visitors/home football locker rooms, concession stand, visitors/home toilet rooms.  













Conceptual Budgeting - Option 3 - New Hendersonville High School 3/26/2016



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
To: David Berry; John Mitchell; Samantha Reynolds
Subject: ednyville
Date: Thursday, June 14, 2018 2:24:58 PM
Attachments: d7011819-3ff1-46ba-9ba8-4b4c06a0a6ea.png


John Mitchel 6-14-18.pdf


John,
I revised this letter, to remove the grading permit and correct the DOI statement.  We have
foundation approval.  Aaron is picking up the comment for the core and shell.
 
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



d. A foundation permit has been issued by Department of Insurance 



 



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
Subject: outstanding invoices
Date: Thursday, July 12, 2018 9:25:17 AM


David,
Good morning,  would you mind checking on the status of our invoices.  We have about $185,000 in
outstanding invoices that are more than 30 days old.  Plus about $50,000 in current amount due. 
Let me know.
 
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
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